
Council Meeting Agenda 
August 1, 2022 

6:00PM 

1. Call to Order ................................................................................................ Mayor Ed Hooks 

2. Moment of Silence (no one signed up for this meeting date) ..................................... Mayor 

3. Public Comments ........................................................................................................ Mayor 

4. Consent Agenda .......................................................................................................... Mayor 

a. Alamance County Library Committee Appointment Recommendation
b. Final Plat Approval- St. Barts Place
c. Final Plat Reapproval- Tupelo Junction, Ph. 1
d. Petition for Voluntary Non-Contiguous Annexation- Summit Church
e. Petition for Voluntary Non-Contiguous Annexation- Sandra Clark
f. Odor Control Chemical Bid Results and Recommendation

5. Public Hearings- 

a. Rezoning- 120, 122, 126 W. Holt Street from HM, B-1,
and R-12 to B-1 (CD) to allow for a Planned Unit Development 
by NC Mebane Holt, LLC ....................... Ashley Ownbey, Interim Development Director 
(Requested to be continued until October 3, 2022 per the applicant) 

b. Rezoning- 4677 Mrs. White Lane from R-20 to R-12 (CD)
to allow for a residential development by Tanner Built Homes, LLC ........... Ms. Ownbey 

c. Rezoning- Peartree Drive & Parker Lane from R-8 (CD)
and R-20 to R-8 (CD) to allow for a residential development

by KB Home Carolina Division ..................................................................... Ms. Ownbey 

d. Ordinance to Extend the Corporate Limits-
BC Stagecoach, LLC, Stagecoach Corner............................ Lawson Brown, City Attorney 

6. Elevated 1 MG Water Storage Tank Engineering Services ........ Kyle Smith, Utilities Director 

7. Elevated 1 MG Water Storage Tank Grant Administration Services ...................... Mr. Smith 

8. Elevated 1 MG Water Storage Tank Capital Project
Ordinance and Reimbursement Resolution .................. Daphna Schwartz, Finance Director 

9. Code of Ordinances Amendment- Backyard Hens and Fowl Ordinance .............. Mr. Brown 

10. Property Acquisition- Smith Drive, Jackson Street and
Lee Street- WRRF ................................................................................................. Mr. Brown 

11. Property Acquisition- Jackson Street- WRRF ........................................................ Mr. Brown 

12. Adjournment ............................................................................................................... Mayor 



AGENDA ITEM #4A 
Recommendation to the Alamance County 
Commissioners for Appointment to the 
Alamance County Library Committee 

Presenter 
Lawson Brown, City Attorney 

Public Hearing 
Yes  No  

Summary 
Three applications were received for Council’s consideration in making a recommendation to the Alamance 
County Board of Commissioners for appointment of the one (1) vacant trustee position.   

Background 
Mebane is allowed two (2) trustees to serve on the Alamance County Library Committee. At its June 6, 2022 
meeting, Council voted unanimously to recommend the reappointment of Courtney Doi.  One seat remains 
vacant as no eligible applications were received for consideration at the June or July meetings.  Since that 
time, three (3) applications have been received: Mandy Al-Bjaly, Lorna Nelson, and Sarah Williams. 

Committee terms are for two (2) years and typically begin on July 1st. 

Financial Impact 
N/A 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends that Council make a recommendation for appointment of _________________ as a 
Mebane trustee. 

Suggested Motion 
I make a motion to recommend ____________________ for appointment by the Alamance County Board 
of Commissioners to serve as a Mebane trustee on the Alamance County Library Committee. 

Attachments 
1. Mandy Al-Bjaly’s Application
2. Lorna Nelson’s Application
3. Sarah William’s Application



���- o: "'���
,,,
. 

� . .,,,,,, . "' 
• . . I 

-� . ,�------ ..� '1 _,.,.... "'. ;, 

4ii,,, City of Mebane 
Boards and Commissions Application

The Mebane City Council has adopted this application for use by individuals interested in appointment to the City's 
advisory boards and commissions. To ensure that your application will receive full consideration, please answer all 
questions completely. Return this application either in person, by mail, or by fax to the Mcbane Municipal Building, 
106 East Washington Street, Mebane, NC 27302, Fax (919) 563-9506. 

Personal Information 

Name ("\ (J_f\ J � (-\ \-(l, � r.;_ / 'c) 
Home Address: L\ ·L lo.). \ \'<\'<-- s;-\. ) t'-1\tS Cr-.� ) NL �,Ju J-
Mailing Address (if different):

Home Phone:�\°' -L\, S- -7 0 u )__ Business Phone:

Do you live inside the Mebane City Limits? Yes'L No __

In Alamance or Orange County? :¥\"\ C:...M�f\ L<L!

Board Preference 

Are you currently serving on a board or commission of the City of Mebane? Yes __ No /
If so, which one(s)? __________________________ _

Please list the name(s) of the board(s) to whic e a  1 in eking reappointment (you 
may apply to more than one): _\

_,_
1:....;:&"-'·�(}..._;____,::,..._.=.:....¥-1--,¼->,��=-..;"'--"--"----""'-"'-----------

Please list your educational background. Include name of all schools attended:

�G--.l bu 0� o-\- f\ (--\ � a,,-\ S �'""---\, h¼ f\ vd, ,,J-, \t",() '"':6Ab - . . 
Ch<�<·. I:f\\--v f¼ vf\c. . .Q_, L.omfV'.\.,,<\ 1 t6'..,l-" Q f"I \ Yv-l<'u c: E::1i1 'J L L-\-vd





Employment 

Boards and Commissions Application 
l;'age2 

Please list the names and address of your current employer, the title of your current position, and 
a brief description of your job duties. l.. G.. rf'\ r;.._, h "C:>�� \(.,,,y'"
Name of Employer: _________________________ _ 

Address: ____________________________ _ 

Title and Duties: 

Civic Involvement 

Please list the names of all civic organizations in which you currently hold membership: 

\b c:__r�&, �tj) �-\� 6?�� \ �½-.\ A1 :EA t\.S: 
\rl"\��-v: .A nf:s c...�. �M "30�:tc . . 

r'<\�w cl, ':\k � g_\.({ s,�\.e0
2:5 

h \;, lh� % wt& �-C"J:tsw C'bfl�i 0� 

_________________ l_c..__:-\\v--=--& °oS0-,_,.'�is

Thank you for your interest in appointment to the City of Mebane's Advisory Boards and 
Commissions. Individuals selected for appointment will be notified by mail within 5 working days 
from the City Council meeting at which they have been appointed. 



City of Mebane 
Boards and Commissions Application 

The Mebane City Council has adopted this application for use by individuals interested in appointment to the City's 
advisory boards and commissions. To ensure that your application will receive full consideration, please answer all 
questions completely. Return this application either in person, by mail, or by fax to the Mebane Municipal Building, 

l 06 East Washington Street, Mebane, NC 27302, Fax (919) 563-9506.

Personal Information 

Name: Lorna Nelson 

Home Address: 305 West McKinley Street, Mebane, NC 27302 

Mailing Address (if different): 

Home Phone: (919) 971-2838 Business Phone: 

Do you live inside the Mebane City Limits? Yes� No 

In Alamance or Orange County? _A_la_m_ a_n _c _e _ _______ __ 

Board Preference 

Are you currently serving on a board or commission of the City of Mebane? Yes _ _  No_L_ 
If so, which one(s)? ____________ __ _____________ _ 

Please list the name(s) of the board(s) to which you are applying or seeking reappointment (you 
may apply to more than one): _J_us_t _th_i_s _o _ne _ ________ _ _ _ _ __ _ _ _ _ __ _

Why do you wish to serve the City in this capacity? If additional space is needed please attach a 
separate sheet: 

To support and advocate for the library and professional librarians in Mebane; to learn more about how the library 

works· to gain a better understanding of how people in Mebane use the library and what their needs are to serve and 

connect with my community. 

Education 

Please list your educational background. Include name of all schools attended: 

NSULA Master of English 2012; NCSU MEd 2008; BA English 2005; BA Poli Sci 1986 





City of Mebane 
Boards and Commissions Application 

The Mebane City Council has adopted this application for use by individuals interested in appointment to the City's 
advisory boards and commissions. To ensure that your application will receive full consideration, please answer all 
questions completely. Return this application either in person, by mail, or by fax to the Mebane Municipal Building, 
I 06 East Washington Street, Mebane, NC 27302, Fax (919) 563-9506. 

Personal Information 

Name: Saro,½ w I\\, o.._\1)1 s

Home Address: 3:h N---\-lt q--t'1 S-6. J Mt}gm € N C L.] 3 0 L

Mailing Address (if different): ______________________ _ 
HomePhone: ZL{3-sq2- OS{ (p BusinessPhone: o3C9-222- �(q I

Do you live inside the Mebane City Limits? Yes� No 

In Alamance or Orange County? /Jd CV.NJ atlvf. 

Board Preference 

Are you cun-ently serving on a board or commission of the City of Mebane? Yes __ No� 
If so, which one(s)? _______ ___________________ _ 

Please list the name(s) of the board(s) to which you are applying or seeking reappointment (you 
may apply to more than one): (,jbvo,Y1J Ad,V)So� 13oa t:d 

Why do you wish to serve the City in this capacity? If additional space is needed please attach a 
separate sheet: 

.::c t 

� y-o w -ti. crt 
Education 

Please list your educational background. Include name of all schools attended: 

- �ctvv\g.vbi\+ U_v,\ \lex;;i+'-{ - Mas� o+ UJMYhuVtt±:y ��� _.J A-cli'v VJ
- CoUeref o+ C{l)a({gsfovt- Q_m,1o(g.,VV1Q.J1 ov--e.d \Y\ L&YY:lVVv1A\iv1Y4-h'Dt-i �

a, Mo��o. S�d;�s wvilV'.1J7':A-kov-i + \NOVY\�'s s G£>l1c)_Qy- 5rvd1'£S 





 P a g e  | 1 

AGENDA ITEM #4B 
SUB 22-08 
Final Subdivision Plat  
St. Barts Place 
 

Presenter  
Ashley Ownbey, Interim Development Director 

Applicant 
Vernon Clapp 
1353 North Church Street 
Burlington, NC 27217 

Public Hearing 
Yes  No  

  

Final Plat  

 

Property 
St. Barts Place, 
Alamance County 

GPIN 
9813494621 

Proposed Zoning 
N/A 

Current Zoning 
R-20  

Size 
+/-6.9 acres 

Surrounding Zoning 
R-20, R-12, R-6 (CD) 

Surrounding Land 
Uses 
Residential, Church 

Utilities 
Extended at 
developer’s expense. 

Floodplain 
Yes 

Watershed 
No 

City Limits 
Yes  



A g e n d a  I t e m  c o n t i n u e d   P a g e  | 2 

Summary 
Vernon Clapp is requesting approval of the Final Plat for the St. Barts Place Subdivision (approved as a 
preliminary subdivision plat by City Council on 02/06/2017). The Final Plat will include a total area of +/-6.9 
acres featuring 12 single-family lots, right-of-way dedication, and a 10’ multi-use path. 
 
The Technical Review Committee (TRC) has reviewed the Final Plat and the applicant has revised the plan 
to reflect comments. All infrastructure must be completed and approved to meet the City of Mebane 
specifications. All infrastructure not completed shall be bonded or a letter of credit provided prior to 
recordation.  

Financial Impact 
The developer has extended utilities at his own expense.   

Recommendation 
Staff recommends approval of the Final Plat. 

Suggested Motion 
Motion to approve the final plat as presented.   

Attachments 
1. Final Plat  

 
 



30' ZONE A BUFFER

20' ZONE B BUFFER

30
' Z

ONE A
 B

UFF
ER

20
' Z

ONE B
 B

UFF
ER

EX. TOP OF BANK

30.00'

M
BL

MBL

M
BL

MBL

100 YR. F
LOOD

MBL

APPROX. DRIVEWAY
LOCATION FOR LOT 12

10' X 10'
SIGN ESMT

12' NEGATIVE ACCESS
ESMT FOR LOTS 10, 11

10' X 10'
SIGN ESMT

10'x70'
S.D.E.

10'x70'
S.D.E.

20'x6'
MAILBOX/KIOSK

ESMT.

S 63°10'06" E  149.72'

S 69°13'13" E  224.00' (TOTAL)

N 80°19'43" E  329.68' (TOTAL)

124.51'

99.49'

70.47'
41.56'

S 41
°4

3'4
5" 

W
  1

00
.04

'

S 
38

°2
4'4

5"
 W

  8
0.1

9'

S 
33

°2
5'1

5"
 W

46
.0

5' 
(T

OTA
L)

S 
36

°4
7'0

5"
 W

36
.39

'

S 51°05'55" W
  6

2.26'

S 49°46'55" W
  1

36.42'

S 
25

°1
9'1

5"
 W

47
.3

6' 
(T

O
TA

L)

S 70°02'53" W  73.42'

S 40°22'45" E  65.98'

N 81°43'35" E  157.28'

N 88°09'20" E  239.43'

N 87°43'30" E  215.13'

N 78°27'52" E  218.97'

N 59°58'55" E  78.24'

N
 17°51'18" W

  118.36'

N 61°20'32" W  229.02'

S 85°56'25" W  205.43'

N 49°10'51" W  164.24'

S 
33

°1
8'3

6"
 W

  1
19

.9
3' 

(T
OTA

L)

S 57°08'25" W
  95.40'

S 
04

°0
0'

58
" W

  1
68

.3
8'

1

20,317 SF
0.466 AC

2

20,060 SF
0.461 AC

ST BARTS PLACE

50' PUBLIC R/W

3

20,991 SF
0.482 AC

4

22,492 SF
0.516 AC

5

20,415 SF
0.469 AC 6

20,924 SF
0.480 AC

7

20,985 SF
0.482 AC

8

20,254 SF
0.465 AC

9

20,040 SF
0.460 AC

10

20,260 SF
0.465 AC

11

26,555 SF
0.610 AC

12

23,760 SF
0.545 AC

N
 18°31'51" W

  131.35'

69.84'

50.26'

EX. T
OP O

F BANK

EX. T
OP O

F B
ANK

10'
 MULTIPURPOSE

PATH

AREA TO BE
DEDICATED TO THE

R/W WITH THE
RECORDING OF

THIS MAP
4,481 SF
0.103 AC

AREA TO BE
DEDICATED TO THE

R/W WITH THE
RECORDING OF THIS

MAP
2,499 SF
0.057 AC

217.66'

S 67°43'37" E  127.48' (TOTAL)

S 74°02'12" E  83.76'

OLD HILLSBOROUGH RD SR 2126
60' PUBLIC R/W

P.B. 61 PG. 96

363.25'

114.50'

FIP

FIP

FIP
0.18' NORTH

OF LINE

FIP

FIP

FIP

FIP

FIP
0.23' NORTH

OF LINE

S 61°28'54" E
158.87'(ESMT)

S 61°28'54" E

159.68'(ESMT)

S 18°53'18" E

71.74'(ESM
T)

N 85°56'25" E
141.40'(ESMT)

N 85°56'25" E
118.83'(ESMT)

N 41
°1

5'4
6"

 E
  2

51
.75

'(E
SMT)

N 41
°1

5'4
6"

 E
  2

93
.71

'(E
SMT)

S 18°53'18" E

79.09'(ESM
T)

HOELLER INVESTORS CORP.
D.B.0472 PG.0079
T.M.# 9813-5889-01

JOYCE H. GRAVES
D.B.0710 PG.0550

T.M.# 9813-4979-49

WILLIAM & PEARL HOLMES
D.B.0265 PG.0027

T.M.# 9814-4065-88

SANDRA A. MULLER
D.B.0561 PG.0152

T.M.# 9813-3997-30

LARRY G. PARKS / BILLIE
ANNE

D.B.0419 PG.0396
T.M.# 9813-3982-59

INSET A

15' PRIVATE

DRAINAGE ESMT

30' D
R

AIN
AG

E ESM
T

30
' S

ANITA
RY S

EW
ER E

SMT

30
' S

ANITA
RY

SEW
ER E

SMT

30.00'

13
2.

97
'

99
.9

9'

10
2.

54
'

24
4.

19
'

N 
24

°0
6'1

0"
 E

  5
79

.6
9' 

(T
O

TA
L)

23
.6

8'

23
.6

8'

63
.8

3'

56
.0

9'

37
.4

0'

N 86°36'27" E  169.21'

7.38'

N 83°01'04" W  488.58'

10.83'

L1
L2

L3

L4

L5

L6

L7

L8

L9

L10

L11

L12

L13

L1
4

L15

L16

L17

L1
8

L19

L2
0

L21

L22

L23

L2
4

L25
L2

6

L2
7

L28

L3
0

C
1

C2

C3 C4

C5
C6

C
7

C8

C9

C10

C11

C
12

C1
3

C14
C15

C
16

C17

C18

C
19

C
20

C21

C
22

L29

L31

C23
TIE TO
ESMT

C
24

C2
5

C29

C28

C27
C26

8.65'

PUBLIC DRAINAGE
ESMT

PUBLIC DRAINAGE
ESMT

12' NEGATIVE
ACCESS ESMT

FOR LOT 1

10'
MULTIPURPOSE

PATH

L32

L3
3

L34

(IN)CORPORATE LIMITS(OUT)

(O
UT

)
CO

RP
O

RA
TE

 L
IM

IT
S

(IN
)

(IN
)

CORPORATE LIM
ITS

(IN
)

CORPORATE LIMITS(IN)

(OUT)

SINGLE FAMILY REQUIREMENTS
MIN. LOT SIZE: 20,000 SF
MIN. LOT WIDTH: 85' INTERIOR

85' CORNER
MIN. STREET FRONTAGE: 30'
MIN. STREET SETBACK:
FRONT: 30'
SIDE: 18'
INTERIOR SETBACK:
SIDE: 10'
REAR: 25'
MIN. BLDG. SEPARATION:
MAX. BLDG. HEIGHT: 40'
MAX. BLDG. COVER: 40%

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATION:

"I, TOMMY W. WRIGHT, CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAT WAS DRAWN UNDER  MY
SUPERVISION FROM AN ACTUAL SURVEY MADE UNDER MY  SUPERVISION (DEED
DESCRIPTION RECORDED IN BOOKS 1529 PAGE 248, THAT THE BOUNDARIES NOT
SURVEYED ARE CLEARLY INDICATED AS DRAWN FROM INFORMATION FOUND IN
BOOK AS PAGE SHOWN; THAT THE RATIO OF PRECISION AS CALCULATED IS 1:10,000;
THAT THIS PLAT WAS PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH G.S. 47-30 AS AMENDED.
WITNESS MY ORIGINAL SIGNATURE, LICENSE NUMBER AND SEAL THIS 21st DAY OF
JULY, 2022 A.D.

THIS SURVEY CREATES A SUBDIVISION OF LAND WITHIN THE AREA OF A COUNTY OR
MUNICIPALITY THAT HAS AN ORDINANCE THAT REGULATES PARCELS OF LAND.

I, TOMMY W. WRIGHT, CERTIFY THAT THE CONTROL FOR THIS SURVEY FROM AN
ACTUAL GPS (OR GNSS) SURVEY MADE UNDER MY SUPERVISION AND THE
FOLLOWING INFORMATION WAS USED TO PERFORM THE SURVEY:
1. CLASS OF SURVEY: CLASS A
2. POSITIONAL ACCURACY: 0.07'
3. TYPE OF GPS FIELD PROCEDURE: VRS (SOKKIA MODEL GCX-3 NETWORK
ROVER)
4. DATE OF CONTROL SURVEY: 05-10-2022
5. DATUM EPOCH: NAD83(2011)/EPOCH (2010)
6. PUBLISHED/FIXED-CONTROL USE: NC CORS NETWORK
7. GEOID MODEL: 18
8. MEAN COMBINED GRID FACTOR: 0.999947943 (GROUND TO GRID)
9. UNITS: US SURVEY FEET

PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR
______________________________

REVIEW OFFICER CERTIFICATION.
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF ALAMANCE
!,________________ , REVIEW OFFICER OF ALAMANCE
COUNTY, CERTIFY THAT THE MAP OR PLAT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATION IS
AFFIXED MEETS ALL STATUTORY
REQUIREMENTS FOR RECORDING.

___________________________________________________________________
REVIEW OFFICER                                                DATE

FINAL PLAT FOR
ST. BARTS PLACE

SUBDIVISION

L-5262
LICENSE NUMBER
_________________

PROJECT LOCATION:
CITY: MEBANE
TOWNSHIP: MELVILLE
COUNTY: ALAMANCE
STATE: NORTH CAROLINA
DATE: 07/21/2022
SCALE: 1' = 50'

GENERAL NOTES:

1. ERROR OF CLOSURE IS 1:10,000+.
2. AREA DETERMINED UTILIZING COMPUTER SOFTWARE.
3. THIS MAP IS SUBJECT TO ANY EASEMENTS, AGREEMENTS OR

RIGHTS OF WAY RECORDED PRIOR TO THE DATE OF THIS MAP
WHICH WERE NOT VISIBLE AT THE TIME OF INSPECTION.

4. BOUNDARY SURVEY PERFORMED BY FLEMING ENGINEERING,
INC.

5. THIS PROPERTY IS LOCATED WITHIN A SPECIAL FLOOD
HAZARD AREA AND ZONE AE AREA AS INDICATED ON THE
FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP (FIRM) MAP NUMBER
3710981300K, EFFECTIVE DATE NOVEMBER 17TH, 2017.

6. THIS SURVEY IS A NORTH CAROLINA CLASS  A SURVEY.
7. FIELD WORK COMPLETED 05-12-2022
8. NC GRID COORDINATES SHOWN HEREON ARE BASED ON GPS

OBSERVATIONS UTILIZING VRS NC CORS NETWORK .
9. ALL DISTANCES SHOWN ARE GROUND DISTANCES, UNLESS

OTHERWISE SPECIFIED.

NO

RTH        CAROLINA

TOMMY W. WRIGHT

L-5262
SEAL  

PR

OFESS IONAL
  

 LA
ND SUR V EY O

R
 FOR

REVIEW

OWNER INFORMATION:

Civil Engineers and Land Surveyors
8518 Triad Drive, Colfax, NC 27235
www.feiconsulting.com
(336) 852-9797
License No. C-0950FEI

MC / JDB / 05-26-2022 PLAT BOOK____________PAGE____________

VICINITY MAP
1" = 2,000'

E:\DRAWINGS_&_PROJECTS\PROJ\03030.001 ST. BARTS PLACEDRAWING FILE:DRAWN BY:
CHECKED BY: TWWPROJ. NO.:

JDB
03030.001

Old Hi l l s bor ough Rd

H
ol

m
es

R
d

                                SITE DATA:

GPIN: 9813-49-4621
PIN: 163282
OLD TAX ID: 10-17-66B

CLAPP VERNON D
3405 OLD HILLSBOROUGH RD
MEBANE, NC 27302

D.B. 1529 PG. 248

TOTAL AREA: 6.90 ACRES
NO. OF UNITS: 12 UNITS
DENSITY: 1.74 UNITS/ACRE
EX. ZONING: R-20

VERNON CLAPP
1353 NORTH CHURCH ST.
BURLINGTON, NC 27217
(336) 228-6461

CERTIFICATE OF OWNERSHIP AND DEDICATION. I (WE) HEREBY CERTIFY THAT I AM (WE ARE) THE
OWNER(S) OF THE PROPERTY SHOWN AND DESCRIBED HEREON, WHICH WAS CONVEYED TO ME (US) BY
DEED RECORDED IN BOOK_, PAGE_, AND THAT I (WE) HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGE THIS PLAT AND
ALLOTMENT TO BE MY (OUR) FREE ACT AND DEED AND HEREBY ESTABLISH THE MINIMUM BUILDING
LINES, AND DEDICATE TO PUBLIC USE AS STREETS, ALLEYS, CROSSWALKS, EASEMENTS, PARKS AND OTHER
SPACES FOREVER AS SHOWN OR INDICATED. FURTHER, I (WE) CERTIFY THAT THE PROPERTY AS SHOWN
HEREON IS WITHIN THE SUBDIVISION REGULATION JURISDICTION OF ALAMANCE COUNTY.

___________________________________________________________________
OWNER                                                               DATE

___________________________________________________________________
OWNER                                                               DATE

___________________________________________________________________
ATTEST                                                                     DATE

 NAD 83 (2011) NC STATE PLANE
GRID COORDINATES ON FIELD

LOCATED IRON PIPE
N: 839914.48'
E: 1914232.54'
ELEV: 600.18'

 NAD 83 (2011) NC STATE PLANE
GRID COORDINATES ON FIELD

LOCATED SET IRON REBAR
N: 839905.08'
E: 1914228.32'
ELEV: 599.64'

INSET A

= PROPERTY LINE

= INTERIOR PROPERTY LINE
= EXISTING RIGHT OF WAY
= PROPOSED OF WAY

= PROPOSED EASEMENT
= FLOODPLAIN  LINE

= BUFFER ZONE
= TOP OF CREEK BANK

= FOUND IRON PIPE
= SET IRON REBAR

= DEED BOOK
= PAGE
= ACRE
= SQUARE FEET

D.B.
PG.
AC
SF

=  POINT IN CREEK  (NOT MONUMENTED)

LEGEND

FIP

= PLAT BOOKP.B.

= ADJOINING PROPERTY LINE
= DRAINAGE EASEMENT

= R/W DEDICATION

= RIGHT OF WAYR/W

FIP

FIP

LINE TABLE

CURVE TABLE

= MAXIMUM OR MINIMUM BUILD LINE

N 
24

°0
6'1

6"
 E

10
.3

0' 
(T

IE
)

CERTIFICATE OF FINAL MAJOR SUBDIVISION PLAT APPROVAL AND ACCEPTANCE
OF DEDICATION

I ________________ THE CITY CLERK OF MEBANE, NORTH CAROLINA, DO CERTIFY
THAT THE CITY OF MEBANE APPROVED THIS PLAT OR MAP AND AND ACCEPTED THE
DEDICATION OF THE STREETS, EASEMENTS, RIGHTS-OF-WAY AND PUBLIC PARKS
SHOWN HEREON, BUT ASSUMES NO RESPONSIBILITY TO OPEN OR MAINTAIN THE
SAME, UNTIL IN THE OPINION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MEBANE IT IS IN
THE PUBLIC INTEREST TO DO SO.
__________ ________________                                        ________________________
DATE                                                                                   CITY CLERK

= PROPOSED ROAD CENTER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISTANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
L1

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 77°41'00" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
44.08'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L2

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 77°45'08" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.79'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L3

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 88°28'02" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.35'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L4

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 36°43'28" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
32.29'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L5

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 38°24'45" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
34.70'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L6

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 44°39'25" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.02'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L7

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 66°19'45" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L8

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 24°06'14" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
52.26'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L9

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 24°06'15" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
55.03'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L10

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 08°55'51" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
83.06'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L11

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 08°55'51" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
51.61'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L12

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 81°52'08" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
119.80'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L13

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 81°56'14" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
87.89'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L14

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 16°24'42" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.76'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L15

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 24°48'44" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
44.22'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L16

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 80°58'28" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.68'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L17

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 80°58'28" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.14'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L18

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 15°08'21" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
52.48'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L19

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 24°48'44" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
44.22'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L20

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 16°24'42" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.89'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L21

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 80°30'57" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
70.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L22

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 54°50'30" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L23

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 12°56'02" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.71'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L24

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 21°24'13" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
28.49'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L25

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 12°56'02" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.41'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L26

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 28°30'05" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.07'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L27

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 28°30'05" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.70'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L28

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 65°43'25" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
71.30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L30

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 12°07'32" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L32

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 86°35'40" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.68'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L33

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 39°04'40" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.14'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L34

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 50°55'20" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHORD BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHORD LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
RADIUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 04°12'01" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
144.34'

AutoCAD SHX Text
205.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C2

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 22°26'43" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.46'

AutoCAD SHX Text
175.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C3

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 59°33'07" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
31.79'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C4

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 58°25'30" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.84'

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C5

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 54°49'23" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
32.47'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C6

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 76°13'44" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C7

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 16°13'44" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C8

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 46°34'53" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
54.19'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C9

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 80°21'17" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
34.62'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C10

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 77°34'16" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
38.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
80.05'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C11

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 44°57'09" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C12

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 12°02'06" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.95'

AutoCAD SHX Text
175.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C13

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 20°06'19" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.66'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C14

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 53°50'48" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
48.14'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C15

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 71°01'39" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
44.39'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C16

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 15°29'47" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
48.76'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C17

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 46°05'19" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
53.59'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C18

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 39°14'57" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
44.28'

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C19

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 04°21'36" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.03'

AutoCAD SHX Text
125.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C20

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 16°46'09" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
34.98'

AutoCAD SHX Text
125.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C21

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 20°37'10" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
37.29'

AutoCAD SHX Text
255.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C22

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 00°00'27" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
144.16'

AutoCAD SHX Text
255.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C24

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 05°02'00" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.19'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C25

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 23°30'49" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.92'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C26

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 75°07'59" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.42'

AutoCAD SHX Text
49.98'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C27

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 83°51'27" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.79'

AutoCAD SHX Text
49.99'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C28

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 21°00'53" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.32'

AutoCAD SHX Text
53.63'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C29

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 29°30'45" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.74'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1"=50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
NAD 83 (2011)

AutoCAD SHX Text
MBL



 P a g e  | 1 

AGENDA ITEM #4C 
SUB 22-05 
Final Subdivision Plat -  
Tupelo Junction, Phase 1   
REAPPROVAL 

Presenter 
Ashley Ownbey, Interim Development Director 

Applicant 
Lebanon Road 3, LLC 
c/o James Parker, Jr. 
320 Executive Court 
Hillsborough, NC  27278 

Public Hearing 
Yes  No  

Final Plat  

 

Property 
Tupelo Junction, 
Mebane, Orange 
Co. 

GPIN 
9825498941 

Proposed Zoning 
N/A 

Current Zoning 
R-12(CD) 

Size 
+/-21.104 ac 

Surrounding 
Zoning 
R-20, R-12, R-
12(CD), R-10, & R-8 

Surrounding Land 
Uses 
Park, Vacant, 
Single-Family & 
Townhome 
Residential 

Utilities 
Provided by 
Developer 

Floodplain 
Yes 

Watershed 
Yes 

City Limits 
Yes  



A g e n d a  I t e m  c o n t i n u e d   P a g e  | 2 

 

Summary 
Lebanon Road 3, LLC, c/o James Parker, Jr., is requesting approval of the Final Plat for the major 
subdivision “Tupelo Junction, Phase 1” (approved by the Mebane City Council for rezoning to R-12(CD) 
08/03/20). This Final Plat is for a +/-21.104-acre area and will create 20 single family lots totaling +/-
3.724; +/-15.207 ac of open space and recreation area internal to development (including the primary 
amenity area and a stormwater control measure); and +/-1,461 linear feet and +/-2.173 ac of public right 
of way. This plat will also dedicate an access and maintenance easement for the upkeep of “Stagecoach 
Rock”, near Lebanon Road, by the Homeowners Association. 
 
The Technical Review Committee (TRC) has reviewed the Final Plat and the applicant has revised the plan 
to reflect its comments.  All infrastructure must be completed and approved to meet the City of Mebane 
Specifications.  All infrastructure not completed shall be bonded or a letter of credit provided prior to 
recordation. 

This major subdivision plat was originally approved by the City Council at its May 2, 2022, meeting.  

Financial Impact 
The developer has extended utilities at his own expense.  

Recommendation 
Staff recommends approval of the Final Plat. 

Suggested Motion 
Motion to approve the final plat as presented.   

Attachments 
1. Final Plat  

 
 



TS TS R
H

1"
=5

0'

O
W

N
ER

'S
 A

D
D

R
ES

S 

C
LI

EN
T'

S 
AD

D
R

ES
S 

IT
 IS

 A
 V

IO
LA

TI
O

N
 O

F 
LA

W
 F

O
R

 A
N

Y 
PE

R
SO

N
,

U
N

LE
SS

 A
C

TI
N

G
 U

N
D

ER
 T

H
E 

D
IR

EC
TI

O
N

 O
F

LI
C

EN
SE

D
 A

R
C

H
IT

EC
T,

 P
R

O
FE

SS
IO

N
AL

EN
G

IN
EE

R
,  

LA
N

D
SC

AP
E 

AR
C

H
IT

EC
T,

   
O

R
LA

N
D

 S
U

R
VE

YO
R

 T
O

 A
LT

ER
 A

N
Y 

IT
EM

 O
N

TH
IS

 D
O

C
U

M
EN

T 
IN

 A
N

Y 
W

AY
. A

N
Y 

LI
C

EN
SE

E
W

H
O

 A
LT

ER
S 

TH
IS

 D
O

C
U

M
EN

T 
IS

 R
EQ

U
IR

ED
BY

 L
AW

 T
O

 A
FF

IX
 H

IS
 O

R
 H

ER
 S

EA
L 

AN
D

 T
H

E
N

O
TA

TI
O

N
 "A

LT
ER

ED
 B

Y"
 F

O
LL

O
W

ED
 B

Y 
H

IS
O

R
 H

ER
 S

IG
N

AT
U

R
E 

AN
D

 S
PE

C
IF

IC
D

ES
C

R
IP

TI
O

N
 O

F 
TH

E 
AL

TE
R

AT
IO

N
S.

C
O

PY
R

IG
H

T 
   

   
 2

02
2

D
R

AW
IN

G
 A

LT
ER

AT
IO

N

SU
M

M
ITC

D
ES

IG
N

 A
N

D
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
IN

G

PR
O

JE
C

T 
EN

G
IN

EE
R

/A
R

C
H

IT
EC

T

PR
O

JE
C

T 
M

AN
AG

ER

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y

6 5 4 23 1

SC
AL

E
0

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

D
AT

E
BY

C
re

a
ti

v
e

ly
 I

n
sp

ir
e

d
 -

 T
e

c
h

n
ic

a
ll

y
  

E
x

e
c

u
te

d

Li
ce

ns
e 

#:
 P

-0
33

9
32

0 
Ex

ec
ut

iv
e 

C
ou

rt
H

ills
bo

ro
ug

h,
 N

C
 2

72
78

-8
55

1
Vo

ic
e:

 (9
19

) 7
32

-3
88

3 
   

 F
ax

: (
91

9)
 7

32
-6

67
6 

w
w

w
.s

um
m

itd
e.

co
m

FI
N

A
L

 P
L

A
T

 F
O

R

T
U

PE
L

O
 J

U
N

C
T

IO
N

C
H

E
E

K
S 

T
W

P.
, O

R
A

N
G

E
 C

O
., 

N
O

R
T

H
 C

A
R

O
L

IN
A

C
IT

Y
 O

F 
M

E
B

A
N

E
PR

O
PE

R
T

Y
 A

S 
D

E
SC

R
IB

E
D

 I
N

 D
E

E
D

 B
O

O
K

 6
70

4,
 P

A
G

E
 4

42
ST

A
N

D
IN

G
 I

N
 T

H
E

 N
A

M
E

 O
F

L
E

B
A

N
O

N
 R

O
A

D
 3

, L
L

C

SHEET 1 OF 4 

DRAWING NO.

PROJECT NO.

19-0185_PH1

19-0185

CERTIFICATE OF OWNERSHIP AND DEDICATION

 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA

ORANGE COUNTY

CERTIFICATE OF PURPOSE OF PLAT

PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY WATERSHED

STATEMENT

‘

’

CERTIFICATE OF FINAL MAJOR SUBDIVISION

PLAT APPROVAL AND ACCEPTANCE OF

DEDICATION

CERTIFICATE OF OF SURVEY AND ACCURACY

CERTIFICATE OF APPROVAL FOR RECORDING  IN

PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY WATERSHED

SITE SUMMARY

Not for Recordation, Conveyance or Sales
PRELIMINARY PLAT



FO FO FO FO FO FO FO FO FO FO

1

11

8

9

10

13

12

5

16

14

15

18

17

19

20

7

6

4

2

3

PRIVATE RECREATION AREA #1

PRIVATE RECREATION AREA #2

M
ILL CREEK

1"
=5

0'

O
W

N
ER

'S
 A

D
D

R
ES

S 

C
LI

EN
T'

S 
AD

D
R

ES
S 

IT
 IS

 A
 V

IO
LA

TI
O

N
 O

F 
LA

W
 F

O
R

 A
N

Y 
PE

R
SO

N
,

U
N

LE
SS

 A
C

TI
N

G
 U

N
D

ER
 T

H
E 

D
IR

EC
TI

O
N

 O
F

LI
C

EN
SE

D
 A

R
C

H
IT

EC
T,

 P
R

O
FE

SS
IO

N
AL

EN
G

IN
EE

R
,  

LA
N

D
SC

AP
E 

AR
C

H
IT

EC
T,

   
O

R
LA

N
D

 S
U

R
VE

YO
R

 T
O

 A
LT

ER
 A

N
Y 

IT
EM

 O
N

TH
IS

 D
O

C
U

M
EN

T 
IN

 A
N

Y 
W

AY
. A

N
Y 

LI
C

EN
SE

E
W

H
O

 A
LT

ER
S 

TH
IS

 D
O

C
U

M
EN

T 
IS

 R
EQ

U
IR

ED
BY

 L
AW

 T
O

 A
FF

IX
 H

IS
 O

R
 H

ER
 S

EA
L 

AN
D

 T
H

E
N

O
TA

TI
O

N
 "A

LT
ER

ED
 B

Y"
 F

O
LL

O
W

ED
 B

Y 
H

IS
O

R
 H

ER
 S

IG
N

AT
U

R
E 

AN
D

 S
PE

C
IF

IC
D

ES
C

R
IP

TI
O

N
 O

F 
TH

E 
AL

TE
R

AT
IO

N
S.

C
O

PY
R

IG
H

T 
   

   
 2

02
2

D
R

AW
IN

G
 A

LT
ER

AT
IO

N

SU
M

M
ITC

D
ES

IG
N

 A
N

D
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
IN

G

PR
O

JE
C

T 
EN

G
IN

EE
R

/A
R

C
H

IT
EC

T

PR
O

JE
C

T 
M

AN
AG

ER

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y

6 5 4 23 1

SC
AL

E
0

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

D
AT

E
BY

1 inch =           ft.

GRAPHIC SCALE

( IN FEET )
50

C
re

a
ti

v
e

ly
 I

n
sp

ir
e

d
 -

 T
e

c
h

n
ic

a
ll

y
  

E
x

e
c

u
te

d

Li
ce

ns
e 

#:
 P

-0
33

9
32

0 
Ex

ec
ut

iv
e 

C
ou

rt
H

ills
bo

ro
ug

h,
 N

C
 2

72
78

-8
55

1
Vo

ic
e:

 (9
19

) 7
32

-3
88

3 
   

 F
ax

: (
91

9)
 7

32
-6

67
6 

w
w

w
.s

um
m

itd
e.

co
m

FI
N

A
L

 P
L

A
T

 F
O

R

T
U

PE
L

O
 J

U
N

C
T

IO
N

C
H

E
E

K
S 

T
W

P.
, O

R
A

N
G

E
 C

O
., 

N
O

R
T

H
 C

A
R

O
L

IN
A

C
IT

Y
 O

F 
M

E
B

A
N

E
PR

O
PE

R
T

Y
 A

S 
D

E
SC

R
IB

E
D

 I
N

 D
E

E
D

 B
O

O
K

 6
70

4,
 P

A
G

E
 4

42
ST

A
N

D
IN

G
 I

N
 T

H
E

 N
A

M
E

 O
F

L
E

B
A

N
O

N
 R

O
A

D
 3

, L
L

C

SHEET 2 OF 4 

DRAWING NO.

PROJECT NO.

19-0185_PH1

19-0185

TS TS R
H

Not for Recordation, Conveyance or Sales
PRELIMINARY PLAT



FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO
1

1

1

8

9

1

0

1

3

1

2

5

1

6

1

4

1

5

1

8

1

7

1

9

2

0

7

6

4

2

3

P

R

I
V

A

T

E

 
R

E

C

R

E

A

T

I
O

N

 
A

R

E

A

 
#

1

P

R

I
V

A

T

E

 
R

E

C

R

E

A

T

I
O

N

 
A

R

E

A

 
#

2

MILL CREEK

19-0185
19-0185_PH1

1"
=1

00
'

FI
N

A
L

 P
L

A
T

 F
O

R

T
U

PE
L

O
 J

U
N

C
T

IO
N

C
H

E
E

K
S 

T
W

P.
, O

R
A

N
G

E
 C

O
., 

N
O

R
T

H
 C

A
R

O
L

IN
A

C
IT

Y
 O

F 
M

E
B

A
N

E
PR

O
PE

R
T

Y
 A

S 
D

E
SC

R
IB

E
D

 I
N

 D
E

E
D

 B
O

O
K

 6
70

4,
 P

A
G

E
 4

42
ST

A
N

D
IN

G
 I

N
 T

H
E

 N
A

M
E

 O
F

L
E

B
A

N
O

N
 R

O
A

D
 3

, L
L

C

SHEET 3 OF 4 

O
W

N
ER

'S
 A

D
D

R
ES

S 

C
LI

EN
T'

S 
AD

D
R

ES
S 

IT
 IS

 A
 V

IO
LA

TI
O

N
 O

F 
LA

W
 F

O
R

 A
N

Y 
PE

R
SO

N
,

U
N

LE
SS

 A
C

TI
N

G
 U

N
D

ER
 T

H
E 

D
IR

EC
TI

O
N

 O
F

LI
C

EN
SE

D
 A

R
C

H
IT

EC
T,

 P
R

O
FE

SS
IO

N
AL

EN
G

IN
EE

R
,  

LA
N

D
SC

AP
E 

AR
C

H
IT

EC
T,

   
O

R
LA

N
D

 S
U

R
VE

YO
R

 T
O

 A
LT

ER
 A

N
Y 

IT
EM

 O
N

TH
IS

 D
O

C
U

M
EN

T 
IN

 A
N

Y 
W

AY
. A

N
Y 

LI
C

EN
SE

E
W

H
O

 A
LT

ER
S 

TH
IS

 D
O

C
U

M
EN

T 
IS

 R
EQ

U
IR

ED
BY

 L
AW

 T
O

 A
FF

IX
 H

IS
 O

R
 H

ER
 S

EA
L 

AN
D

 T
H

E
N

O
TA

TI
O

N
 "A

LT
ER

ED
 B

Y"
 F

O
LL

O
W

ED
 B

Y 
H

IS
O

R
 H

ER
 S

IG
N

AT
U

R
E 

AN
D

 S
PE

C
IF

IC
D

ES
C

R
IP

TI
O

N
 O

F 
TH

E 
AL

TE
R

AT
IO

N
S.

C
O

PY
R

IG
H

T 
   

   
 2

02
2

D
R

AW
IN

G
 A

LT
ER

AT
IO

N

SU
M

M
ITC

D
ES

IG
N

 A
N

D
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
IN

G

DRAWING NO.

PROJECT NO.

PR
O

JE
C

T 
EN

G
IN

EE
R

/A
R

C
H

IT
EC

T

PR
O

JE
C

T 
M

AN
AG

ER

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y

6 5 4 23 1

SC
AL

E
0

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

D
AT

E
BY

1 inch =           ft.

GRAPHIC SCALE

( IN FEET )
100

C
re

a
ti

v
e

ly
 I

n
sp

ir
e

d
 -

 T
e

c
h

n
ic

a
ll

y
  

E
x

e
c

u
te

d

Li
ce

ns
e 

#:
 P

-0
33

9
32

0 
Ex

ec
ut

iv
e 

C
ou

rt
H

ills
bo

ro
ug

h,
 N

C
 2

72
78

-8
55

1
Vo

ic
e:

 (9
19

) 7
32

-3
88

3 
   

 F
ax

: (
91

9)
 7

32
-6

67
6 

w
w

w
.s

um
m

itd
e.

co
m

TS TS R
H

Not for Recordation, Conveyance or Sales
PRELIMINARY PLAT



1

11

8

9

10

13

12

5

16

14

15

18

17

19

20

7

6

4

2

3

PRIVATE RECREATION AREA #1

PRIVATE RECREATION AREA #2

M
ILL CREEK

O
W

N
ER

'S
 A

D
D

R
ES

S 

C
LI

EN
T'

S 
AD

D
R

ES
S 

IT
 IS

 A
 V

IO
LA

TI
O

N
 O

F 
LA

W
 F

O
R

 A
N

Y 
PE

R
SO

N
,

U
N

LE
SS

 A
C

TI
N

G
 U

N
D

ER
 T

H
E 

D
IR

EC
TI

O
N

 O
F

LI
C

EN
SE

D
 A

R
C

H
IT

EC
T,

 P
R

O
FE

SS
IO

N
AL

EN
G

IN
EE

R
,  

LA
N

D
SC

AP
E 

AR
C

H
IT

EC
T,

   
O

R
LA

N
D

 S
U

R
VE

YO
R

 T
O

 A
LT

ER
 A

N
Y 

IT
EM

 O
N

TH
IS

 D
O

C
U

M
EN

T 
IN

 A
N

Y 
W

AY
. A

N
Y 

LI
C

EN
SE

E
W

H
O

 A
LT

ER
S 

TH
IS

 D
O

C
U

M
EN

T 
IS

 R
EQ

U
IR

ED
BY

 L
AW

 T
O

 A
FF

IX
 H

IS
 O

R
 H

ER
 S

EA
L 

AN
D

 T
H

E
N

O
TA

TI
O

N
 "A

LT
ER

ED
 B

Y"
 F

O
LL

O
W

ED
 B

Y 
H

IS
O

R
 H

ER
 S

IG
N

AT
U

R
E 

AN
D

 S
PE

C
IF

IC
D

ES
C

R
IP

TI
O

N
 O

F 
TH

E 
AL

TE
R

AT
IO

N
S.

C
O

PY
R

IG
H

T 
   

   
 2

01
6

D
R

AW
IN

G
 A

LT
ER

AT
IO

N

SU
M

M
ITC

D
ES

IG
N

 A
N

D
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
IN

G

PR
O

JE
C

T 
EN

G
IN

EE
R

/A
R

C
H

IT
EC

T

PR
O

JE
C

T 
M

AN
AG

ER

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y

6 5 4 23 1

SC
AL

E
0

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

D
AT

E
BY

1 inch =           ft.

GRAPHIC SCALE

( IN FEET )
50

C
re

a
ti

v
e

ly
 I

n
sp

ir
e

d
 -

 T
e

c
h

n
ic

a
ll

y
  

E
x

e
c

u
te

d

Li
ce

ns
e 

#:
 P

-0
33

9
32

0 
Ex

ec
ut

iv
e 

C
ou

rt
H

ills
bo

ro
ug

h,
 N

C
 2

72
78

-8
55

1
Vo

ic
e:

 (9
19

) 7
32

-3
88

3 
   

 F
ax

: (
91

9)
 7

32
-6

67
6 

w
w

w
.s

um
m

itd
e.

co
m

1"
=5

0'

FI
N

A
L

 P
L

A
T

 F
O

R

T
U

PE
L

O
 J

U
N

C
T

IO
N

C
H

E
E

K
S 

T
W

P.
, O

R
A

N
G

E
 C

O
., 

N
O

R
T

H
 C

A
R

O
L

IN
A

C
IT

Y
 O

F 
M

E
B

A
N

E
PR

O
PE

R
T

Y
 A

S 
D

E
SC

R
IB

E
D

 I
N

 D
E

E
D

 B
O

O
K

 6
70

4,
 P

A
G

E
 4

42
ST

A
N

D
IN

G
 I

N
 T

H
E

 N
A

M
E

 O
F

L
E

B
A

N
O

N
 R

O
A

D
 3

, L
L

C

SHEET 4 OF 4 

DRAWING NO.

PROJECT NO.

19-0185_PH1

19-0185

TS TS R
H

Not for Recordation, Conveyance or Sales
PRELIMINARY PLAT



 

AGENDA ITEM #4D 
Petition for Voluntary Non-Contiguous  
Annexation – Summit Church  

Meeting Date 
August 1, 2022 

Presenter  
Lawson Brown, City Attorney 

Public Hearing 
Yes  No  

Summary 
Staff received a petition from Summit Church requesting voluntary non-contiguous annexation. There are 
plans to construct a church on this property. 

Background 
The applicant is requesting the described property to be annexed into Mebane’s Corporate Limits. This is a 
non-contiguous annexation containing approximately +/- 20.036 acres located on the corner of Mebane 
Oaks Road and Old Hillsborough Road in Alamance County. 

Financial Impact 
The property will be added to the ad valorem tax base for the City once the property is annexed but may 
not be subject to taxation, depending upon its tax exempt status. 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends Council’s acceptance of the petition, the Clerk’s Certificate of Sufficiency and adoption 
of a Resolution setting a date of public hearing for September 12, 2022. 

Suggested Motion 
I make a motion to accept the petition, the Clerk’s Certificate of Sufficiency and to adopt the resolution 
setting a date of public hearing for September 12, 2022. 

Attachments 
1. Petition 
2. Clerk’s Certificate of Sufficiency 
3. Map 
4. Resolution 
 

 



PETITION REQUESTING A NON-CONTIGUOUS  ANNEXATION

Annexation  Process  -  Approximately  a 2 Month  Process

1"  Month-  Submit  a Petition  for  Annexation  to the  City Council,  the Clerk  reports  to City Council  the

Sufficiency  of  the  Annexation  and the City Council  adopts  a Resolution  to set a Public  Hearing

2"  Month-  A Public  Hearing  is held and normally  that  same night,  the City Council  will adopt  an

Ordinance  to set the  effective  date as the  same or the Council  will  deny  the  request

Date:  6/28/22

To the  City Council  of the City of Mebane:

1. We the undersigned  owners  of  real property  respectfully  request  that  the area described

in Paragraph  2 below  be annexed  to the  City of Mebane.

2. The area to be annexed  is non-contiguous  to the  City of Mebane  and the boundaries  of

such territory  are as follows.

"Please include CI Description of Boundaries (Metes and Bounds) on o separate paper.

**3.  We acknowledge  that  any zoning  vested  rights  acquired  pursuant  to G.S. 160A-385.1  or

or G.S. 153A-344.1  must  be declared  and identified  on this petition.  We further

acknowledge  that  failure  to declare  such rights  on this  petition  shall result  in a termination

of vested rights previously acquired for the property. (If zonin@ vested rights are claimed,
indicate  below  and attach  proof.)

Name Address Do you  declare

vested  rights

(Yes or  No)

Signature

'/'  /I - (  2
l Todd  Ervin 2335 Presidential  Drive, Suite 114,

Durham, NC 27703
No ['='?

2.

3.

*Municipality  may wish  to require  metes  and bounds  description  or map. (Provide  2 paper  copies,  an

electronic  copy  and 3 mylars)

* *This is one possible format for zoning vested rights declaration. This langua(7e may require

modification  to reflect  the  requirements  of the municipal  zoning  vested  rights  ordinance,  if any.







RESOLUTION FIXING DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON  
QUESTION OF ANNEXATION PURSUANT TO G.S. 160A-58.2 

Annexation No. 154 

     WHEREAS, a petition requesting annexation of the non-contiguous area described 
herein has been received; and 

     WHEREAS, the Mebane City Council directed the City Clerk to investigate the sufficiency 
of the petition; and 

     WHEREAS, certification by the City Clerk as to the sufficiency of the petition has been 
made; 

     NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mebane City Council of the City of Mebane, 
North Carolina that: 

     Section 1.  A public hearing on the question of annexation of the non-contiguous area 
described herein will be held at 6:00 p.m. on September 12 2022. 

     Section 2.  The area proposed for annexation is described as follows: 

BEGINNING at a right of way monument and being located in the northern boundary line 
of Old Hillsborough Road (S.R. 2126; being a variable width public right of way and 
recorded in the Alamance County Register of Deeds, DB.3987, PG.404), said monument 
marking the southeastern corner of the property described hereinafter; thence along the 
northern boundary line of Old Hillsborough Road the following five (5) courses and 
distances: (1) South 59° 40' 47" West 113.66 feet to an existing right of way monument; 
(2) a curve to the right having a radius of 4,455.00 feet, an arc length of 184.48 feet, and a 
chord bearing and distance of South 60°51' 58" West 184.47 feet to an existing right of 
way monument; (3) South 54°05' 17" West 100.29 feet to an existing right of way 
monument; (4) a curve to the right having a radius of 4,470.00 feet, an arc length of 146.42 
feet, and a chord bearing and distance of South 64°15' 50" West 146.41 feet to a computed 
point; and (5) a curve to the right having a radius of 12,652.08 feet, an arc length of 129.58 
feet, and a chord bearing and distance of South 65°29' 45" West 129.58 feet to an existing 
1/2” rebar at the southeast corner of the Longmeadow Subdivision Phase One (PB.56 PG. 
136); thence leaving the northern boundary line of Old Hillsborough Road and following 
the eastern line of the Longmeadow Subdivision Phase One the following nine (9) courses 
and distances: (1) North 27°38' 10" West 207.86 feet to an existing 1/2” rebar; (2) North 
3°02' 59" East  feet to a computed point; (3) North 32°52' 30" West 64.72 feet to a 
computed point; (4) North 51°28' 34" West 73.15 feet to an existing rebar; (5) North 46°36' 
16" West 161.77 feet to a computed point; (6) North 52°44' 55" West 205.15 feet to a 
computed point; (7) North 33°59' 19" West 56.48 feet to a computed point; (8) North 
39°34' 56" West 99.97 feet to a computed point; and (9) North 52°56' 22" West 197.18 
feet to a rebar in a concrete monument marking the northeastern corner of the 
Longmeadow Subdivision Phase One and also being in the southern property line of the 
property owned, now or formerly, by Mebane Housing LLC (GPIN: 9814-92-1385, DB.2108 
PG.524, PB.58 PG.82); thence running with the southern property line of Mebane Housing 
LLC, North 76°12' 26" East 54.21 feet to a computed point at the southwest property 
corner of the property owned, now or formerly, by Evolve Mebane Oaks, LLC (GPIN: 9824-
02-0553, DB.4265 PG.860, PB.70 PG.349); thence running with the southern property line 
of Evolve Mebane Oaks, LLC, North 76°19' 19" East 568.23 feet to an existing 1” pipe at the 
southwest property corner of the property owned, now or formerly, by Agape Baptist 
Church (GPIN: 9824-02-4349, DB.433 PG.844, PB.82 PG.26); thence running with the 
southern property line of Agape Baptist Church, North 88°14' 13" East 486.71 feet to an 
existing pipe with cap at the northwest corner of the property owned, now or formerly, by 
City of Mebane (GPIN: 9824-02-7111, DB.2951 PG.334, PB.76 PG.89, PB.74 PG.106); 
thence running with the property owned by City of Mebane the following two (2) courses 



and distances: (1) South 5°28' 26" East 247.05 feet to an existing 1” pipe; (2) North 88°14' 
21" East 273.07 feet to a computed point in the western boundary line of Mebane Oaks 
Road (S.R. 1007; being a variable width public right of way and recorded in the Alamance 
County Register of Deeds, DB.3987, PG.404); thence along the western boundary line of 
Mebane Oaks Road the following five (5) courses and distances: (1) a curve to the right 
having a radius of 1,210.00 feet, an arc length of 139.81 feet, and a chord bearing and 
distance of South 1°47' 36" East 139.73 feet to a computed point; (2) South 1° 31' 01" West 
12.69 feet to an existing right of way monument; (3) South 12° 56' 44" West 125.48 feet 
to an existing right of way monument; (4) South 4° 04' 01" West 225.00 feet to an existing 
right of way monument; and (5) South 33° 17' 18" West 81.55 feet to the Point of 
BEGINNING, and containing 20.036 acres more or less; as depicted on a map drawn by Eric 
S. Smith, PLS NC #L-5259 and labeled “Annexation Plat for the Summit Church Homestead 
Heights Baptist Church Inc.” dated June 2022. 

     Section 3.  Notice of the public hearing shall be published once in the Mebane 
Enterprise, a newspaper having general circulation in the City of Mebane, at least ten (10) 
days prior to the date of the public hearing. 
 
        CITY OF MEBANE 

 
        _______________________ 
        Ed Hooks, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

_________________________ 
Stephanie W. Shaw, City Clerk 
 



 

AGENDA ITEM #4E 
Petition for Voluntary Non-Contiguous  
Annexation – Sandra Clark- W. Ten Road  

Meeting Date 
August 1, 2022 

Presenter  
Lawson Brown, City Attorney 

Public Hearing 
Yes  No  

Summary 
Staff received a petition from Sandra Clark, Trustee for the Katherine Louise Kirkpatrick Estate, requesting 
voluntary non-contiguous annexation.  

Background 
The applicant is requesting the described property to be annexed into Mebane’s Corporate Limits. This is a 
non-contiguous annexation containing approximately +/- 73.978 acres located on W. Ten Road in Orange 
County. 

Financial Impact 
The property will be added to the ad valorem tax base for the City once the property is annexed. 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends Council’s acceptance of the petition, the Clerk’s Certificate of Sufficiency, and adoption 
of a Resolution setting a date of public hearing for September 12, 2022. 

Suggested Motion 
I make a motion to accept the petition, the Clerk’s Certificate of Sufficiency, and to adopt the resolution 
setting a date of public hearing for September 12, 2022. 

Attachments 
1. Petition 
2. Clerk’s Certificate of Sufficiency 
3. Map 
4. Resolution 
 

 



PETITION REQUESTING A NON-CONTIGUOUS ANNEXATION 

Annexation Process – Approximately a 2 Month Process 

1st Month- Submit a Petition for Annexation to the City Council, the Clerk reports to City Council the 
Sufficiency of the Annexation and the City Council adopts a Resolution to set a Public Hearing  
 
2nd Month- A Public Hearing is held and normally that same night, the City Council will adopt an 
Ordinance to set the effective date as the same or the Council will deny the request  

 
 

Date: _______________ 

     To the City Council of the City of Mebane: 

     1.  We the undersigned owners of real property respectfully request that the area described 
           in Paragraph 2 below be annexed to the City of Mebane. 

     2.  The area to be annexed is non-contiguous to the City of Mebane and the boundaries of 
           such territory are as follows: 

*Please include a Description of Boundaries (Metes and Bounds) on a separate paper. 

   **3.  We acknowledge that any zoning vested rights acquired pursuant to G.S. 160A-385.1 or 
           or G.S. 153A-344.1 must be declared and identified on this petition. We further 
           acknowledge that failure to declare such rights on this petition shall result in a termination 
           of vested rights previously acquired for the property.  (If zoning vested rights are claimed, 
           indicate below and attach proof.)  

Name Address Do you declare 
vested rights 
(Yes or No) 

Signature 

1.    

2.    

3.    

                            
  

*Municipality may wish to require metes and bounds description or map. (Provide 2 paper copies, an 
electronic copy and 3 mylars) 

**This is one possible format for zoning vested rights declaration.  This language may require 
modification to reflect the requirements of the municipal zoning vested rights ordinance, if any. 

 

No0 West Ten Rd.
Efland, NC 27243
(Tax parcel# 9844452283)

Sandra M. Clark,
Trustee for Katherine 
Louise Kirkpatrick Estate

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8FE99978-58C8-4E51-AA30-7219F0EF3230

4/5/2022





 G
:\P

ro
je

ct
s\

20
22

\G
22

00
7 

- O
ra

ng
e 

C
ou

nt
y 

W
ar

eh
ou

se
 B

ui
ld

in
g\

D
W

G
\G

22
00

7_
BN

D
Y.

dw
g 

 M
ar

 1
4,

  2
02

2 
- 6

:4
0a

m

5410 OLD POOLE RD
RALEIGH, NC 27610
T 919.380.8750

FIRM LICENSE #: C-1051
www.stewartinc.com

PROJECT #: G22007

NORTH

Vicinity Map:

SANDRA M CLARK
TRUSTEE

PIN 9844452283
CHEEKS TOWNSHIP, MEBANE

ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
DATE: 03-14-2022      SCALE: 1" = 200'

PREPARED FOR: LANDMARK - PROJECT SKYWALKER

NON-CONTIGUOUS
VOLUNTARY

ANNEXATION PLAT
(SATELLITE) FOR

CITY OF MEBANE:

1 of 1

NORTH
N.T.S.

Title:

Revisions:
No. Date Description
-- -- --

G22007
03-14-2022

JMS
AMW

Sheet:Project number:
Date:
Drawn by:
Checked by:

GENERAL NOTES SURVEYOR CERTIFICATION

X

REFERNCES

NORTH
NAD83(2011)

0 100 200 400

SCALE: 1" = 200'

NC GRID

X

PLANNING DIRECTOR CERTIFICATION

SITE

LEGEND

PRELIMINARY PLAT

P

R

E

L

I

M

I

N

A

R

Y

 

P

L

A

T

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEPHANIE LANE 50' PRIVATE R/W PB 56, PG. 18

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F SANDRA M. CLARK TRUSTEE DB 85-E, PG. 1685 DB 674, PG. 711 TRACT 2 - PB 74, PG. 18 PIN 9844452283 0 WEST TEN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F ORANGE COUNTY NORTH CAROLINA DB 6169, PG. 541 TRACT ONE - PB 116, PG. 22 PIN 9844255464 0 WEST TEN RD ZONING=EDB-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F ALLEN M. BELL DB 5367, PG. 595 LOT 2R - PB 110, PG. 29 PIN 9844556568  305 STEPHANIE LN ZONING=R1

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIABLE WIDTH PUBLIC R/W  WIDTH CONTROLLED ACCESS PROJECT NO. 8.1457602 SHEET 5, 6 AND 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F SEVEN MILE FARM LLC DB 2037, PG. 91 TRACT B - PB 83, PG. 147 PIN 9844627843 0 WEST TEN RD ZONING=AR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SR 1137

AutoCAD SHX Text
OAK STUMP IS CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'O/S

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O.B. 4" CONC. MON. W/ 2" BRASS PLATE 846,280.548' 1,943,004.240'

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIRE R/W FENCE ALONG PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAINTED TREES ALONG PROPERTY LINE BOUNDARY LINE AGREEMENT DB 229, PG. 1920 & PB 19, PG. 02

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F SANDRA M. CLARK TRUSTEE DB 85-E, PG. 1685 DB 674, PG. 711 TRACT 1 - PB 74, PG. 18 PIN 9844433644 0 WEST TEN RD ZONING=AR

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F JOHN W. BANNON &  JENNIFER S. BANNON DB 6730, PG. 1859 TRACT TWO - PB 116, PG. 22 PIN 9844245177 1822 BUSHY COOK RD ZONING=AR & R1

AutoCAD SHX Text
60' PUBLIC R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST TEN ROAD - SR 1144

AutoCAD SHX Text
60' PUBLIC R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
NGS MARSH (BROKEN)

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUSHY COOK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F JODY JOANE BELL DB 5367, PG. 597 LOT 3R - PB 110, PG. 29 PIN 9844457993 303 STEPHANIE LN ZONING=R1

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F RALPH MICHAEL BOLEY & TRACEY R. BOLEY DB 996, PG. 446 PIN 9844552798 321 STEPHANIE LN ZONING=R1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3,222,460 SF / 73.978 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
PB 74, PG. 18

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW CORPORATE LIMITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
-OUT- -IN-

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW CORPORATE LIMITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
-OUT- -IN-

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW CORPORATE LIMITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
-OUT- -IN-

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW CORPORATE LIMITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
-OUT- -IN-

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW CORPORATE LIMITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
-IN- -OUT-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-IN- -OUT-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-OUT- -IN-

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERSTATE 85 INTERSTATE 40

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERSTATE 85 INTERSTATE 40

AutoCAD SHX Text
NGS MOON (BROKEN)

AutoCAD SHX Text
-OUT- -IN-

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRF 3/4" 844,366.131' 1,942,983.967'

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. STREAM CL ORANGE COUNTY GIS (NO SURVEY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
POSSIBLE UTILITY EASEMENT FOR OVERHEAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONING=EDB-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONING=R1

AutoCAD SHX Text
MTC OVERLAY DISTRICT

AutoCAD SHX Text
1. THIS SURVEY REPRESENTS THE EXISTING CONDITIONS / TOPOGRAPHY THE PROPERTY CURRENTLY OWNED BY SANDRA M CLARK THIS SURVEY REPRESENTS THE EXISTING CONDITIONS / TOPOGRAPHY THE PROPERTY CURRENTLY OWNED BY SANDRA M CLARK TRUSTEE, PIN 9844452283, TRACT 2 OF PLAT BOOK 74, PAGE 18. THIS SURVEY WAS PERFORMED WITHOUT THE BENEFIT OF A TITLE REPORT AND THEREFORE ALL ENCUMBRANCES UPON THE PROPERTY MAY NOT BE SHOWN. 2. THE PROPERTY LINES SHOWN HEREON HAVE BEEN CONFIRMED FROM A FIELD SURVEY BY STEWART ENGINEERING. PROPERTY LINES THE PROPERTY LINES SHOWN HEREON HAVE BEEN CONFIRMED FROM A FIELD SURVEY BY STEWART ENGINEERING. PROPERTY LINES SHOWN TAKEN FROM RECOVERED MONUMENTATION AND REFERENCES LISTED. 3. HORIZONTAL DATUM IS NAD 83 (2011) TIED TO EXISTING NGS MONUMENTS: NGS MARSH - N: 844,292.0350 E: 1,942,823.7910 HORIZONTAL DATUM IS NAD 83 (2011) TIED TO EXISTING NGS MONUMENTS: NGS MARSH - N: 844,292.0350 E: 1,942,823.7910 EL: 646.22 - TOP BROKEN, NGS BLUE - N: 846,509.8460 E: 1,941,730.7300 EL: 677.37 - GOOD CONDITION & NGS MOON - N: 846,215.5691 E: 1,943,686.7455 EL: 664.58 - TOP BROKEN. INITIAL STATE PLANE POSITIONS FOR THIS SURVEY WERE SCALED FROM GRID TO GROUND FROM A PROJECT LOCATION OF N:845313.692 E:1943726.65, USING A COMBINED FACTOR OF 0.99994822. 4. ALL DISTANCES ARE IN U.S. SURVEY FEET. AREA COMPUTED BY COORDINATE METHOD. ALL DISTANCES ARE IN U.S. SURVEY FEET. AREA COMPUTED BY COORDINATE METHOD. 5. UTILITIES SHOWN HEREON ARE BASED ON ABOVE-GROUND VISIBLE EVIDENCE AND UTILITY DESIGNATION / MARKING SERVICES UTILITIES SHOWN HEREON ARE BASED ON ABOVE-GROUND VISIBLE EVIDENCE AND UTILITY DESIGNATION / MARKING SERVICES (LEVEL B) PERFORMED BY STEWART FOR THIS SURVEY. CONTRACTOR SHALL FIELD VERIFY THE LOCATION OF ALL UTILITIES BEFORE COMMENCING CONSTRUCTION. FORCE MAIN LOCATED ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF WEST TEN ROAD WAS UNTRACEABLE AND SHOWN AS QLC (SUE QUALITY LEVEL C). 6. THE SUBJECT PROPERTY LIES IN ZONE X (AREA DETERMINED TO BE OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE AND FUTURE CONDITIONS THE SUBJECT PROPERTY LIES IN ZONE X (AREA DETERMINED TO BE OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE AND FUTURE CONDITIONS 1% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOODPLAIN). BASED ON THE FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP NUMBER 3710984400K DATED 11-17-2017. FRIS.NC.GOV. 7. UNABLE TO LOCATE UTILITY EASEMENT DEED FOR OVERHEAD ELECTRIC LINES. UNABLE TO LOCATE UTILITY EASEMENT DEED FOR OVERHEAD ELECTRIC LINES. 8. THE WATER FEATURE ON ADJOINING WESTERN PROPERTY SHALL BE REQUIRED TO COMPLY WITH APPLICABLE STREAM BUFFER THE WATER FEATURE ON ADJOINING WESTERN PROPERTY SHALL BE REQUIRED TO COMPLY WITH APPLICABLE STREAM BUFFER STANDARDS FOR ORANGE COUNTY AS DETAILED IN SECTION 6.13 OF THE COUNTY UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE (UDO), UNLESS ANNEXED BY THE CITY OF MEBANE. IF ANNEXED, CITY OF MEBANE STREAM BUFFER REQUIREMENTS SHALL BE OBSERVED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
I, JORDAN M. SCHOFF, PLS, CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAT WAS DRAWN UNDER MY SUPERVISION FROM  JORDAN M. SCHOFF, PLS, CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAT WAS DRAWN UNDER MY SUPERVISION FROM JORDAN M. SCHOFF, PLS, CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAT WAS DRAWN UNDER MY SUPERVISION FROM  M. SCHOFF, PLS, CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAT WAS DRAWN UNDER MY SUPERVISION FROM M. SCHOFF, PLS, CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAT WAS DRAWN UNDER MY SUPERVISION FROM  SCHOFF, PLS, CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAT WAS DRAWN UNDER MY SUPERVISION FROM SCHOFF, PLS, CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAT WAS DRAWN UNDER MY SUPERVISION FROM  PLS, CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAT WAS DRAWN UNDER MY SUPERVISION FROM PLS, CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAT WAS DRAWN UNDER MY SUPERVISION FROM , CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAT WAS DRAWN UNDER MY SUPERVISION FROM  CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAT WAS DRAWN UNDER MY SUPERVISION FROM CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAT WAS DRAWN UNDER MY SUPERVISION FROM  THAT THIS PLAT WAS DRAWN UNDER MY SUPERVISION FROM THAT THIS PLAT WAS DRAWN UNDER MY SUPERVISION FROM  THIS PLAT WAS DRAWN UNDER MY SUPERVISION FROM THIS PLAT WAS DRAWN UNDER MY SUPERVISION FROM  PLAT WAS DRAWN UNDER MY SUPERVISION FROM PLAT WAS DRAWN UNDER MY SUPERVISION FROM  WAS DRAWN UNDER MY SUPERVISION FROM WAS DRAWN UNDER MY SUPERVISION FROM  DRAWN UNDER MY SUPERVISION FROM DRAWN UNDER MY SUPERVISION FROM  UNDER MY SUPERVISION FROM UNDER MY SUPERVISION FROM  MY SUPERVISION FROM MY SUPERVISION FROM  SUPERVISION FROM SUPERVISION FROM  FROM FROM AN ACTUAL SURVEY MADE UNDER MY SUPERVISION (DEED DESCRIPTION RECORDED AS SHOWN, etc);  ACTUAL SURVEY MADE UNDER MY SUPERVISION (DEED DESCRIPTION RECORDED AS SHOWN, etc); ACTUAL SURVEY MADE UNDER MY SUPERVISION (DEED DESCRIPTION RECORDED AS SHOWN, etc);  SURVEY MADE UNDER MY SUPERVISION (DEED DESCRIPTION RECORDED AS SHOWN, etc); SURVEY MADE UNDER MY SUPERVISION (DEED DESCRIPTION RECORDED AS SHOWN, etc);  MADE UNDER MY SUPERVISION (DEED DESCRIPTION RECORDED AS SHOWN, etc); MADE UNDER MY SUPERVISION (DEED DESCRIPTION RECORDED AS SHOWN, etc);  UNDER MY SUPERVISION (DEED DESCRIPTION RECORDED AS SHOWN, etc); UNDER MY SUPERVISION (DEED DESCRIPTION RECORDED AS SHOWN, etc);  MY SUPERVISION (DEED DESCRIPTION RECORDED AS SHOWN, etc); MY SUPERVISION (DEED DESCRIPTION RECORDED AS SHOWN, etc);  SUPERVISION (DEED DESCRIPTION RECORDED AS SHOWN, etc); SUPERVISION (DEED DESCRIPTION RECORDED AS SHOWN, etc);  (DEED DESCRIPTION RECORDED AS SHOWN, etc); (DEED DESCRIPTION RECORDED AS SHOWN, etc);  DESCRIPTION RECORDED AS SHOWN, etc); DESCRIPTION RECORDED AS SHOWN, etc);  RECORDED AS SHOWN, etc); RECORDED AS SHOWN, etc);  AS SHOWN, etc); AS SHOWN, etc);  SHOWN, etc); SHOWN, etc);  etc); etc); THAT THE BOUNDARIES NOT SURVEYED ARE CLEARLY INDICATED AS DRAWN FROM INFORMATION  THE BOUNDARIES NOT SURVEYED ARE CLEARLY INDICATED AS DRAWN FROM INFORMATION THE BOUNDARIES NOT SURVEYED ARE CLEARLY INDICATED AS DRAWN FROM INFORMATION  BOUNDARIES NOT SURVEYED ARE CLEARLY INDICATED AS DRAWN FROM INFORMATION BOUNDARIES NOT SURVEYED ARE CLEARLY INDICATED AS DRAWN FROM INFORMATION  NOT SURVEYED ARE CLEARLY INDICATED AS DRAWN FROM INFORMATION NOT SURVEYED ARE CLEARLY INDICATED AS DRAWN FROM INFORMATION  SURVEYED ARE CLEARLY INDICATED AS DRAWN FROM INFORMATION SURVEYED ARE CLEARLY INDICATED AS DRAWN FROM INFORMATION  ARE CLEARLY INDICATED AS DRAWN FROM INFORMATION ARE CLEARLY INDICATED AS DRAWN FROM INFORMATION  CLEARLY INDICATED AS DRAWN FROM INFORMATION CLEARLY INDICATED AS DRAWN FROM INFORMATION  INDICATED AS DRAWN FROM INFORMATION INDICATED AS DRAWN FROM INFORMATION  AS DRAWN FROM INFORMATION AS DRAWN FROM INFORMATION  DRAWN FROM INFORMATION DRAWN FROM INFORMATION  FROM INFORMATION FROM INFORMATION  INFORMATION INFORMATION FOUND IN REFERENCES LISTED HEREON; THAT THE RATIO OF PRECISION AS CALCULATED IS  IN REFERENCES LISTED HEREON; THAT THE RATIO OF PRECISION AS CALCULATED IS IN REFERENCES LISTED HEREON; THAT THE RATIO OF PRECISION AS CALCULATED IS  REFERENCES LISTED HEREON; THAT THE RATIO OF PRECISION AS CALCULATED IS REFERENCES LISTED HEREON; THAT THE RATIO OF PRECISION AS CALCULATED IS  LISTED HEREON; THAT THE RATIO OF PRECISION AS CALCULATED IS LISTED HEREON; THAT THE RATIO OF PRECISION AS CALCULATED IS  HEREON; THAT THE RATIO OF PRECISION AS CALCULATED IS HEREON; THAT THE RATIO OF PRECISION AS CALCULATED IS  THAT THE RATIO OF PRECISION AS CALCULATED IS THAT THE RATIO OF PRECISION AS CALCULATED IS  THE RATIO OF PRECISION AS CALCULATED IS THE RATIO OF PRECISION AS CALCULATED IS  RATIO OF PRECISION AS CALCULATED IS RATIO OF PRECISION AS CALCULATED IS  OF PRECISION AS CALCULATED IS OF PRECISION AS CALCULATED IS  PRECISION AS CALCULATED IS PRECISION AS CALCULATED IS  AS CALCULATED IS AS CALCULATED IS  CALCULATED IS CALCULATED IS  IS IS 1:10,000+ ; THAT THIS PLAT WAS PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH G. S. 47-30 AS AMENDED.  ; THAT THIS PLAT WAS PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH G. S. 47-30 AS AMENDED. ; THAT THIS PLAT WAS PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH G. S. 47-30 AS AMENDED.  THAT THIS PLAT WAS PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH G. S. 47-30 AS AMENDED. THAT THIS PLAT WAS PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH G. S. 47-30 AS AMENDED.  THIS PLAT WAS PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH G. S. 47-30 AS AMENDED. THIS PLAT WAS PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH G. S. 47-30 AS AMENDED.  PLAT WAS PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH G. S. 47-30 AS AMENDED. PLAT WAS PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH G. S. 47-30 AS AMENDED.  WAS PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH G. S. 47-30 AS AMENDED. WAS PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH G. S. 47-30 AS AMENDED.  PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH G. S. 47-30 AS AMENDED. PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH G. S. 47-30 AS AMENDED.  IN ACCORDANCE WITH G. S. 47-30 AS AMENDED. IN ACCORDANCE WITH G. S. 47-30 AS AMENDED.  ACCORDANCE WITH G. S. 47-30 AS AMENDED. ACCORDANCE WITH G. S. 47-30 AS AMENDED.  WITH G. S. 47-30 AS AMENDED. WITH G. S. 47-30 AS AMENDED.  G. S. 47-30 AS AMENDED. G. S. 47-30 AS AMENDED.  S. 47-30 AS AMENDED. S. 47-30 AS AMENDED.  47-30 AS AMENDED. 47-30 AS AMENDED.  AS AMENDED. AS AMENDED.  AMENDED. AMENDED. WITNESS MY ORIGINAL SIGNATURE, LICENSE NUMBER AND SEAL THIS _______ DAY OF  MY ORIGINAL SIGNATURE, LICENSE NUMBER AND SEAL THIS _______ DAY OF MY ORIGINAL SIGNATURE, LICENSE NUMBER AND SEAL THIS _______ DAY OF  ORIGINAL SIGNATURE, LICENSE NUMBER AND SEAL THIS _______ DAY OF ORIGINAL SIGNATURE, LICENSE NUMBER AND SEAL THIS _______ DAY OF  SIGNATURE, LICENSE NUMBER AND SEAL THIS _______ DAY OF SIGNATURE, LICENSE NUMBER AND SEAL THIS _______ DAY OF  LICENSE NUMBER AND SEAL THIS _______ DAY OF LICENSE NUMBER AND SEAL THIS _______ DAY OF  NUMBER AND SEAL THIS _______ DAY OF NUMBER AND SEAL THIS _______ DAY OF  AND SEAL THIS _______ DAY OF AND SEAL THIS _______ DAY OF  SEAL THIS _______ DAY OF SEAL THIS _______ DAY OF  THIS _______ DAY OF THIS _______ DAY OF  _______ DAY OF _______ DAY OF  DAY OF DAY OF  OF OF __________, A.D., 2022. . I, JORDAN M. SCHOFF, PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR L-4939, HEREBY CERTIFY: ____ c.1. THAT THE SURVEY IS OF AN EXISTING PARCEL OR PARCELS OF LAND OR ONE OR MORE EXISTING EASEMENTS AND DOES NOT CREATE A NEW STREET OR CHANGE AN EXISTING STREET. ____ GS 47-30 (j) _______________________________ JORDAN M. SCHOFF PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR LICENSE NUMBER L-4939

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L-4939

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
PB 11, PG. 53 PB 19, PG. 02 PB 56, PG. 118 PB 74, PG. 18 PB 77, PG. 17 PB 83, PG. 147 PB 88, PG. 195 PB 96, PG. 86 PB 110, PG. 28 PB 116, PG. 22

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIS TRACT OF LAND IS WITHIN THE CITY OF MEBANE'S JURISDICTION. NO APPROVAL IS REQUIRED OF THE PLANNING BOARD OR CITY COUNCIL UNDER SECTION 50.2(c) OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES. SIGNED:  ___________________________________ PLANNING DIRECTOR DATE:  _____________________________________

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAILROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
I85 & I40

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST TEN RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUSHY COOK RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON PIPE FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON ROD FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE MON FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W MON FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALCULATED POINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHEAD WIRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
OHW

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIRE FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
IPF

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
RWM

AutoCAD SHX Text
N83°21'06"W  3,122'+/- TIE TO NW CORNER OF PIN 9834851757 [NEAREST EXISTING CORPORATE LIMITS]

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURRENT OWNER: SANDRA M CLARK TRUSTEE 3605 GLENWOOD AVE, STE 500 RALEIGH, NC 27512 DEED BOOK 85-E, PAGE 1685 DEED BOOK 674, PAGE 711 PLAT BOOK 74, PAGE 18 - TRACT 2 PIN = 9844452283 SITE ADDRESS = 0 WEST TEN ROAD GROSS SITE AREA = 73.978 ACRES CURRENT ZONING (AS SHOWN) = EDB-2 - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BUCKHORN HIGHER INTENSITY R1 - RURAL RESIDENTIAL CURRENT OVERLAY (AS SHOWN) = MAJOR TRANSPORTATION CORRIDOR OVERLAY DISTRICT WATERSHED ZONING OVERLAY DESIGNATION = UPPER ENO PROTECTED RIVER BASIN = NEUSE



RESOLUTION FIXING DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON  
QUESTION OF ANNEXATION PURSUANT TO G.S. 160A-58.2 

Annexation No. 155 

     WHEREAS, a petition requesting annexation of the non-contiguous area described 
herein has been received; and 

     WHEREAS, the Mebane City Council directed the City Clerk to investigate the sufficiency 
of the petition; and 

     WHEREAS, certification by the City Clerk as to the sufficiency of the petition has been 
made; 

     NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mebane City Council of the City of Mebane, 
North Carolina that: 

     Section 1.  A public hearing on the question of annexation of the non-contiguous area 
described herein will be held at 6:00 p.m. on September 12 2022. 

     Section 2.  The area proposed for annexation is described as follows: 

BEGINNING AT A 4” CONCRETE MONUMENT WITH A 2” BRASS PLATE LOCATED ON THE SOUTHERN 
VARIABLE WIDTH PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY FOR INTERSTATE 85 / INTERSTATE 40 (NCDOT PROJECT 
NUMBER 8.1457602) HAVING NORTH CAROLINA GRID COORDINATES (NAD83/2011) OF NORTH 
846,280.548' EAST 1,943,004.240' AND BEING THE COMMON CORNER WITH ORANGE COUNTY 
(DEED BOOK DB 6169, PAGE 541; TRACT ONE – PLAT BOOK 116, PAGE 22); THENCE ALONG THE 
SOUTHERN RIGHT OF WAY OF I-85/I-40 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) CALLS: 

1) S79°20'24"E 24.35 FEET TO AN EXISTING NCDOT RIGHT OF WAY MONUMENT, 
2) S55°46'59"E 474.82 FEET TO AN EXISTING NCDOT RIGHT OF WAY MONUMENT, 
3) S80°35'28"E 400.13 FEET TO AN EXISTING NCDOT RIGHT OF WAY MONUMENT, 
4) N81°17'07"E 642.29 FEET TO AN EXISTING NCDOT RIGHT OF WAY MONUMENT, THE 

COMMON CORNER WITH CHARLESANNA MEADOW SUBDIVISION (PLAT BOOK 56, PAGE 
118 & PLAT BOOK 110, PG. 28); 

THENCE WITH THE CHARLESANNA COMMON LINE THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) CALLS: 
1) S00°53'05"W 146.43 FEET TO A RAILROAD RAIL FOUND, 
2) S88°16'34"E 619.43 FEET TO AN IRON FARM BLADE FOUND, 
3) S50°56'04"E 1039.74 FEET TO A CONCRETE MONUMENT FOUND, 
4) N55°01'58"E 99.63 FEET TO A 1” IRON ROD FOUND, 
5) S01°39'06"W 56.45 FEET TO A 1” IRON PIPE FOUND ON THE NORTHERN 60 FOOT PUBLIC 

RIGHT OF WAY WEST TEN ROAD (SR 1144);  
THENCE ALONG SAID NORTHERN RIGHT OF WAY THE FOLLOWING THIRTY-THREE (33) CALLS 

1) S72°53'22"W 45.32 FEET TO A COMPUTED POINT, 
2) S71°02'56"W 50.47 FEET TO A COMPUTED POINT, 
3) S70°40'01"W 50.13 FEET TO A COMPUTED POINT, 
4) S70°30'18"W 571.61 FEET TO A COMPUTED POINT, 
5) S71°03'01"W 49.78 FEET TO A COMPUTED POINT, 
6) S71°44'57"W 49.60 FEET TO A COMPUTED POINT, 
7) S73°00'13"W 49.29 FEET TO A COMPUTED POINT, 
8) S74°19'38"W 49.47 FEET TO A COMPUTED POINT, 
9) S75°19'42"W 49.57 FEET TO A COMPUTED POINT, 
10) S75°44'47"W 49.89 FEET TO A COMPUTED POINT, 
11) S75°37'40"W 50.05 FEET TO A COMPUTED POINT, 
12) S76°00'26"W 723.15 FEET TO A COMPUTED POINT, 
13) S75°27'18"W 50.24 FEET TO A COMPUTED POINT, 
14) S75°16'11"W 50.22 FEET TO A COMPUTED POINT, 
15) S74°25'36"W 50.61 FEET TO A COMPUTED POINT, 
16) S73°02'55"W 50.75 FEET TO A COMPUTED POINT, 
17) S70°50'47"W 50.75 FEET TO A COMPUTED POINT, 
18) S70°07'42"W 50.42 FEET TO A COMPUTED POINT, 
19) S69°39'04"W 50.24 FEET TO A COMPUTED POINT, 
20) S69°10'32"W 49.98 FEET TO A COMPUTED POINT, 



21) S68°58'07"W 50.09 FEET TO A COMPUTED POINT, 
22) S68°38'11"W 354.56 FEET TO A COMPUTED POINT, 
23) S70°05'23"W 49.10 FEET TO A COMPUTED POINT, 
24) S72°07'43"W 48.85 FEET TO A COMPUTED POINT, 
25) S74°49'20"W 48.80 FEET TO A COMPUTED POINT, 
26) S76°49'17"W 48.51 FEET TO A COMPUTED POINT, 
27) S79°24'57"W 48.81 FEET TO A COMPUTED POINT, 
28) S81°18'54"W 48.92 FEET TO A COMPUTED POINT, 
29) S83°31'33"W 49.09 FEET TO A COMPUTED POINT, 
30) S85°09'04"W 49.23 FEET TO A COMPUTED POINT, 
31) S86°30'37"W 49.18 FEET TO A COMPUTED POINT, 
32) S88°34'14"W 49.16 FEET TO A COMPUTED POINT, 
33) S89°31'27"W 18.11 FEET TO A COMPUTED POINT THE COMMON CORNER WITH ORANGE 

COUNTY (DEED BOOK DB 6169, PAGE 541; TRACT ONE – PLAT BOOK 116, PAGE 22);  
THENCE ALONG THE COMMON LINE WITH ORANGE COUNTY N00°36'24"E 9.39 FEET TO A 3/4" 
IRON ROD FOUND AND N00°36'24"E  1914.52 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING CONTAINING 
3,222,460 SQUARE FEET OR 73.978 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AS SHOWN ON THE PLAT ENTITLED 
“NON-CONTIGUOUS VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION PLAT (SATELLITE) FOR CITY OF MEBANE: SANDRA 
M CLARK TRUSTEE PIN 9844452283; BY STEWART, DATED MARCH 14, 2022 AND RECORDED AS 
PLAT BOOK _______ PAGE ________ ORANGE COUNTY REGISTRY. 
 

     Section 3.  Notice of the public hearing shall be published once in the Mebane 
Enterprise, a newspaper having general circulation in the City of Mebane, at least ten (10) 
days prior to the date of the public hearing. 
 
        CITY OF MEBANE 

 
        _______________________ 
        Ed Hooks, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

_________________________ 
Stephanie W. Shaw, City Clerk 
 



 

AGENDA ITEM #4F 
Odor Control Chemicals Bid Results 
and Recommendation 

Presenter 
Kyle Smith, Utilities Director 
 

Public Hearing 
Yes  No  

Summary 
The Utilities Department solicited formal bids for odor control chemicals due on July 25, 2022 at 10:00 AM. 
Invitations to bid were sent out to known vendors, posted on the City’s website and advertised in the local 
paper on July 13, 2022. Bids were received for pump station odor control chemicals on July 25, 2022. Five 
bids were received and the low bidder was Southern Environmental Systems from Rock Hill, SC in the 
amount of $195,589.80 at a unit price of $2.58 per gallon at an estimated 75,810 gallons per year. Contract 
terms are for a 6-month trial with the option to extend the contract up to an additional 42 months. Council 
approval of the award is required. 

Background 
Odor control chemicals are utilized at 10 sewer pump stations throughout the City. The odor control 
chemicals are introduced at sewer pump stations to assist in the reduction of hydrogen sulfide gas at the 
pump stations and in the downstream sewer lines. The reduction of the hydrogen sulfide gas helps prolong 
life of the sewer system and reduce offensive odors downstream of the pump stations.  

Financial Impact 
The budget estimate for this year is approximately $176,000 for 75,810 gallons. This unit price will exceed 
the budget at the current estimate. However, the current estimated gallons needed is in excess of the past 
years to take into account for inflation and increase of use due to more customers. We will keep the usage 
within budget. 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends making a contract award to the low bidder, Southern Environmental Systems from Rock 
Hill, SC in the amount of $2.58 per gallon of odor control chemical.  

Attachments 
1. Letter of recommendation 
2. Tabulation of bids 



 

 
w w w . C I T Y O F M E B A N E . c o m 

CITY OF MEBANE      636 Corregidor St.  Mebane, NC 27302               919 563 3401                919 304 6836           ksmith@cityofmebane.com     

 
July 25, 2022 
 
Mebane City Council  
106 E Washington Street  
Mebane, NC 27302  
 
Subject: Odor Control Chemicals Bid Results  
 
Honorable Mayor and City Council:  
 
Bids for sewer pump station odor control chemicals were received on July 25, 2022 at 10:00 AM 
at Mebane City Hall. There was good interest in the request for bids as five (5) vendors bid on 
this project. Bids ranged from $195,589.80 to $325,907.19. Attached is a Tabulation of Bids 
showing the bidders with the amounts of their bids.  
 
We have reviewed the bids and find that Southern Environmental Systems of Fort Mill, SC 
submitted the lowest responsive bid in the amount of $195,589.80 based on a unit price of 
$2.58 per gallon. We are familiar with Southern Environmental Systems as they have been our 
odor control chemical supplier since 2015.  
 
This bid is based on a six-month trial of the chemical with the option to extend the contract 
forty-two (42) additional months.  
 
We recommend that council award the bid to Southern Environmental Systems in the amount 
of $2.58 per gallon of Cal-X Plus odor control chemical.  
 
Sincerely,  
 
 
 
 
Kyle Smith, P.E.  
Public Utilities Director 





 P a g e  | 1 

AGENDA ITEM #5a 
RZ 22-08 
Conditional Rezoning – Mixed-Use 
Development, NC Mebane Holt, LLC 
(Requested to be continued until October 3, 2022 per 
the applicant) 

Presenter 
Ashley Ownbey 
Interim Development Director 

Applicant 
NC Mebane Holt, LLC 
201 Riverplace 
Suite 400 
Greenville, SC 29601 

Public Hearing 
Yes  No  

Zoning Map 

 

Property 
120, 122, and 126 W 
Holt Street 

Unaddressed 

GPINs: 9825033678, 
9825033700, 
9825031924, 
9825034785 

Proposed Zoning 
B-1(CD) 

Current Zoning 
HM, R-12, B-1 

Size 
 +/-5.74 acres 

Surrounding 
Zoning 
R-12, HM, O&I, B-1 

Adjacent Land Uses 
Single-Family 
Residential, Public 
Library, Office 

Utilities 
Yes 

Floodplain 
No 

Watershed 
Yes 

City Limits 
Yes 



A g e n d a  I t e m  c o n t i n u e d   P a g e  | 2 

 
Summary 
NC Mebane Holt, LLC, is requesting approval to conditionally rezone four (4) properties totaling +/- 5.74 
acres located at 120, 122, and 126 W Holt Street. The properties are currently split-zoned HM, R-12, and 
B-1. The proposed request is to rezone the properties to B-1(CD) (Central Business Conditional District) to 
allow for a Planned Unit Development of 268 217 apartment units and +/- 21,056 9,396 square feet of 
commercial space. The two proposed buildings fronting W Washington Street are proposed as four-story 
buildings with ground-floor retail space. The three proposed buildings with frontages on W Holt Street 
are proposed as three-story buildings. The properties are in Alamance County and in the City limits. The 
applicant has a contract to purchase the properties. 
 
The proposed onsite amenities & dedications include the following:  

• The construction or improvement of 5’ sidewalks along all frontages, with a high visibility crossing 
of S Third Street as shown on the provided site plan. 

• The applicant is proposing the following amenities to meet private recreation and open space 
requirements: 3,500 s.f. dog park; swimming pool and deck; rooftop decks; and, renovation of an 
existing building to include an exercise room, lounge/activity area, public meeting/social space, and 
active rooftop. 

Requested waivers: 
• The applicant has requested an alternative landscaping plan due to the site design and obligation 

to meet other requirements of the Mebane UDO. 
• The applicant is proposing to meet parking requirements by using two nearby off-site parking 

lots. This is allowed by the Mebane UDO, with shared-parking agreements required before 
release of building permits. One of the parking lots is residentially-zoned requiring the applicant 
to seek relief from requirements of Section 6-5, E-3 of the Mebane UDO, specifically to allow 
nonresidential parking during non-daylight hours. The applicant has reduced the density of the 
proposed development and proposes additional parking for electric vehicles to meet parking 
requirements. 

• The applicant has submitted a preliminary lighting plan, which shows illumination exceeding the 
allowed maximum at certain boundaries of the site. City staff have determined lighting spillover 
at the driveways provides a public safety function and have reviewed to ensure spillover 
protection for adjacent properties. In conversation with City staff, the applicant has indicated a 
commitment to reduce internal lighting at site driveways to meet the City’s lighting standards via 
use of streetlights for driveways. 

• The applicant is required to provide 0.45 acres of open space and is proposing to provide 0.17 
acres. The applicant is now meeting open space requirements with the addition of rooftop decks. 

• The applicant is proposing to renovate an existing, nonconforming building currently located in a 
sight distance triangle. This is a nonconforming structure that is allowed to continue provided the 
sight distance deficiency is not increased. 



A g e n d a  I t e m  c o n t i n u e d   P a g e  | 3 

The TIA found no capacity improvements to the road network are required of the developer. Multimodal 
improvements are recommended and include: 

• Pedestrian and bicycling striping, sidewalk, and signage to connect to Historic Downtown Mebane 
• Shared-lane markings on Washington Street 
• Bike boulevard on S Second Street 

 
The Technical Review Committee (TRC) has reviewed the site plan five times and the applicant has revised 
the plan to reflect the comments.  

Financial Impact 
The developer will be required to make all of the improvements at his own expense. 

Recommendation 
At their July 18 meeting, the Planning Board voted 7 – 0 to recommend denial of the rezoning request. 

The Planning staff has reviewed the request for harmony with the zoning of the surrounding area and 
consistency with the City’s adopted plans and recommends approval.  

Suggested Motion 
1. Motion to approve the B-1(CD) zoning as presented.  
 
2. Motion to find that the application is consistent with the objectives and goals in the City’s 2017 

Comprehensive Land Development Plan Mebane By Design. Specifically, the request: 
 

 Is for a property within the G-1 Downtown Mixed-Use Growth Area (p. 68); 
 

 Encourages a variety of uses in Downtown and promotes a village concept that supports 
compact and walkable environments, consistent with Growth Management Goal 1.1 (pp. 17 & 
82); 

 
 Supports Historic Downtown Mebane’s culture by addressing aesthetics, walkability, 

bikeability, and providing shopping, dining, and housing options, consistent with Growth 
Management Goal 1.2 (pp. 17 & 82) 

 
 Provides pedestrian facilities in the Downtown area supporting Growth Management Goal 1.6 

(pp. 17 & 84) 
 
 Provides a mix of commercial and residential uses consistent with Community Appearance 

Goal 3.3 (pp. 17 & 86) and the Mebane Downtown Vision Plan. 
 
OR 
 



A g e n d a  I t e m  c o n t i n u e d   P a g e  | 4 

3. Motion to deny the B-1(CD) rezoning as presented due to a lack of 
 

a. Harmony with the surrounding zoning or land use 
OR 

b. Consistency with the objectives and goals in the City’s 2017 Comprehensive Land Development 
Plan Mebane By Design. 
 

Attachments 
1. Zoning Amendment Application 
2. Zoning Map 
3. Site Plan - click here to access and download. 
4. Applicant Waiver Requests  
5. Planning Project Report  
6. Preliminary Water and Sewer System Approval Letter 
7. Technical Memorandum – City Engineering Review 
8. Recreation & Parks Recommendation 
9. Traffic Impact Analysis Recommendations 

a. Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) – click here to access and download. 
b. NCDOT Review of TIA 
c. VHB Review of TIA 

https://cityofmebane.sharefile.com/d-s25e548f395034b57a3ae32ff1d31c770
https://cityofmebane.sharefile.com/d-se665df24c5f14b79b9f7230cb89427f7


DocuSign  Envelope  ID: IAECCECOD Re-cesea ovnhth7

APPLICATION  FOR A ZONING  AMENDMENT

Application  is hereby  made  for  an amendment  to  the  Mebane  Zoning  Ordinance  as follows:

dressandbriefdescriptionofpropertytoberezoned:/e;4/dr7f%'T!>'("9'o'

Applicant'sinterestinproperty:(Owned,leasedorothemise)  d/JpEffLCa

Yes  Explain: No  y'

Typeofre-zoningrequested:  Z3'(  (QOS

Sketch  attached:  Yes

Reasonfortherequestedre-zoninH:  %  7@ 0Joetspk  raPa  T'NE

Date:  6/"'1/2022

Action  by Planning  Board:

Public  Hearing  Date: Adion:

Zoning  Map  Corrected:

The  following  items  should  be included  with  the  application  for  rezoning  when  it is returned:
1.  Tax  Map  showing  the  area  that  is to  be considered  for  rezoning.
2. Names  and  addresses  of  all  adjoining  property  owners  within  a 300'  radius  (Include  those  that

are across  the  street).

3. S300.00 Fee to  cover  administrative  costs.
4. The information  is due  15  working  days prior  to  the  Planning  Board  meeting.  The  Planning

Board  meets  the  2'd Monday  of  each  month  at 6:30  p.m. Then  the  request  goes  to  the  City
Council  for  a Public  Hearing  the  following  month.  The  City Council  meets  the  1"  Monday  of  each
month  at 6:00  p.m.



1 inch = 250 feet

S
 F

O
U

R
T

H
 S

T

W LEE ST

S
 F

IF
T

H
 S

T

S
 T

H
IR

D
 S

T

N
 S

E
C

O
N

D
 S

T

N
 F

IF
T

H
 S

T

N
 F

O
U

R
T

H
 S

T

N
 T

H
IR

D
 S

T

S
 S

E
C

O
N

D
 S

T

N
 W

IL
B

A
 R

D

E WASHINGTON ST

W JACKSON ST

S
 F

IR
S

T
 S

T

W CLAY ST

W HOLT ST

E CLAY ST

E RUFFIN ST

E CENTER ST

E WILSON ST

W CENTER ST

W RUFFIN ST

W WASHINGTON ST

B-2(CD)

B-3

B-2R-12R-12

B-1

R-6

B-1(CD)

O&I

B-1

B-2

R-8R-12

NC CGIA, Maxar, Microsoft

DATE: 07/13/22

DRAWN BY: AV

CITY OF MEBANE Conditional Rezoning
NC Mebane Holt, LLCZONING MAP

Subject Properties

HM

HM



 

 

Waiver Request 

• Streetscape/Sidewalk plantings/Landscape Buffer Waiver: We respectfully request a 

waiver from the requirements for streetscape and sidewalk plantings per the Unified 

Development Ordinance to meet the ADA and sidewalk width requirements.  We also 

request a waiver of the landscape buffers on the eastern boundary of the eastern block.  

A six-foot privacy fence will be constructed along this boundary, according to the fence 

specifications in the City’s Unified Development Ordinance to provide a buffer from the 

neighbors to the east.  As approved by staff, a detailed landscape plan will be submitted 

for review once the site plan has been finalized 

 

 

 

 

Nonconformity Item 

• Cotton Building Sight Line Nonconformity:  An inadequate sight line exists at the 

southwest corner of the intersection of Washington Street and 3rd Street, due to the 

current location of the Cotton Building, which is a nonconforming structure, per the 

Unified Development Ordinance, Section 10.4.A.  (“Any nonconforming structure legally 

existing at the time of adoption or amendment of this Ordinance may be continued as 

long it remains otherwise lawful.”)  This sight line issue has been mitigated when the 

traffic signal became operational at this intersection on July 28, 2022.  

 



 

PAGE 1 

 
PLANNING PROJECT REPORT 

DATE 07/12/22, edited 07/27/22 
PROJECT NUMBER RZ 22-08 
PROJECT NAME Mixed-Use Development - NC Mebane Holt, LLC 

APPLICANT 

NC Mebane Holt, LLC 
201 Riverplace 
Suite 400 
Greenville, SC 29601 

 

CONTENTS 
PROJECT NAME & APPLICANT ........................................................................................... PAGE 1 
ZONING REPORT ............................................................................................................... PAGE 2 
LAND USE REPORT ............................................................................................................ PAGE 4 
UTILITIES REPORT .............................................................................................................. PAGE 7   
STAFF ZONING REQUEST RECOMMENDATION ............................................................... PAGE  10



 

PAGE 2 

 
ZONING REPORT 

EXISTING ZONE 
HM (Heavy Manufacturing District), R-12 (Residential District), B-1 (Central Business 
District) 

REQUESTED ACTION 
Rezoning to B-1 (CD) (Central Business Conditional District) to allow for a Planned 
Unit Development (PUD) 

CONDITIONAL ZONE? YES   NO 
CURRENT LAND USE Manufacturing, Vacant 
PARCEL SIZE  +/-5.74 acres 

PROPERTY OWNERS 
Central Park Burlington, LLC                                                
7120 Creek Wood Drive 
Chapel Hill, NC 27514 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

Request to rezone four properties totaling +/- 5.74 acres located at 120, 122, 126 W 
Holt Street (PINs 9825033678, 9825033700, 9825031924, 9825034785) from M-1, B-
1, and R-12 to B-1 (CD) to allow for a Planned Unit Development of 268 217 
apartment units and +/- 21,056 9,396 square feet of commercial space by NC 
Mebane Holt, LLC. 

AREA ZONING & DISTRICTS 

Properties to the north and east are zoned B-1, Central Business District. Properties 
to the south and west are primarily zoned R-12, Residential District, except for the 
Mebane Public Library which is zoned O&I, Office and Institutional. Properties 
adjacent to the southeastern boundary of the site are zoned HM, Heavy 
Manufacturing District. 

SITE HISTORY 

The site, often referred to as the Kingsdown property, has historically been used for 
manufacturing purposes and includes two large brick warehouses along with smaller 
structures, parking lots, and vacant area. The site is composed of four separate 
properties, with the largest property divided by S Third Street. 

 
STAFF ANALYSIS 

CITY LIMITS? YES   NO       
PROPOSED USE BY-RIGHT? YES   NO  
SPECIAL USE? YES   NO  
EXISTING UTILITIES? YES   NO       

POTENTIAL IMPACT OF 
PROPOSED ZONE 

The proposed zoning district will support a mix of residential and commercial uses 
consistent with surrounding B-1 zoning. The nonresidential uses front W Washington 
Street, providing separation between the proposed commercial and existing, single-
family residential. The proposed apartment buildings introduce denser residential to 
the immediate area, though existing apartments (Mebane Mill Lofts) are within 500 
feet of the site. 

 
 



 

PAGE 3 



 

PAGE 4 

 
LAND USE REPORT 

EXISTING LAND USE Manufacturing, Vacant 

PROPOSED LAND USE & 
REQUESTED ACTION 

The applicant is requesting a conditional rezoning to develop +/-5.74 acres 
for a Planned Unit Development that includes 268 217 apartment units and 
+/- 21,056 9,396 square feet of commercial space. The two proposed 
buildings fronting W Washington Street are proposed as four-story 
buildings with ground-floor retail space. The three proposed buildings with 
frontages on W Holt Street are proposed as three-story buildings. 

PROPOSED ZONING B-1(CD) (Central Business Conditional District) 
PARCEL SIZE +/-5.74 acres 

AREA LAND USE 

North of the site, across the railroad and US 70, is Historic Downtown 
Mebane. Single-family homes are across W Holt and S Second Streets. 
These homes are in the Old South Mebane Historic District. Institutional 
uses such as the Mebane Public Library, the Mebane United Methodist 
Church, and the Mebane Fire Station are within walking distance to the site.  

ONSITE AMENITIES & DEDICATIONS 

The applicant proposes to provide or improve public sidewalks along all 
property boundaries. Pavement repairs are proposed on W Holt and S Third 
Streets. A high-visibility crosswalk is proposed across S Third Street.  
 
The applicant is proposing the following amenities to meet private 
recreation and open space requirements: 3,500 s.f. dog park; swimming 
pool and deck; rooftop decks; and, renovation of an existing building to 
include an exercise room, lounge/activity area, public meeting/social space, 
and active rooftop. 
 
The applicant proposes to provide 10 electric vehicle (EV) charging stations. 

WAIVER REQUESTED YES   NO 

DESCRIPTION OF REQUESTED 
WAIVER(S) 

The applicant is submitting an alternative landscaping plan due to the site 
design and obligation to meet other requirements of the Mebane UDO. 
Canopy trees, landscaped areas, and perimeter walls and fences are shown 
on the proposed site plan to meet screening requirements. The submitted 
demolition plan proposes protection of three existing trees internal to the 
site and street trees along W Washington. Per the Mebane UDO, 
streetscape in the B-1 District is decided on a case-by-case basis. 
 
The applicant is proposing to renovate an existing building currently located 
in a sight distance triangle. This is a nonconforming structure that is 
allowed to continue provided the sight distance deficiency is not increased. 
All other proposed buildings are located outside of sight distance triangles, 
which is an improvement from current conditions. 
 



 

PAGE 5 

Since the Planning Board meeting, the applicant has revised the proposed 
development to address waiver requests related to parking and open 
space. In conversation with City staff, the applicant has indicated a 
commitment to reduce internal lighting at site driveways to meet the City’s 
lighting standards via use of streetlights for driveways. 

 

CONSISTENCY WITH MEBANE BY DESIGN STRATEGY 

LAND USE GROWTH STRATEGY 
DESIGNATION(S) 

G-1 Mixed-Use Growth Area (Downtown District) 
 
The Mebane Downtown Vision Plan envisions a mix of residential and 
commercial uses on this site. 

MEBANE BY DESIGN GOALS & 
OBJECTIVES SUPPORTED 

GROWTH MANAGEMENT 1.1 
Encourage a variety of uses in growth strategy areas and in the downtown, 
promote/encourage a village concept that supports compact and walkable 
environments. 
 
GROWTH MANAGEMENT 1.2 
Continue to support historic Downtown Mebane’s culture: aesthetics, 
walkability, bikeability, shopping, dining, and housing options. 
 
GROWTH MANAGEMENT 1.6 
Require that commercial development be pedestrian-friendly, supporting 
walking between differing land uses while also reducing parking 
requirements. 
 
GROWTH MANAGEMENT 3.3 
Improve guidelines for downtown development to feature mixed-use 
village centers and high-density areas that encourage multi-modal 
transportation. 

MEBANE BY DESIGN GOALS & 
OBJECTIVES NOT SUPPORTED 

 



 

PAGE 6 
 



 

PAGE 7 

UTILITIES REPORT 
AVAILABLE UTILITIES YES   NO 

PROPOSED UTILITY NEEDS 

Estimates of daily demand reflect the original proposal for 268 
apartment units. The applicant has proposed a reduction in 
residential density to 217 apartment units. 
 
Per the memorandum from Franz Holt of AWCK, the estimated daily 
water and sewer demand for this project is 37,000 gallons per day. 
The project proposes an 8-inch connection and 6-inch fire 
connection to the City’s existing 12-inch water line in Holt Street and 
extending the looped fire line through the project with 6-inch fire 
service connections to each new building with RPZ backflow 
preventers at the road and at each building. The project proposes an 
8-inch sanitary sewer connection with the City’s existing 8-inch 
gravity sewer line in Holt Street and S. Third Street.  

UTILITIES PROVIDED BY 
APPLICANT 

Applicant has pledged to provide all on-site utilities, as described in 
AWCK’s Technical Memo.  

MUNICIPAL CAPACITY TO 
ABSORB PROJECT  

The City has adequate water & sewer supply to meet the domestic 
and fire flow demands of the project. 

CONSISTENCY WITH MEBANE 
LONG RANGE UTILITY PLAN? 

YES   NO 

ADEQUATE STORMWATER 
CONTROL? 

YES   NO 

INNOVATIVE STORMWATER 
MANAGEMENT? 

YES   NO 

TRANSPORTATION NETWORK STATUS 

CURRENT CONDITIONS 

The site has frontage and driveway access on W Holt, S Third, S 
Second, and W Washington. S Third Street and a portion of W Holt 
Street are maintained by the NCDOT. The City maintains W Holt 
Street east of S Third and also S Second and W Washington. All 
streets are two-lane, undivided with speed limits ranging from 25 to 
35 mph. 
 
Traffic counts and safety data are available for NCDOT-maintained 
roads. In 2019, S Third averaged a daily traffic volume of 5,600 
vehicles and W Holt averaged 1,600 daily vehicles. Between 2017 
and 2021, the intersection of S Third and W Holt recorded 12 
crashes while the intersection of S Third and W Washington 
recorded 11. 

TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 
REQUIRED? 

YES   NO 



 

PAGE 8 

DESCRIPTION OR 
RECOMMENDED 
IMPROVEMENTS 

The TIA found no capacity improvements to the road network are 
required of the developer. Multimodal improvements are 
recommended and include: 

− Pedestrian and bicycling striping, sidewalk, and signage to 
connect to Historic Downtown Mebane. 

− Shared-lane markings on Washington Street 
− Bike boulevard on S Second Street 

 
The applicant will construct two driveways on W Holt, two on W 
Washington, and one on S Second. The western driveway on W Holt 
is proposed as entrance only. 

CONSISTENCY WITH THE 
MEBANE BICYCLE AND 
PEDESTRIAN TRANSPORTATION 
PLAN? 

YES   NO 

MULTIMODAL IMPROVEMENTS 
PROVIDED BY APPLICANT? 

YES   NO 

DESCRIPTION OF MULTIMODAL 
IMPROVEMENTS 

The applicant proposes a high-visibility crossing of S Third and W 
Holt as proposed in the Bicycle and Pedestrian Transportation Plan. 
Additionally, the applicant proposes to construct or improve 
sidewalk along all frontages, addressing missing blocks of sidewalk 
and improving compliance with ADA standards. Bicycle racks are 
provided around the buildings fronting W Washington. 
 
Per the TIA, the applicant will improve pedestrian and bicyclist 
connections from the site to Downtown Mebane by way of striping, 
signage, shared-use markings on Washington, and a bike boulevard 
on S Second Street. 

 
 



 

PAGE 9 



 

PAGE 10 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
STAFF ZONING 
RECOMMENDATION  

 APPROVE    DISAPPROVE 

STAFF SPECIAL USE FINDING 
 CONSISTENT    NOT CONSISTENT………………..WITH MEBANE BY 
DESIGN 

RATIONALE 

The proposed development “Mixed-Use Development - NC 
Mebane Holt, LLC” is consistent with the guidance provided within 
Mebane By Design, the Mebane Comprehensive Land 
Development Plan. Specifically, the site is in a mixed-use growth 
strategy area and serves Goals 1.1, 1.2, 1.6, and 3.3. The site is 
addressed in the Mebane Downtown Vision Plan, which imagines a 
mix of commercial and residential uses on the property. The 
proposed project will be developed as a Planned Unit Development 
and is in harmony with the neighboring mix of commercial, 
residential, and institutional uses in Mebane’s downtown area. 

 



 

CITY OF MEBANE 106 East Washington Street  |  Mebane, NC 27302  919 563 5901  fholt@cityofmebane.com 

W W W . C I T Y O F M E B A N E . C O M  

 

July 13, 2022 
 
Mr. Allan Hill, PE 
Triad Design Group, P.C. 
4807-C-Koger Boulevard 
Greensboro, NC 27407 
 
Subject: NC Mebane Holt LLC Mixed Use Development – Water and Sewer System Layout 
 
Dear Mr. Hill: 

  
Regarding the Preliminary Site Plans for the proposed mixed-use development and in accordance with the UDO, 
this letter indicates that I have reviewed the preliminary water and sewer system layout and find it acceptable and 
meeting City of Mebane requirements as follows:  

 
A. Water system – The project proposes an 8-inch connection and 6-inch fire connection to the City’s existing 

12-inch water line in Holt Street and extending the looped fire line through the project with 6-inch fire 
service connections to each new building with RPZ backflow preventers at the road and at each building. A 
6-inch domestic line will pull off the fire line and continue throughout the site providing a 4-inch domestic 
service connection to each building with RPZ backflow preventers.  The renovated Cotton Building will use 
existing domestic and fire service with backflow prevention (possibly new).  Appropriate valves and fire 
hydrant spacing are shown with the water main improvements. These fire and domestic extensions are 
private. The estimated daily water use for this project is 37,000 gallons per day. The City has adequate 
water capacity available to meet the domestic demand and fire flow requirements of this project.  

 
B. Sanitary Sewer system – The project proposes an 8-inch sanitary sewer connection with the City’s existing 

8-inch gravity sewer line in Holt Street and S. Third Street. Internal to the project site are proposed 8-inch 
gravity sewer lines with appropriately spaced manholes and 6-inch services to each building. These sewer 
improvements will be private. The estimated daily sewer use is to be state permitted at 58,642 gallons per 
day with an expected tributary flow being less at approximately 37,000 gallons per day.  The City has 
adequate sewer capacity that has been reserved for downtown redevelopment at the downstream WRRF 
to meet the permitted and expected tributary demand.  

 
If there are any questions, please let me know. 
Sincerely, 

 
Franz K. Holt, P.E. City Engineer 
CC: Ashley Ownbey, Interim Development Director 

        Kyle Smith, Utilities Director 



CITY OF MEBANE 106 East Washington Street | Mebane, NC 27302 (919) 563 5901 fholt@cityofmebane.com 

  W  W  W . C I T Y O F M E B A N E . C O M  

 

 

 

Technical Memorandum 

Date: July 19, 2022 

To: Ashley Ownbey, Interim Development Director 

From: Franz K. Holt, P.E. 

Subject: NC Mebane Holt Mixed Use Development – City Engineer review 

 
City Engineering has reviewed the Preliminary Site Plans NC Mebane Holt Mixed Use submitted July 2022, 
by Triad Design Group, P.C. Greensboro, NC and provides the following technical comments. 

 
A. General 

NC Mebane Holt is a Mixed-Use development which proposes 268 residential apartment units, 
21,450 SF of retail space, and 16,475 SF of indoor/outdoor recreation space (five new buildings 
with retail on the bottom floor of buildings 1 & 5 facing Washington Street and the renovation of 
the existing Cotton Building for recreational space, public meeting space, roof top bar, and outdoor 
swimming pool and deck area) located on approximately 5.738 acres off Holt Street. 

 

Phase 2 post construction runoff rules also apply to the project. The post-development peak runoff 
rates for the 2, 10, and 100-year design storms will be equal to or less for the pre-development 
rates for the same design storms. 

 

Water and sewer service are from 12-inch water and 8-inch sewer lines in Holt Street. 
 

Street Access includes connections to S. Second Street, Washington Street (2) and Holt Street (2). 
Holt Street (SR 1963) is NCDOT maintained requiring driveway permits and encroachment 
agreements. 

 
 

B. Availability of City Water and Sewer 
 

In compliance with the UDO, this memo indicates that I have reviewed the preliminary water and 
sewer system layout and find it acceptable and meeting City of Mebane requirements as follows: 

 

1. Water system – The project proposes an 8-inch connection and 6-inch fire connection to the 
City’s existing 12-inch water line in Holt Street and extending the looped fire line through the 
project with 6-inch fire service connections to each new building with RPZ backflow preventers 
at the road and at each building. A 6-inch domestic line will pull off the fire line and continue 
throughout the site providing a 4-inch domestic service connection to each building with RPZ 
backflow preventers. The renovated Cotton Building will use existing domestic and fire service 

mailto:fholt@cityofmebane.com
http://www.cityofmebane.com/


CITY OF MEBANE 106 East Washington Street | Mebane, NC 27302 (919) 563 5901 fholt@cityofmebane.com 

  W  W  W . C I T Y O F M E B A N E . C O M  

 

 

 

with backflow prevention (possibly new). Appropriate valves and fire hydrant spacing are 
shown with the water main improvements. These fire and domestic extensions are private. 
The estimated daily water use for this project is 37,000 gallons per day. The City has adequate 
water capacity available to meet the domestic demand and fire flow requirements of this 
project. 

 

2. Sanitary Sewer system – The project proposes an 8-inch sanitary sewer connection with the 
City’s existing 8-inch gravity sewer line in Holt Street and S. Third Street. Internal to the project 
site are proposed 8-inch gravity sewer lines with appropriately spaced manholes and 6-inch 
services to each building. These sewer improvements will be private. The estimated daily sewer 
use is to be state permitted at 58,642 gallons per day with an expected tributary flow being 
less at approximately 37,000 gallons per day (50% or permitted residential flow plus non-
residential). The City has adequate sewer capacity that has been reserved for downtown 
redevelopment at the downstream WRRF to meet the permitted and expected tributary 
demand. 

 
C. Watershed Overlay District and Phase II Stormwater Requirements 

 
1. Watershed Overlay District requirements provided in the UDO. 

These requirements in the UDO are for the Back-Creek Watershed, which includes the 
Graham-Mebane Lake. A portion of the project is in the watershed overlay district and related 
requirements apply.  However, it appears that a review of the current drainage patterns and 
built upon area post vs. pre-development will not require new storm water controls for this 
area. 

 

2. Phase II Stormwater Post Construction Ordinance 
The UDO provides standards for Storm Water Management and requires compliance with the 
Mebane Post Construction Runoff Ordinance (which is a stand-alone ordinance titled the 
Phase II Stormwater Post Construction Ordinance (SPCO)). The standards in the UDO are 
general standards as the Ordinance itself provides detailed standards. The SPCO does apply to 
this project as it will disturb more than one acre of land requiring a stormwater permit 
application. The estimated new built upon area is more than 24% and therefore considered 
high density under this ordinance requiring stormwater control measures for new built upon 
area is more than the existing built upon area (approximately 1 acre). Additionally, the city 
requires 10-year stormwater detention at a min. for all storm water control measures (SCMs). 
100-year storm design detention for post vs. pre-development peak discharge is to be provided 
for this project for new built upon area. One underground stormwater measure (SCM) is 
currently shown. 
 

 

mailto:fholt@cityofmebane.com
http://www.cityofmebane.com/


CITY OF MEBANE 106 East Washington Street | Mebane, NC 27302 (919) 563 5901 fholt@cityofmebane.com 

  W  W  W . C I T Y O F M E B A N E . C O M  

 

 

D. Storm Drainage System 
 

The UDO provides requirements for storm drainage systems. The preliminary site plans include a 
preliminary piping layout that indicates certain pipe locations, inlets, and discharge points. 

mailto:fholt@cityofmebane.com
http://www.cityofmebane.com/


CITY OF MEBANE 106 East Washington Street | Mebane, NC 27302 (919) 563 5901 fholt@cityofmebane.com 

  W  W  W . C I T Y O F M E B A N E . C O M  

 

 

 

Stormwater flows from these pipes connect to either a stormwater control measure (SCM) or 
direct connection to the existing storm drainage network. Design of the storm drainage system 
will be in accordance with the City’s Storm Drainage Design Manual. 

 

E. Street Access and TIA 
 

Street Access includes connections to S. Second Street, Washington Street (2) and Holt Street (2). 
Holt Street (SR 1963) is NCDOT maintained requiring driveway permits and encroachment 
agreements. The project will include a new sidewalk network along all streets being fronted. 

 
A TIA was completed for this project. NCDOT staff concurs with the Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) 
and findings that the existing state road network and proposed site assesses are expected to 
operate acceptably with no capacity improvements needed, per NCDOT Guidelines. 

 

F. Construction Plan Submittal 
 

The preliminary plans show the proposed water lines, sewer lines, and storm drainage and 
stormwater management devices to indicate that the project is feasible for utility service and 
providing stormwater management. Based on city engineering review, it is my opinion that said 
plans are in substantial compliance with the UDO. Construction plans will follow preliminary plan 
approval and require TRC review and approval prior to beginning construction. 

mailto:fholt@cityofmebane.com
http://www.cityofmebane.com/


 

 
w w w . C I T Y O F M E B A N E . c o m 

CITY OF MEBANE      106 E. Washington St.  Mebane, NC 27302               919 563 9990                919 563 9506           adavis@cityofmebane.com    

 

Date:  July 11, 2022 

 

To:   Mayor Ed Hooks 

Mayor Pro-Tem Tim Bradley 

Katie Burkholder 

Sean Ewing 

Montrena Hadley 

Jonathan White 

 

Subject: Private Recreational Space for Proposed Mixed-Use Development  

 

 

Mayor Hooks, 

 

The project “NC Mebane Holt LLC, Mixed-Use Development” is being presented before the 

City of Mebane’s Planning Board for consideration at the July 18, 2022, meeting. This project is 

subject to private recreation space requirements for its residents, which are shown on the 

provided site plan.  As these recreational opportunities will be private, the owner of the 

development will be responsible for upkeep and maintainenance of these amenities. 

 

Currently, the applicant proposes the following: renovation of an existing building to include an 

exercise room, lounge/activity area, public meeting/social space, and an active rooftop; 

construction of a swimming pool and deck; and installation of a dog park. I have reviewed the 

proposed site plan for adequency per section 6-8.2 of the Mebane UDO and feel that the private 

recreation space should satisfy the needs of the residents of the proposed development.   

 

Please let me know if you have any questions or concerns. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

Aaron Davis 

Recreation and Parks Director 

 

 

CC: Chris Rollins, City Manager 

 Preston Mitchell, Assistant City Manager 

 Ashley Ownbey, Interim Development Director 

 



 







 

VHB Engineering NC, P.C. (C-3075) 
Engineers Scientists Planners Designers 
Venture I, 940 Main Campus Drive, Suite 500, Raleigh, North Carolina 27606 
P  919.829.0328 F  919.833.0034 www.vhb.com  

 

To: Cy Stober, AICP 
Development Director 
City of Mebane 

Date: May 2, 2022 

 
C. N. Edwards Jr., PE 
District Engineer 
NCDOT Highway Division 7 District 1 

Project #: 39160.00, Task 11 
 
 

From: Baohong Wan, PhD, PE Re: Mebane Holt Mixed-Use Traffic Impact Analysis 
Mebane, NC 

A Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) was prepared by Ramey Kemp & Associates (RKA) for the proposed Mebane Holt Mixed-Use 
development located south of E Washington Street and west of S 4th Street in Mebane, North Carolina.  VHB is contracted by the City 
of Mebane to conduct an independent review of the Mebane Holt Mixed-Use TIA.  This memo provides a list of critical findings, 
followed by an in-depth summary of study assumptions and analysis results. 

List of Mitigation Recommendations 
The following items in red should be considered in addition to mitigation measures that have been identified within the Mebane Holt 
Mixed-Use TIA: 

› Washington Street and Site Drive 1 
o Construct Site Drive 1 with one ingress lane and one egress lane striped as a shared left/right-turn lane 
o Provide a stop-control for Site Drive 1 

› Washington Street and Site Drive 2 
o Construct Site Drive 2 with one ingress lane and one egress lane striped as a shared left/right-turn lane 
o Provide a stop-control for Site Drive 2 

› Holt Street and Site Drive 3 
o Construct Site Drive 3 with one ingress lane and one egress lane striped as a shared left/right-turn lane 
o Provide a stop-control for Site Drive 3 

› Holt Street and Site Drive 4 
o Construct Site Drive 4 with one ingress lane and one egress lane striped as a shared left/right-turn lane 
o Provide a stop-control for Site Drive 4 

› Site Driveway Location and Sight Distance 
o The planned driveways need to be located outside intersection functional areas, particularly to avoid queue storage 

length at the future signalized intersection(s) of Washington Street at 3rd Street (and at 4th Street). 
o Sight lines need to be examined with parked cars if on-street parking is allowed next to the planned driveways. 

› Multimodal Considerations: the developer should be responsible for providing adequate pedestrian, bike, and transit 
facilities based on the City of Mebane 2015 Bicycle and Pedestrian Transportation Plan along roadways comprising the 
property frontage.  Per the City’s adopted Downtown Vision Plan, connection between this specific site and the historic 
downtown needs clearer and safe delineation through pavement markings and signage to accommodate future pedestrian 
and bicyclist traffic. 

› Despite light traffic volumes expected at the two intersections along 4th Street at Washington Street and at Holt Street, it is 
important to include them in the ped/bike planning and network connectivity analysis. 



Ref:  39160.00, Task 11 
May 2, 2022 
Page 2 
 
 

Engineers Scientists Planners Designers 
Venture I, 940 Main Campus Drive, Suite 500, Raleigh, North Carolina 27606 
P  919.829.0328 F  919.833.0034 www.vhb.com 

 

Analysis Revision Suggestions 
› Add Figure 5 (2024 No-Build Peak Hour Traffic) to the TIA report. 
› Clarify the location of the No-Build Improvement by NCDOT, as the text refers to signal installation at “Washington Street 

and 5th Street” while a new signal at Washington Street and 3rd Street was shown on the figures and analyzed in traffic 
models. 

Other General Comments 
› Calculations of trip generation and traffic assignment should be separated for the tracts east of and west of 3rd Street, 

although the numerical differences in analysis results could be minimal. 

Summary of TIA Assumptions and Results  
Development Plan 
The proposed Mebane Holt Mixed-Use development will consist of up to 267 apartments, 7,800 square feet (sf) of retail space, and 
4,225 sf of high turnover sit-down restaurant.  The site will be accessed by four (4) full movement driveways along Washington 
Street and Holt Street.   

The planned driveways need to be located outside intersection functional areas. Sight lines need to be examined with consideration 
of parked cars if on-street parking is to be allowed next to the planned driveways. Pedestrian and bike facilities should be provided 
along site frontage of Washington Street, 2nd Street, 3rd Street, and Holt Street based on the City of Mebane Comprehensive 
Transportation Plan and 2015 Bicycle and Pedestrian Transportation Plan standards.  Per the City’s adopted Downtown Vision Plan, 
connection between this specific site and the historic downtown needs clearer and safe delineation through pavement markings 
and signage to accommodate future pedestrian and bicyclist traffic. 

Study Area and Analysis Scenarios 
The TIA included the following intersections through coordination with NCDOT and the City of Mebane: 

› Center Street and 3rd Street (signalized) 
› Center Street and 4th Street (signalized) 
› Center Street and 5th Street (signalized) 
› Washington Street and 2nd Street (unsignalized) 
› Washington Street and 3rd Street (signalized) 
› Washington Street and 5th Street (unsignalized) 
› Holt Street and 2nd Street (unsignalized) 
› Holt Street and 3rd Street (unsignalized) 
› Roosevelt Street and 3rd Street (unsignalized) 
› 5th Street and Roosevelt Street (unsignalized) 
› 5th Street and Jackson Street (unsignalized) 



Ref:  39160.00, Task 11 
May 2, 2022 
Page 3 
 
 

Engineers Scientists Planners Designers 
Venture I, 940 Main Campus Drive, Suite 500, Raleigh, North Carolina 27606 
P  919.829.0328 F  919.833.0034 www.vhb.com 

 

The following intersection improvement was included in all future year conditions in the TIA: 

›  Signalization of Washington Street and 3rd Street 
Signal timing optimization along the Center Street corridor was identified as another improvement that will be completed by the 
NCDOT State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) U-3109 project (NC 119 Bypass) and, therefore, was included in all future 
year conditions in the TIA. 

The TIA included capacity analyses during the weekday AM and PM peak hours under the following scenarios: 

› 2021 Existing Traffic Conditions 
› 2024 No-Build Traffic Conditions 
› 2024 Build Traffic Conditions 
› 2024 Build with Improvements Traffic Conditions 

Existing and No-Build Analysis Assumptions 
Existing (2021) analysis was conducted based on traffic counts conducted in December 2021 and February 2022 during typical 
weekday AM (7 to 9 AM) and PM (4 to 6 PM) peak hours.  The traffic volumes were balanced between the intersections, where 
appropriate. Although count data was collected during different years, the volumes were assumed to reflect 2021 volumes. It was 
determined that an adjustment factor was not needed to grow the collected counts since area schools were in session and daily 
traffic volumes have somewhat returned to more normal levels since the start of the COVID-19 pandemic. 

The No-Build scenario included an annual growth rate of two percent (2%) between the existing year (2021) and the future analysis 
year (2024).  Based on coordination with the NCDOT and the City, trips due to additional adjacent developments were not 
considered in this study.  

Trip Generation & Distribution 
Trip generation potential was determined based on methodology outlined in the ITE Trip Generation Manual, 10th Edition.  Based 
on the TIA, the proposed development is expected to generate 3,513 total daily trips with 336 trips (159 entering, 177 exiting) 
occurring during the AM peak hour and 298 trips (166 entering, 132 exiting) occurring during the PM peak hour. 

Note that trip generation is calculated for the development as a whole, while calculations of trip generation and traffic assignment 
should be separated for the tracts east of and west of 3rd Street to provide more accurate analysis although the numerical 
differences in analysis results could be minimal. 
The residential site trips for this development were distributed as follows: 
› 30% to/from the south via 3rd Street 
› 25% to/from the west via Center Street 
› 20% to/from the east via Washington Street 
› 10% to/from the south via 5th Street 
› 5% to/from the west via Washington Street 
› 5% to/from the north via 3rd Street 
› 5% to/from the east via Center Street 

The retail site trips for this development were distributed as follows: 
› 20% to/from the north via 3rd Street 
› 20% to/from the south via 3rd Street 
› 15% to/from the east via Center Street 



Ref:  39160.00, Task 11 
May 2, 2022 
Page 4 
 
 

Engineers Scientists Planners Designers 
Venture I, 940 Main Campus Drive, Suite 500, Raleigh, North Carolina 27606 
P  919.829.0328 F  919.833.0034 www.vhb.com 

 

› 10% to/from the west via Center Street 
› 10% to/from the east via Washington Street 
› 10% to/from the south via 5th Street 
› 10% to/from the north via 5th Street 
› 5% to/from the west via Washington Street 

Capacity Analysis Results 
Capacity analyses in the TIA were conducted following the NCDOT Congestion Management Capacity Analysis Guidelines.  The 
analysis results and mitigation determinations are summarized below for each individual intersection, while LOS and delay are 
reported and summarized for stop-controlled approaches at unsignalized intersections.   

Center Street and 3rd Street (signalized) 

ID  Intersection and Approach 
Existing (2021) No-Build (2024) Build (2024) Build+Imp (2024) 

AM PM AM PM AM PM AM PM 

1 

3rd Street & Center Street B 
(19.2) 

B 
(19) 

D 
(41.9) 

D 
(36.7) 

D 
(46.8) 

D 
(40.4) 

D 
(52) 

C 
(23.7) 

Eastbound A-9.7 A-9 E-72.1 E-69.7 E-77.4 E-74.8 C-29.5 C-21.9 
Westbound A-4.7 A-7.1 A-7.4 A-8.8 B-10.1 B-10.8 B-16.7 A-8.2 
Northbound D-51.9 E-55.2 B-18.4 C-28.3 C-34.1 D-35.1 F-123.7 D-49.8 
Southbound C-28.6 C-31.5 C-26 C-30.5 C-24.4 C-28.5 D-54.4 C-32.3 

The TIA indicated that the intersection operates at an overall LOS D during the AM and PM peak hours under build-out conditions.  
Due to queueing concerns, changing signal operations to allow permitted + protected phasing for the westbound left-turn movement 
was studied.  However, safety implications particularly concerning the railroad crossing exemption with permitted + protected 
phasing was not documented in the TIA.  Due to the minimal impact caused by site traffic and the fact that the intersection is expected 
to operate at acceptable levels of service under future year conditions, no mitigation was recommended in the TIA by the proposed 
development. 

Center Street and 4th Street (signalized) 

ID  Intersection and Approach 
Existing (2021) No-Build (2024) Build (2024) Build+Imp (2024) 

AM PM AM PM AM PM AM PM 

2 

4th Street & Center Street A 
(3.6) 

A 
(5) 

A 
(3.6) 

A 
(5) 

A 
(3.6) 

A 
(4.9) 

A 
(2.7) 

A 
(5.5) 

Eastbound A-0.8 A-1.6 A-0.8 A-1.6 A-1.1 A-1.4 A-1.1 A-1.7 
Westbound A-1 A-1.7 A-1 A-1.7 A-0.9 A-1.7 A-1.9 A-1.7 
Northbound D-44.3 D-46.6 D-44.7 D-46.8 D-44.7 D-46.8 C-23.9 D-53.1 

The TIA indicated that the intersection operates at an overall LOS A during the AM and PM peak hours under build-out conditions.  
Since the intersection is expected to operate at acceptable levels of service under future year conditions, no mitigation was 
recommended in the TIA by the proposed development.  



Ref:  39160.00, Task 11 
May 2, 2022 
Page 5 
 
 

Engineers Scientists Planners Designers 
Venture I, 940 Main Campus Drive, Suite 500, Raleigh, North Carolina 27606 
P  919.829.0328 F  919.833.0034 www.vhb.com 

 

Center Street and 5th Street (signalized) 

ID  Intersection and Approach 
Existing (2021) No-Build (2024) Build (2024) Build+Imp (2024) 

AM PM AM PM AM PM AM PM 

3 

5th Street & Center Street B 
(19.5) 

C 
(21.2) 

B 
(19.4) 

C 
(21.4) 

B 
(19.5) 

C 
(21.4) 

B 
(15.9) 

C 
(23.4) 

Eastbound A-5.9 A-7.1 A-5.5 A-7.3 A-6 A-7.4 B-10.6 A-4.6 
Westbound B-15.1 B-17.8 B-16 B-19.1 B-16.6 B-19.5 B-17.6 B-18.8 
Northbound B-18.8 C-23.1 B-18.3 C-22.8 B-18 C-22.7 A-8.4 C-27.2 
Southbound D-38.8 D-40.2 D-38.4 D-39.8 D-38.3 D-39.8 C-27.9 D-46 

The TIA indicated that the intersection operates at an overall LOS B or C during the AM and PM peak hours under build-out conditions.  
Since the intersection is expected to operate at acceptable levels of service under future year conditions, no mitigation was 
recommended in the TIA by the proposed development.  

Washington Street and 2nd Street (unsignalized) 

ID  Intersection and Approach 
Existing (2021) No-Build (2024) Build (2024) Build+Imp (2024) 

AM PM AM PM AM PM AM PM 

4 
2nd Street & Washington Street N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Northbound A-8.5 A-8.6 A-8.6 A-8.6 A-8.6 A-8.6 A-8.6 A-8.6 

The TIA indicated that the stop-controlled approach is expected to operate at LOS A during both the AM and PM peak hours under 
the existing and future year traffic scenarios.  Since the stop-controlled approach is expected to operate at acceptable levels of service 
under all future traffic conditions, no mitigation was recommended in the TIA by the proposed development.  

Washington Street and 3rd Street (unsignalized/signalized) 

ID  Intersection and Approach 
Existing (2021) No-Build (2024) Build (2024) Build+Imp (2024) 

AM PM AM PM AM PM AM PM 

5 

3rd Street & Washington Street N/A N/A C 
(31.8) 

C 
(32.5) 

D 
(37.7) 

C 
(33.8) 

C 
(33.9) 

D 
(36.5) 

Eastbound B-12 B-12.3 A-9.1 A-6.9 B-10.4 A-7.7 A-9.8 A-8.1 
Westbound B-12.3 B-12.3 A-9 A-6.4 B-10.1 A-7.5 A-9.2 A-7.5 
Northbound --- --- C-30.6 C-32.6 C-27.1 C-29.6 D-37.6 C-33.6 
Southbound --- --- D-36.4 D-37.3 E-59.6 D-48.3 D-42.4 D-51.1 

The TIA indicated that the intersection operates at an overall LOS C or D during the AM and PM peak hours under build-out conditions.  
Since the intersection is expected to operate at acceptable levels of service under future year conditions, no mitigation was 
recommended in the TIA by the proposed development.   



Ref:  39160.00, Task 11 
May 2, 2022 
Page 6 
 
 

Engineers Scientists Planners Designers 
Venture I, 940 Main Campus Drive, Suite 500, Raleigh, North Carolina 27606 
P  919.829.0328 F  919.833.0034 www.vhb.com 

 

Washington Street and 5th Street (unsignalized) 

ID  Intersection and Approach 
Existing (2021) No-Build (2024) Build (2024) Build+Imp (2024) 

AM PM AM PM AM PM AM PM 

6 

5th Street & Washington Street N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Eastbound D-25.8 E-35.1 D-28.7 E-41.9 E-40.5 F-68.3 E-40.5 F-68.3 
Westbound C-17.7 D-31.3 C-19.3 E-37.5 D-26.1 F-60.1 D-26.1 F-60.1 

The TIA indicated that the eastbound approach operates at LOS E in the AM peak hour, while both the eastbound and westbound 
approaches operate at LOS F in the PM peak hour under build-out conditions.  Due to the close spacing between this intersection, 
the railroad crossing, and the Center Street signal, installation of a traffic signal is not considered feasible at this location.  Based on 
the Mebane Traffic Separation Study (TSS) jointly developed by the City of Mebane, the North Carolina Department of Transportation 
(NCDOT), North Carolina Railroad (NCRR), and Norfolk Southern (NS), the following transportation improvements are preferred at 
this location:  
› Install mountable medians along 5th Street and E Washington Street to prohibit all left-turn movements at this intersection 

and through movements along E Washington Street 
Therefore, the developer should work with the City of Mebane and NCDOT to evaluate geometric and pedestrian improvement 
options that are consistent with the Mebane TSS. 

Holt Street and 2nd Street (unsignalized) 

ID  Intersection and Approach 
Existing (2021) No-Build (2024) Build (2024) Build+Imp (2024) 

AM PM AM PM AM PM AM PM 

7 

2nd Street & Holt Street N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Northbound A-9.5 A-9.6 A-9.5 A-9.6 A-9.5 A-9.6 A-9.5 A-9.6 
Southbound A-9.5 A-9.7 A-9.6 A-9.7 A-9.6 A-9.7 A-9.6 A-9.7 

The TIA indicated that the stop-controlled approaches are expected to operate at LOS A during both the AM and PM peak hours 
under the existing and future year traffic scenarios.  Since the stop-controlled approaches are expected to operate at acceptable 
levels of service under all future traffic conditions, no mitigation was recommended in the TIA by the proposed development.  

Holt Street and 3rd Street (unsignalized) 

ID  Intersection and Approach 
Existing (2021) No-Build (2024) Build (2024) Build+Imp (2024) 

AM PM AM PM AM PM AM PM 

8 

3rd Street & Holt Street N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Eastbound B-14.1 B-13.5 B-14.8 B-14.2 B-14.6 B-14.9 B-14.6 B-14.9 
Westbound B-14.3 B-14.5 B-14.9 B-14.6 C-19 C-16.5 C-19 C-16.5 

The TIA indicated that the stop-controlled approaches are expected to operate at LOS B or C during both the AM and PM peak hours 
under the existing and future year traffic scenarios.  Since the stop-controlled approaches are expected to operate at acceptable 
levels of service under all future traffic conditions, no mitigation was recommended in the TIA by the proposed development.  



Ref:  39160.00, Task 11 
May 2, 2022 
Page 7 
 
 

Engineers Scientists Planners Designers 
Venture I, 940 Main Campus Drive, Suite 500, Raleigh, North Carolina 27606 
P  919.829.0328 F  919.833.0034 www.vhb.com 

 

W Roosevelt Street and 3rd Street (unsignalized) 

ID  Intersection and Approach 
Existing (2021) No-Build (2024) Build (2024) Build+Imp (2024) 

AM PM AM PM AM PM AM PM 

9 

3rd Street & W Roosevelt Street N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Eastbound C-15 B-11.7 C-15.8 B-11.9 C-17.2 B-12.4 C-17.2 B-12.4 
Westbound C-18.3 B-13.1 C-19.9 B-13.6 C-22.4 B-14.4 C-22.4 B-14.4 

The TIA indicated that the stop-controlled approaches are expected to operate at LOS B or C during the AM and PM peak hours 
under the existing and all future traffic scenarios.  Since the stop-controlled approaches are expected to operate at acceptable levels 
of service under all future traffic conditions, no mitigation was recommended in the TIA by the proposed development.  

W Roosevelt Street and 5th Street (unsignalized) 

ID  Intersection and Approach 
Existing (2021) No-Build (2024) Build (2024) Build+Imp (2024) 

AM PM AM PM AM PM AM PM 

11 

5th Street & E Jackson Street N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Eastbound C-17.4 C-18.2 C-18.7 C-19.5 C-19.3 C-20 C-19.3 C-20 
Westbound C-18.1 D-26.1 C-19.5 D-30.1 C-20.2 D-31.2 C-20.2 D-31.2 

The TIA indicated that the stop-controlled approaches are expected to operate at LOS C or D during the AM and PM peak hours 
under the existing and future year traffic scenarios.  No mitigation was recommended in the TIA by the proposed development.  
Although traffic volumes meet warrants for providing a dedicated left-turn lane along northbound 5th Street, this turn lane was not 
recommended since the stop-controlled approaches are expected to operate at acceptable levels of service under the buildout 
conditions. 

E Jackson Street and 5th Street (unsignalized) 

ID  Intersection and Approach 
Existing (2021) No-Build (2024) Build (2024) Build+Imp (2024) 

AM PM AM PM AM PM AM PM 

11 

5th Street & E Jackson Street N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Eastbound C-17.4 C-18.2 C-18.7 C-19.5 C-19.3 C-20 C-19.3 C-20 
Westbound C-18.1 D-26.1 C-19.5 D-30.1 C-20.2 D-31.2 C-20.2 D-31.2 

The TIA indicated that the stop-controlled approaches are expected to operate at LOS D or better during the AM and PM peak hours 
under the existing and future year traffic scenarios.  Since the stop-controlled approaches are expected to operate at acceptable 
levels of service under all future traffic conditions, no mitigation was recommended in the TIA by the proposed development.  



Ref:  39160.00, Task 11 
May 2, 2022 
Page 8 
 
 

Engineers Scientists Planners Designers 
Venture I, 940 Main Campus Drive, Suite 500, Raleigh, North Carolina 27606 
P  919.829.0328 F  919.833.0034 www.vhb.com 

 

Washington Street and Site Drive 1 (future unsignalized) 

ID  Intersection and Approach 
Existing (2021) No-Build (2024) Build (2024) Build+Imp (2024) 

AM PM AM PM AM PM AM PM 

12 
Site Drive 1 & Washington Street N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Northbound --- --- --- --- A-9.4 A-9.2 A-9.4 A-9.2 

The TIA indicated that this future site access for the Mebane Holt Mixed-Use development operates at LOS A during both peak hours 
under build-out conditions.  The following driveway configuration is recommended by the proposed development: 
› Construct Site Drive 1 with one ingress lane and one egress lane striped as a shared left/right-turn lane 
› Provide a stop-control for Site Drive 1 

Washington Street and Site Drive 2 (future unsignalized) 

ID  Intersection and Approach 
Existing (2021) No-Build (2024) Build (2024) Build+Imp (2024) 

AM PM AM PM AM PM AM PM 

13 
Site Drive 2 & Washington Street N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Northbound --- --- --- --- A-8.8 A-8.7 A-8.8 A-8.7 

The TIA indicated that this future site access for the Mebane Holt Mixed-Use development operates at LOS A during both peak hours 
under build-out conditions.  The following driveway configuration is recommended by the proposed development: 
› Construct Site Drive 2 with one ingress lane and one egress lane striped as a shared left/right-turn lane 
› Provide a stop-control for Site Drive 2 

Holt Street and Site Drive 3 (future unsignalized) 

ID  Intersection and Approach 
Existing (2021) No-Build (2024) Build (2024) Build+Imp (2024) 

AM PM AM PM AM PM AM PM 

14 
Holt Street & Site Drive 3 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Southbound --- --- --- --- A-9.4 A-9.5 A-9.4 A-9.5 

The TIA indicated that this future site access for the Mebane Holt Mixed-Use development operates at LOS A during both peak hours 
under build-out conditions.  The following driveway configuration is recommended by the proposed development: 
› Construct Site Drive 3 with one ingress lane and one egress lane striped as a shared left/right-turn lane 
› Provide a stop-control for Site Drive 3 

Holt Street and Site Drive 4 (future unsignalized) 

ID  Intersection and Approach 
Existing (2021) No-Build (2024) Build (2024) Build+Imp (2024) 

AM PM AM PM AM PM AM PM 

15 
Holt Street & Site Drive 4 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Southbound --- --- --- --- A-8.6 A-8.7 A-8.6 A-8.7 



Ref:  39160.00, Task 11 
May 2, 2022 
Page 9 
 
 

Engineers Scientists Planners Designers 
Venture I, 940 Main Campus Drive, Suite 500, Raleigh, North Carolina 27606 
P  919.829.0328 F  919.833.0034 www.vhb.com 

 

The TIA indicated that this future site access for the Mebane Holt Mixed-Use development operates at LOS A during both peak hours 
under build-out conditions.  The following driveway configuration is recommended by the proposed development: 
› Construct Site Drive 4 with one ingress lane and one egress lane striped as a shared left/right-turn lane 
› Provide a stop-control for Site Drive 4 

 



 P a g e  | 1 

AGENDA ITEM #5B 
RZ 22-07 
Conditional Rezoning –  
Mill Run 

Presenter 
Ashley Ownbey, Interim Development Director 

Applicant 
Ryan Tanner of Tanner Built Homes, LLC 
3122 Battleground Ave., Suite B 
Greensboro, NC 27408 

Public Hearing 
Yes   No  

 

Zoning Map 

 

Property 
4677 Mrs. 
White Lane, 
GPIN 
9816955507 

Proposed 
Zoning 
R-12(CD) 

Current Zoning 
R-20 

Size 
 +/-10.01 acres  

Surrounding 
Zoning 
R-20, B-2, R-12, 
B-3 
Surrounding 
Land Uses 
Residential, 
Commercial & 
Vacant 

Utilities 
To be extended 
at developer’s 
expense 

Floodplain 
No 

Watershed 
Yes 

City Limits 
No 



A g e n d a  I t e m  c o n t i n u e d   P a g e  | 2 

Summary 
Tanner Built Homes, LLC is requesting approval to conditionally rezone the +/-10.01-acre property located 
at 4677 Mrs. White Lane (GPIN 9816955507) from R-20 to R-12(CD) to allow “Mill Run” a residential 
subdivision of 18 single-family homes. The property is located outside of City Limits in the Mebane 
Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ). A petition for annexation is required prior to connection to City utilities. 
 
The site-specific plan includes the following amenities & dedications:  

• The applicant proposes to construct the internal road with permanent, grass-lined drainage swells 
and 5’ sidewalk on one side of the street. 

• The applicant proposes to provide a 5’sidewalk along the street frontage of Mrs. White Lane in 
addition to a paved crosswalk across Rutledge Trail, connecting to the existing sidewalk on Mrs. 
White Lane. 

• 3.2 acres of private common open space, including a 4’ gravel walking path, to be owned and 
maintained by the HOA. 

Requested waivers: 
 
UDO Requirement Requested Wavier 

10’ side setback  7.5’ side setback 
70’ lot width required for permanent, 
grass-lined drainage swells in lieu of curb 
and gutter streets.  

65’ lot width, complying with all other 
requirements for permanent, grass-lined 
drainage swells 

 
 
The UDO calculates that the applicant should provide 0.51 acres in public recreation area valued at 
$5,289.89 (total tax value of $102,827 for 10.01 acres or $10,372.33/acre). The applicant is proposing to 
provide a payment in lieu of the valued amount. 

The Technical Review Committee (TRC) has reviewed the site plan three (3) times and the applicant has 
revised the plan to reflect the comments.  

Financial Impact 
The developer will be required to make all of the onsite improvements at their own expense.  

Recommendation 
At their July 18 meeting, the Planning Board voted 7 – 0 to recommend approval of the rezoning request. 

The Planning staff has reviewed the request for harmony with the zoning of the surrounding area and 
consistency with the City’s adopted plans and recommends approval of the rezoning.  

Suggested Motion 
1. Motion to approve the R-12 (CD) zoning as presented.  
 



A g e n d a  I t e m  c o n t i n u e d   P a g e  | 3 

2. Motion to find that the application is consistent with the objectives and goals in the City’s 2017 
Comprehensive Land Development Plan Mebane By Design. Specifically, the request: 

 
 Is for a property within the City’s G-4 Secondary Growth Area and is generally residential in nature 

(Mebane CLP, p.66); 
 
 Provides a sidewalk along its street frontage, as required by the City’s adopted Bicycle and 

Pedestrian Transportation Plan. 
 
OR 
 
3. Motion to deny the R-12(CD) rezoning as presented due to a lack of 

 
a. Harmony with the surrounding zoning or land use 

OR 
b. Consistency with the objectives and goals in the City’s 2017 Comprehensive Land Development 

Plan Mebane By Design. 

Attachments 
1. Zoning Amendment Application 
2. Zoning Map 
3. Site Plan 
4. Planning Project Report  
5. Preliminary Water and Sewer System Approval Letter 
6. Technical Memorandum – City Engineering Review 

 
 





R-20

R-12

R-20

B-3

B-2

N
 N

C
 119 H

W
Y

S
T

 A
N

D
R

E
W

S
 D

R

LANDI LN

M
R

S
 W

H
IT

E
 L

N

R
U

T
L

E
D

G
E

 T
R

L

WHITE LEVEL RD

C
Y

P
R

E
S

S
 P

T

PEBBLE BEACH DR

OAKMONT CT

WINGED FOOT CT

NC CGIA, Maxar

DATE: 07/08/22

DRAWN BY: AV

CITY OF MEBANE CONDITIONAL REZONING
Mill RunZONING MAP

1 inch = 400 feet

City Limits

ETJ

Subject Property´



R
E

V
.  

   
D

A
T

E
   

   
  D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  B
Y

DATE:

HORIZONTAL SCALE:

VERTICAL SCALE:

PROJECT MANAGER:

DRAWN BY:

PROJECT NO:

DRAWING NAME:

THIS DRAWING AND THE DESIGN HEREON ARE
THE PROPERTY OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

THE INFORMATION ON THIS DRAWING IS NOT FOR
USE ON ANY OTHER SITE OR PROJECT.  THE

REPRODUCTION OR OTHER USE OF THIS
DRAWING IN WHOLE OR IN PART, WITHOUT

WRITTEN CONSENT OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.,
IS PROHIBITED.

COPYRIGHT 2022 EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

SHEET NO.

P:\21-06\21-06 Drawings\__Working\21-06 Working.dwg, C1.0 - Cover, 7/13/2022 11:43:08 AM

E
ar

th
C

en
tr

ic
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g,
 In

c.
Li

ce
nc

e 
# 

C
-2

63
8

20
4 

W
. C

la
y 

S
tr

ee
t

M
eb

an
e,

 N
C

 2
73

02
P

ho
ne

:(
91

9)
 5

63
-9

04
1

F
ax

:
(9

19
) 

30
4-

32
34

E
-M

ai
l:

P
hi

l.K
oc

h@
E

ar
th

C
en

tr
ic

.c
om

P
R

IN
C

IP
A

L 
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

P
H

IL
 K

O
C

H
 -

 N
C

P
E

 #
22

63
4

21-06 WORKING

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y
N

O
T

 F
O

R
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

APRIL 13, 2021

1" = 250'

N/A

CPK

CPK

21-06

SITE PLAN

   
1 

  0
2/

23
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

P
K

   
2 

  0
5/

05
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
S

C
S

   
3 

  0
6/

07
/2

02
2 

   
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 B

O
A

R
D

 S
E

T
   

   
   

   
   

 S
C

S

       



CONTRACTOR SHALL NOT MAKE ANY MODIFICATIONS TO

THE APPROVED DRAWINGS WITHOUT PRIOR APPROVAL

OF BOTH THE DESIGN ENGINEER AND LOCAL INSPECTOR.

R
E

V
.  

   
D

A
T

E
   

   
  D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  B
Y

DATE:

HORIZONTAL SCALE:

VERTICAL SCALE:

PROJECT MANAGER:

DRAWN BY:

PROJECT NO:

DRAWING NAME:

THIS DRAWING AND THE DESIGN HEREON ARE
THE PROPERTY OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

THE INFORMATION ON THIS DRAWING IS NOT FOR
USE ON ANY OTHER SITE OR PROJECT.  THE

REPRODUCTION OR OTHER USE OF THIS
DRAWING IN WHOLE OR IN PART, WITHOUT

WRITTEN CONSENT OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.,
IS PROHIBITED.

COPYRIGHT 2022 EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

SHEET NO.

P:\21-06\21-06 Drawings\__Working\21-06 Working.dwg, C1.1 - Cover, 7/13/2022 11:43:11 AM

E
ar

th
C

en
tr

ic
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g,
 In

c.
Li

ce
nc

e 
# 

C
-2

63
8

20
4 

W
. C

la
y 

S
tr

ee
t

M
eb

an
e,

 N
C

 2
73

02
P

ho
ne

:(
91

9)
 5

63
-9

04
1

F
ax

:
(9

19
) 

30
4-

32
34

E
-M

ai
l:

P
hi

l.K
oc

h@
E

ar
th

C
en

tr
ic

.c
om

P
R

IN
C

IP
A

L 
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

P
H

IL
 K

O
C

H
 -

 N
C

P
E

 #
22

63
4

21-06 WORKING

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y
N

O
T

 F
O

R
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

APRIL 13, 2021

1" = 40'

N/A

CPK

CPK

21-06

SITE PLAN

   
1 

  0
2/

23
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

P
K

   
2 

  0
5/

05
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
S

C
S

   
3 

  0
6/

07
/2

02
2 

   
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 B

O
A

R
D

 S
E

T
   

   
   

   
   

 S
C

S

       



R
E

V
.  

   
D

A
T

E
   

   
  D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  B
Y

DATE:

HORIZONTAL SCALE:

VERTICAL SCALE:

PROJECT MANAGER:

DRAWN BY:

PROJECT NO:

DRAWING NAME:

THIS DRAWING AND THE DESIGN HEREON ARE
THE PROPERTY OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

THE INFORMATION ON THIS DRAWING IS NOT FOR
USE ON ANY OTHER SITE OR PROJECT.  THE

REPRODUCTION OR OTHER USE OF THIS
DRAWING IN WHOLE OR IN PART, WITHOUT

WRITTEN CONSENT OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.,
IS PROHIBITED.

COPYRIGHT 2022 EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

SHEET NO.

P:\21-06\21-06 Drawings\__Working\21-06 Working.dwg, C2.0 - Exist-Demo, 7/13/2022 11:43:15 AM

E
ar

th
C

en
tr

ic
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g,
 In

c.
Li

ce
nc

e 
# 

C
-2

63
8

20
4 

W
. C

la
y 

S
tr

ee
t

M
eb

an
e,

 N
C

 2
73

02
P

ho
ne

:(
91

9)
 5

63
-9

04
1

F
ax

:
(9

19
) 

30
4-

32
34

E
-M

ai
l:

P
hi

l.K
oc

h@
E

ar
th

C
en

tr
ic

.c
om

P
R

IN
C

IP
A

L 
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

P
H

IL
 K

O
C

H
 -

 N
C

P
E

 #
22

63
4

21-06 WORKING

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y
N

O
T

 F
O

R
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

APRIL 13, 2021

1" = 40'

N/A

CPK

CPK

21-06

SITE PLAN

   
1 

  0
2/

23
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

P
K

   
2 

  0
5/

05
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
S

C
S

   
3 

  0
6/

07
/2

02
2 

   
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 B

O
A

R
D

 S
E

T
   

   
   

   
   

 S
C

S

       



R
E

V
.  

   
D

A
T

E
   

   
  D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  B
Y

DATE:

HORIZONTAL SCALE:

VERTICAL SCALE:

PROJECT MANAGER:

DRAWN BY:

PROJECT NO:

DRAWING NAME:

THIS DRAWING AND THE DESIGN HEREON ARE
THE PROPERTY OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

THE INFORMATION ON THIS DRAWING IS NOT FOR
USE ON ANY OTHER SITE OR PROJECT.  THE

REPRODUCTION OR OTHER USE OF THIS
DRAWING IN WHOLE OR IN PART, WITHOUT

WRITTEN CONSENT OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.,
IS PROHIBITED.

COPYRIGHT 2022 EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

SHEET NO.

P:\21-06\21-06 Drawings\__Working\21-06 Working.dwg, C3.0 - Site Plan, 7/13/2022 11:43:21 AM

E
ar

th
C

en
tr

ic
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g,
 In

c.
Li

ce
nc

e 
# 

C
-2

63
8

20
4 

W
. C

la
y 

S
tr

ee
t

M
eb

an
e,

 N
C

 2
73

02
P

ho
ne

:(
91

9)
 5

63
-9

04
1

F
ax

:
(9

19
) 

30
4-

32
34

E
-M

ai
l:

P
hi

l.K
oc

h@
E

ar
th

C
en

tr
ic

.c
om

P
R

IN
C

IP
A

L 
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

P
H

IL
 K

O
C

H
 -

 N
C

P
E

 #
22

63
4

21-06 WORKING

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y
N

O
T

 F
O

R
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

APRIL 13, 2021

1" = 40'

N/A

CPK

CPK

21-06

SITE PLAN

   
1 

  0
2/

23
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

P
K

   
2 

  0
5/

05
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
S

C
S

   
3 

  0
6/

07
/2

02
2 

   
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 B

O
A

R
D

 S
E

T
   

   
   

   
   

 S
C

S

       



R
E

V
.  

   
D

A
T

E
   

   
  D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  B
Y

DATE:

HORIZONTAL SCALE:

VERTICAL SCALE:

PROJECT MANAGER:

DRAWN BY:

PROJECT NO:

DRAWING NAME:

THIS DRAWING AND THE DESIGN HEREON ARE
THE PROPERTY OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

THE INFORMATION ON THIS DRAWING IS NOT FOR
USE ON ANY OTHER SITE OR PROJECT.  THE

REPRODUCTION OR OTHER USE OF THIS
DRAWING IN WHOLE OR IN PART, WITHOUT

WRITTEN CONSENT OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.,
IS PROHIBITED.

COPYRIGHT 2022 EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

SHEET NO.

P:\21-06\21-06 Drawings\__Working\21-06 Working.dwg, C4.0 - G&SD Plan, 7/13/2022 11:43:25 AM

E
ar

th
C

en
tr

ic
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g,
 In

c.
Li

ce
nc

e 
# 

C
-2

63
8

20
4 

W
. C

la
y 

S
tr

ee
t

M
eb

an
e,

 N
C

 2
73

02
P

ho
ne

:(
91

9)
 5

63
-9

04
1

F
ax

:
(9

19
) 

30
4-

32
34

E
-M

ai
l:

P
hi

l.K
oc

h@
E

ar
th

C
en

tr
ic

.c
om

P
R

IN
C

IP
A

L 
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

P
H

IL
 K

O
C

H
 -

 N
C

P
E

 #
22

63
4

21-06 WORKING

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y
N

O
T

 F
O

R
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

APRIL 13, 2021

1" = 40'

N/A

CPK

CPK

21-06

SITE PLAN

   
1 

  0
2/

23
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

P
K

   
2 

  0
5/

05
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
S

C
S

   
3 

  0
6/

07
/2

02
2 

   
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 B

O
A

R
D

 S
E

T
   

   
   

   
   

 S
C

S

       



R
E

V
.  

   
D

A
T

E
   

   
  D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  B
Y

DATE:

HORIZONTAL SCALE:

VERTICAL SCALE:

PROJECT MANAGER:

DRAWN BY:

PROJECT NO:

DRAWING NAME:

THIS DRAWING AND THE DESIGN HEREON ARE
THE PROPERTY OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

THE INFORMATION ON THIS DRAWING IS NOT FOR
USE ON ANY OTHER SITE OR PROJECT.  THE

REPRODUCTION OR OTHER USE OF THIS
DRAWING IN WHOLE OR IN PART, WITHOUT

WRITTEN CONSENT OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.,
IS PROHIBITED.

COPYRIGHT 2022 EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

SHEET NO.

P:\21-06\21-06 Drawings\__Working\21-06 Working.dwg, C5.0 - Utility Plan, 7/13/2022 11:43:30 AM

E
ar

th
C

en
tr

ic
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g,
 In

c.
Li

ce
nc

e 
# 

C
-2

63
8

20
4 

W
. C

la
y 

S
tr

ee
t

M
eb

an
e,

 N
C

 2
73

02
P

ho
ne

:(
91

9)
 5

63
-9

04
1

F
ax

:
(9

19
) 

30
4-

32
34

E
-M

ai
l:

P
hi

l.K
oc

h@
E

ar
th

C
en

tr
ic

.c
om

P
R

IN
C

IP
A

L 
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

P
H

IL
 K

O
C

H
 -

 N
C

P
E

 #
22

63
4

21-06 WORKING

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y
N

O
T

 F
O

R
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

APRIL 13, 2021

1" = 40'

N/A

CPK

CPK

21-06

SITE PLAN

   
1 

  0
2/

23
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

P
K

   
2 

  0
5/

05
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
S

C
S

   
3 

  0
6/

07
/2

02
2 

   
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 B

O
A

R
D

 S
E

T
   

   
   

   
   

 S
C

S

       



R
E

V
.  

   
D

A
T

E
   

   
  D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  B
Y

DATE:

HORIZONTAL SCALE:

VERTICAL SCALE:

PROJECT MANAGER:

DRAWN BY:

PROJECT NO:

DRAWING NAME:

THIS DRAWING AND THE DESIGN HEREON ARE
THE PROPERTY OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

THE INFORMATION ON THIS DRAWING IS NOT FOR
USE ON ANY OTHER SITE OR PROJECT.  THE

REPRODUCTION OR OTHER USE OF THIS
DRAWING IN WHOLE OR IN PART, WITHOUT

WRITTEN CONSENT OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.,
IS PROHIBITED.

COPYRIGHT 2022 EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

SHEET NO.

P:\21-06\21-06 Drawings\__Working\21-06 Working.dwg, C6.0 - Landscape Plan, 7/13/2022 11:43:35 AM

E
ar

th
C

en
tr

ic
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g,
 In

c.
Li

ce
nc

e 
# 

C
-2

63
8

20
4 

W
. C

la
y 

S
tr

ee
t

M
eb

an
e,

 N
C

 2
73

02
P

ho
ne

:(
91

9)
 5

63
-9

04
1

F
ax

:
(9

19
) 

30
4-

32
34

E
-M

ai
l:

P
hi

l.K
oc

h@
E

ar
th

C
en

tr
ic

.c
om

P
R

IN
C

IP
A

L 
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

P
H

IL
 K

O
C

H
 -

 N
C

P
E

 #
22

63
4

21-06 WORKING

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y
N

O
T

 F
O

R
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

APRIL 13, 2021

1" = 40'

N/A

CPK

CPK

21-06

SITE PLAN

   
1 

  0
2/

23
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

P
K

   
2 

  0
5/

05
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
S

C
S

   
3 

  0
6/

07
/2

02
2 

   
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 B

O
A

R
D

 S
E

T
   

   
   

   
   

 S
C

S

       



 

PAGE 1 

PLANNING PROJECT REPORT 
DATE 07/07/2022 
PROJECT NUMBER RZ 22-07 
PROJECT NAME Mill Run  

APPLICANT 
Ryan Tanner of Tanner Built Homes, LLC 
3122 Battleground Ave., Suite B 
Greensboro, NC 27408 

 

CONTENTS 
PROJECT NAME & APPLICANT ........................................................................................... PAGE 1 
ZONING REPORT ............................................................................................................... PAGE 2 
LAND USE REPORT ............................................................................................................ PAGE 4 
UTILITIES REPORT .............................................................................................................. PAGE 6 
STAFF ZONING REQUEST RECOMMENDATION .................................................................. PAGE 7



 

PAGE 2 

ZONING REPORT 
EXISTING ZONE R-20 (Residential) 
REQUESTED ACTION R-12 (CD) (Residential, Conditional Zoning District) 
CONDITIONAL ZONE? YES   NO 
CURRENT LAND USE Vacant, Forested 
PARCEL SIZE  +/- 10.01 acres 

PROPERTY OWNERS 
Tanner Built Homes, LLC 
3122 Battleground Ave., Suite B 
Greensboro, NC 27408 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
Request to rezone the +/- 10.01-acre property located at 4677 Mrs. White Lane (PIN 
9816955507), from R-20 to R-12 (CD) to allow for a residential development of 18 
single-family, detached homes by Tanner Built Homes, LLC. 

AREA ZONING & DISTRICTS 
All adjacent properties are zoned R-20 (Residential). One property located 50 feet to 
the southwest at the junction of White Level Road and N. C. Highway 119 is zoned B-
2. The Mill Creek subdivision, within 400 feet of the property, is zoned R-12.  

SITE HISTORY 
The property previously received approval in 2013 for a Special Use Permit to allow a 
Planned Unit Development for 20 single-family homes. This project was never 
constructed and the property has remained vacant. 

STAFF ANALYSIS 
CITY LIMITS? YES   NO  
PROPOSED USE BY-RIGHT? YES   NO  
SPECIAL USE? YES   NO 
EXISTING UTILITIES? YES   NO    Utilities are available and to be extended at the owner’s expense. 

POTENTIAL IMPACT OF 
PROPOSED ZONE 

The higher-density nature of the subdivision and length of the cul-de-sac are 
different in character from the surrounding lower-density, residential uses, though 
overall it is consistent with the predominantly residential zoning in the area including 
the R-12 zoning of the Mill Creek Subdivision. The overall density of the project is 1.8 
units per acre, which is much lower than the maximum density permitted for single-
family homes in the R-12 district (3.63 units per acre). 

 



 

PAGE 3 

 
 



 

PAGE 4 

 
LAND USE REPORT 

EXISTING LAND USE Vacant, Forested 

PROPOSED LAND USE & 
REQUESTED ACTION 

The applicant is requesting a conditional rezoning to develop one property 
totaling +/- 10.01 acres located at 4677 Mrs.. White Lane (PIN 9816955507) 
for a residential subdivision of 18 single-family, detached homes. 

PROPOSED ZONING R-12 (CD) (Residential, Conditional Zoning District) 
PARCEL SIZE +/- 10.01 acres 

AREA LAND USE 

The residentially zoned properties directly surrounding the subject property 
are single-family lots of one to four acres. The residentially zoned 
properties to the north and south are occupied by single-family homes on 
larger lots of four to eight acres. The Mill Creek subdivision, which is a 
denser, single-family neighborhood, is nearby.  

ONSITE AMENITIES & DEDICATIONS 

The applicant proposes to provide a 5’sidewalk along the street frontage of 
Mrs. White Ln in addition to a paved crosswalk across Rutledge Trail, 
connecting to the existing sidewalk on Mrs. White Lane. The site plan 
features 3.2 acres of private common open space, including a 4’ gravel 
walking path, to be owned and maintained by the HOA. 

WAIVER REQUESTED YES   NO 

DESCRIPTION OF REQUESTED 
WAIVER(S) 

A waiver is requested to allow minimum side setbacks of 7.5’. A waiver is 
also requested for the minimum lot width required for grass lined swales in 
lieu of curb and gutter.   
 
A payment in lieu of providing 0.51 acres of public recreation space. 

 
 
 

  

CONSISTENCY WITH MEBANE BY DESIGN STRATEGY 
LAND USE GROWTH STRATEGY 
DESIGNATION(S) 

G-4 Secondary Growth Area 
 

OTHER LAND USE CONSIDERATIONS Graham-Mebane Reservoir Water Supply (WS-II) Watershed 

MEBANE BY DESIGN GOALS & 
OBJECTIVES SUPPORTED 

 

MEBANE BY DESIGN GOALS & 
OBJECTIVES NOT SUPPORTED 

 

http://alamance.ustaxdata.com/account.cfm?parcelID=9816955507


 

PAGE 5 

 



 

PAGE 6 

UTILITIES REPORT 

AVAILABLE UTILITIES 
YES   NO  
A petition for annexation is required prior to connection. 

PROPOSED UTILITY NEEDS 

Per the memorandum from Franz Holt of AWCK, the project is 
estimated to require 2,700 gallons per day of water and sewer 
service to support the development’s 18 single-family homes. It 
features 8” sewer lines and 8” and 6” water lines that will 
connect to existing 8-inch water and sewer lines along Mrs. 
Whites Lane. 

UTILITIES PROVIDED BY APPLICANT Applicant has pledged to provide all on-site utilities, as 
described in AWCK’s Technical Memo.  

MUNICIPAL CAPACITY TO ABSORB 
PROJECT  

The City has adequate water & sewer supply to meet the 
domestic and fire flow demands of the project. 

CONSISTENCY WITH MEBANE LONG 
RANGE UTILITY PLAN? 

YES   NO 

ADEQUATE STORMWATER 
CONTROL? 

YES   NO 

INNOVATIVE STORMWATER 
MANAGEMENT? 

YES   NO 

TRANSPORTATION NETWORK STATUS 

CURRENT CONDITIONS 

The subject property is located on Mrs. White Lane and 
separated by one lot to the west from the junction of Mrs. 
White Lane and NC 119. Mrs. White Lane is a southwest-
northeast route in Mebane’s ETJ, operating as a two-lane road 
between NC 119 and a dead-end in the northeastern part of the 
ETJ near the Orange County line. NCDOT does not publish traffic 
volume for this road. In 2020, the average daily traffic volume 
on NC 119 in this area was 3,900 trips.  
 
The site plan features one proposed driveway entrance. 

TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 
REQUIRED? 

YES   NO 

DESCRIPTION OF RECOMMENDED 
IMPROVEMENTS 

N/A 

CONSISTENCY WITH THE MEBANE 
BICYCLE AND PEDESTRIAN 
TRANSPORTATION PLAN? 

 
YES   NO 
The Mebane Bicycle and Pedestrian Transportation Plan 
designates a sidewalk gap on the south side of Mrs. White Lane 
between NC 119 and Rutledge Trail. The proposed sidewalk 
described below meets the intent and is consistent with the 
City’s adopted plans. 



 

PAGE 7 

MULTIMODAL IMPROVEMENTS 
PROVIDED BY APPLICANT? 

YES   NO 

DESCRIPTION OF MULTIMODAL 
IMPROVEMENTS 

The applicant proposes to provide a sidewalk that will extend 
along the property’s frontage on Mrs. White Lane and extend 
across the site to connect to a crosswalk across the gravel drive 
that will be paved to the east.  

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
STAFF ZONING 
RECOMMENDATION  

 APPROVE    DISAPPROVE 

STAFF SPECIAL USE FINDING 
 CONSISTENT    NOT CONSISTENT………………..WITH MEBANE 
BY DESIGN 

RATIONALE 

The proposed development “Mill Run” is consistent with the 
guidance provided within Mebane By Design, the Mebane 
Comprehensive Land Development Plan, and in harmony with the 
residential nature of the area. The proposed project will be 
developed in compliance with the watershed overlay district. 

 



 

CITY OF MEBANE 106 East Washington Street  |  Mebane, NC 27302  919 563 5901  fholt@cityofmebane.com 

W W W . C I T Y O F M E B A N E . C O M  

 

July 13, 2022 
 
Mr. Charles P. Koch, PE 
Earth Centric Engineering, Inc. 
204 West Clay Street 
Mebane, NC 27302 
 
Subject: Mill Run – Water and Sewer System Layout 
 
Dear Mr. Koch: 

  
Regarding the Preliminary Site Plans for Mill Run and in accordance with the UDO, this letter indicates that I have 
reviewed the preliminary water and sewer system layout and find it acceptable and meeting City of Mebane 
requirements as follows:  

 
 

A. Water system – The project proposes an 8-inch connection to the City’s existing 8-inch water line along Mrs. White 
Lane and extending the line to the across the project frontage which includes appropriate valves and fire hydrants.  
Internal to the project site are 8-inch and 6-inch water line extensions with appropriate valves and fire hydrant 
spacing. When designed and installed to City and State standards, these public lines will become part of the City’s 
water system. The estimated daily water use for this project is 2,700 gallons per day (18 homes at 150 gallons per day 
each). The City has adequate water capacity available to meet the domestic demand and fire flow requirements of 
this project.  

 
B. Sanitary Sewer system – The project proposes an 8-inch sanitary sewer connection with the City’s existing 8-inch 

gravity sewer line along Mrs. White Lane and extending the line as far as it can serve other properties by gravity, which 
is the site entrance.  Additionally, a private sewer easement has been provided to allow for a private force main in 
common area to serve the adjacent property (if needed).  Internal to the project site are 8-inch gravity sewer lines 
with properly spaced manholes. When designed and installed to City and State standards, these public lines will 
become part of the City’s sanitary sewer collection system. The state permitted daily sewer use for this project is 
5,040 gallons per day (18 homes with a mix of 3 and 4 bedrooms at 280 gallons per day each). Actual tributary flow 
will be closer to 2,700 gallons per day. The City has adequate sewer capacity available at the downstream North 
Regional Sewer Pump Station and at the WRRF to meet the permitted and expected tributary demand. 

 
If there are any questions, please let me know. 
Sincerely, 

 
Franz K. Holt, P.E. City Engineer 
CC: Ashley Ownbey, Interim Development Director 

        Kyle Smith, Utilities Director 



 

CITY OF MEBANE 106 East Washington Street | Mebane, NC 27302 (919) 563 5901 fholt@cityofmebane.com 

W W W . C I T Y O F M E B A N E . C O M  

Technical Memorandum         

Date: July 13, 2022 

To: Ashley Ownbey, Interim Development Director 

From: Franz K. Holt, P.E.  

Subject:  Mill Run – City Engineer review 

 
City Engineering has reviewed the Preliminary Site Plans for Mill Run submitted June 7th, 2022, by Charles 
P. Koch, P.E. with Earth Centric Engineering, Inc. and provides the following technical comments. 
 

A. General 
Mill Run is a single family residential development (18 homes on min. 12,000 SF lots) proposed on 
approximately 10.01 acres at 4677 Mrs. White Lane.  
 
The property is in the Graham-Mebane Lake public water supply watershed (general watershed 
area - GWA). Plans show using the high-density option allowed in the GWA (non-critical area) with 
new engineered stormwater control facilities receiving storm water runoff from proposed new 
development (max. built upon area of 30%).  In addition, Phase 2 post construction runoff rules 
also apply to the project.  The plans show using a low density option without curb and gutter which 
limits the maximum built upon area to 24%. 
 
Water and sewer service are from Mebane 8-inch water and sewer lines along Mrs. White Lane. 
 
One cul-de-sac is proposed connecting to Mrs. White Lane (S.R. 1918) and constructed as a 26’ 
ribbon pavement section with a 5-ft. wide concrete sidewalk being typically located on one side of 
the street.  Sidewalk is also being extended along the property frontage. 
 
A private 4’ gravel trail is proposed to be constructed in the surrounding private common area. 
 

B. Availability of City Water and Sewer 
 

In compliance with the UDO, this memo indicates that I have reviewed the preliminary water and 
sewer system layout and find it acceptable and meeting City of Mebane requirements as follows:  
 
1. Water system – The project proposes an 8-inch connection to the City’s existing 8-inch water 

line along Mrs. White Lane and extending the line to the across the project frontage which 
includes appropriate valves and fire hydrants.  Internal to the project site are 8-inch and 6-inch 
water line extensions with appropriate valves and fire hydrant spacing. When designed and 
installed to City and State standards, these public lines will become part of the City’s water 



 

CITY OF MEBANE 106 East Washington Street | Mebane, NC 27302 (919) 563 5901 fholt@cityofmebane.com 

W W W . C I T Y O F M E B A N E . C O M  

system. The estimated daily water use for this project is 2,700 gallons per day (18 homes at 
150 gallons per day each). The City has adequate water capacity available to meet the domestic 
demand and fire flow requirements of this project. 
  

2. Sanitary Sewer system – The project proposes an 8-inch sanitary sewer connection with the 
City’s existing 8-inch gravity sewer line along Mrs. White Lane and extending the line as far as 
it can serve other properties by gravity, which is the site entrance.  Additionally, a private sewer 
easement has been provided to allow for a private force main in common area to serve the 
adjacent property (if needed).  Internal to the project site are 8-inch gravity sewer lines with 
properly spaced manholes. When designed and installed to City and State standards, these 
public lines will become part of the City’s sanitary sewer collection system. The state permitted 
daily sewer use for this project is 5,040 gallons per day (18 homes with a mix of 3 and 4 
bedrooms at 280 gallons per day each). Actual tributary flow will be closer to 2,700 gallons per 
day. The City has adequate sewer capacity available at the downstream North Regional Sewer 
Pump Station and at the WRRF to meet the permitted and expected tributary demand. 
 

 
C. Watershed Overlay District and Phase II Stormwater Requirements 

 
1. Watershed Overlay District requirements provided in the UDO. 

These requirements in the UDO are for the Back-Creek Watershed, which includes the 
Graham-Mebane Lake. This project lies in the GWA non-critical area allowing up to 30% built 
upon area with engineered stormwater controls. The proposed stormwater management 
devices shown on the plans receives stormwater runoff from the proposed new development 
and will meet the requirements of the Water Supply Watershed Rules. Upon site stabilization, 
the developer will complete the engineered storm water control as a fenced permanent 
stormwater management device (owned and maintained by the property owners’ association) 
and post required annual inspection fee and maintenance bond. 
 

2. Phase II Stormwater Post Construction Ordinance 
The UDO provides standards for Storm Water Management and requires compliance with the 
Mebane Post Construction Runoff Ordinance (which is a stand-alone ordinance titled the 
Phase II Stormwater Post Construction Ordinance (SPCO)). The standards in the UDO are 
general standards as the Ordinance itself provides detailed standards. The SPCO does apply to 
this project as it will disturb more than one acre of land requiring a stormwater permit 
application. The estimated new built upon area is no more than 24% and therefore considered 
low density under this ordinance.  Additionally, 10 year detention is required on all storm water 
control measures (SCMs).  100 year detention is being provided with the proposed SCMs. 
 
 



 

CITY OF MEBANE 106 East Washington Street | Mebane, NC 27302 (919) 563 5901 fholt@cityofmebane.com 

W W W . C I T Y O F M E B A N E . C O M  

D. Storm Drainage System 

The UDO provides requirements for storm drainage systems. The preliminary site plans include a 
preliminary piping layout that indicates certain pipe locations, inlets, and discharge points. 
Stormwater flows from these pipes to a stormwater management device. Design of the storm 
drainage system will be in accordance with the City’s Storm Drainage Design Manual. 

E. Street Access  

The proposed street (cul-de-sac) shown on the plans is to be constructed to City of Mebane 
standards with 26’ paved width and sidewalk located typically on one side.  The curb and gutter 
requirement is being waived by Engineering to allow the Phase 2 Post Construction Runoff 
Ordinance to be utilized with a maximum built upon area of 24%. 
 

F. Construction Plan Submittal 
 

The preliminary plans show the proposed water lines, sewer lines, and storm drainage and 
stormwater management devices to indicate that the project is feasible for utility service and 
providing stormwater management. Based on city engineering review, it is my opinion that said 
plans are in substantial compliance with the UDO. Construction plans will follow preliminary plan 
approval and require TRC review and approval prior to beginning construction. 



 P a g e  | 1 

AGENDA ITEM #5c 
RZ 22-09 
Conditional Rezoning –  
Peartree Townhomes 

Presenter 
Ashley Ownbey, Interim Development Director 

Applicant 
KB Home Carolinas Division 
4506 S. Miami Blvd Ste. 100 
Durham, NC 27703 

Public Hearing 
Yes   No  

Zoning Map 

 

Property 
Peartree Dr & 
Parker Ln  

GPINs: 9824071555 
& 9824073438 

Proposed Zoning 
R-8(CD) 

Current Zoning 
R-8(CD) & R-20 

Size 
 +/-10.67 acres  

Surrounding 
Zoning 
R-20, R-12(CD), 
O&I(CD), O&I, 
B-2(CD), B-2, 
 R-6(CD) 
Surrounding Land 
Uses 
Single-Family 
Residential, Multi-
Family Residential, 
Commercial, Vacant 

Utilities 
To be extended at 
developer’s expense 

Floodplain 
No 

Watershed 
No 

City Limits 
No 



A g e n d a  I t e m  c o n t i n u e d   P a g e  | 2 

Summary 
KB Home Carolinas Division is requesting approval to conditionally rezone two properties totaling +/- 10.67 
acres located at Peartree Dr & Parker Ln (PINs 9824071555 & 9824073438) from R-8 (CD) and R-20 to R-8 
(CD) to allow for a residential development “Peartree Townhomes” of 70 townhomes. The property is 
located outside of City Limits in the Mebane Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ). A petition for annexation is 
required prior to connection to City utilities. The applicant has the properties under contract to purchase, 
contingent upon approval of the conditional rezoning. 

The site-specific plan includes the following amenities & dedications:  
• An internal road with 5’ sidewalks, with connections to existing sidewalk networks along Baker Lane 

and S Eighth Street. 
• The site plan features +/-2.07 acres of private common open space in addition to a gravel walking 

path, a sports field, bocce ball and cornhole courts, a shelter, and a dog park, all of which will be 
HOA-maintained. 

• The applicant proposes to pave in the existing Stratford Drive right-of-way in order to connect to 
existing pavement. 

Requested waivers: 
• The Mebane UDO requires a front setback of 25’. The applicant is proposing a 20’ front setback. 
• The Mebane UDO requires an end-unit, side setback of 15’. The applicant is proposing a 10’ side 

setback. 
• The UDO calculates that the applicant shall provide two acres in public recreation area valued at 

$70,486 (total tax value of $376,041 for 10.67 acres or $35,242.83/acre. The applicant is proposing 
to provide a payment in lieu of the valued amount. 
 

The Technical Review Committee (TRC) has reviewed the site plan five (5) times and the applicant has 
revised the plan to reflect the comments.  

Financial Impact 
The developer will be required to make all of the onsite improvements at their own expense.  

Recommendation 
At their July 18 meeting, the Planning Board voted 7 – 0 to recommend approval of the rezoning request. 

The Planning staff has reviewed the request for harmony with the zoning of the surrounding area and 
consistency with the City’s adopted plans and recommends approval of the rezoning.  

Suggested Motion 
1. Motion to approve the R-8 (CD) zoning as presented.  
 
2. Motion to find that the application is consistent with the objectives and goals in the City’s 2017 

Comprehensive Land Development Plan Mebane By Design. Specifically, the request: 
 
 Is for a property within the City’s G-1 Mixed-Use (Cameron Lane) and is residential in nature; and 



A g e n d a  I t e m  c o n t i n u e d   P a g e  | 3 

 
 Promotes a village concept that supports compact and walkable environments, consistent with 

Growth Management Goal 1.1 (pp. 17 & 82) 
 
OR 
 
3. Motion to deny the R-8(CD) rezoning as presented due to a lack of 

 
a. Harmony with the surrounding zoning or land use 

OR 
b. Consistency with the objectives and goals in the City’s 2017 Comprehensive Land Development 

Plan Mebane By Design. 

Attachments 
1. Zoning Amendment Application 
2. Zoning Map 
3. Site Plan 
4. Planning Project Report  
5. Preliminary Water and Sewer System Approval Letter 
6. Technical Memorandum – City Engineering Review 
7. Traffic Impact Statement 

 
 









1 inch = 350 feet

S
 E

IG
H

T
H

 S
T

ARROW
HEAD LN

C
A

R
D

E
N

 P
LA

C
E

 D
R

APPLECROSS DR

FA
IR

W
A

Y
 D

R

M
E

B
A

N
E

 O
A

K
S

 R
D

P
V

T
 D

R

STRATFORD DR

ARROWHEAD BLVD

FIELDALE RD

BAKER LN

AVALON DR

BUCKINGHAM DR

ARROWHEAD CT

B
U

N
K

E
R

 C
T

P
E

A
R

T
R

E
E

 D
R

PVT ALY

P
A

R
K

E
R

 L
N

B
E

E
C

H
 G

L
E

N
 D

R

S
 F

IF
T

H
 S

T

B-3

O&I(CD)

B-2

R-6(CD)

R-8(CD)

R-20

R-12(CD)

O&I
B-2(CD)

R-12

NC CGIA, Maxar

DATE: 07/08/22

DRAWN BY: AV

CITY OF MEBANE Conditional Rezoning
Peartree TownhomesZONING MAP

City Limits

ETJ

Peartree Townhomes Subject Property´



BY
D

AT
E

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

13 2456

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

D
R

AW
IN

G
 A

LT
ER

AT
IO

N

IT
 IS

 A
 V

IO
LA

TI
O

N
 O

F 
LA

W
 F

O
R

 A
N

Y 
PE

R
SO

N
,

U
N

LE
SS

 A
C

TI
N

G
 U

N
D

ER
 T

H
E 

D
IR

EC
TI

O
N

 O
F

LI
C

EN
SE

D
 A

R
C

H
IT

EC
T,

 P
R

O
FE

SS
IO

N
AL

EN
G

IN
EE

R
,  

LA
N

D
SC

AP
E 

AR
C

H
IT

EC
T,

   
O

R
LA

N
D

 S
U

R
VE

YO
R

 T
O

 A
LT

ER
 A

N
Y 

IT
EM

 O
N

TH
IS

 D
O

C
U

M
EN

T 
IN

 A
N

Y 
W

AY
. A

N
Y 

LI
C

EN
SE

E
W

H
O

 A
LT

ER
S 

TH
IS

 D
O

C
U

M
EN

T 
IS

 R
EQ

U
IR

ED
BY

 L
AW

 T
O

 A
FF

IX
 H

IS
 O

R
 H

ER
 S

EA
L 

AN
D

 T
H

E
N

O
TA

TI
O

N
 "A

LT
ER

ED
 B

Y"
 F

O
LL

O
W

ED
 B

Y 
H

IS
O

R
 H

ER
 S

IG
N

AT
U

R
E 

AN
D

 S
PE

C
IF

IC
D

ES
C

R
IP

TI
O

N
 O

F 
TH

E 
AL

TE
R

AT
IO

N
S.

PR
O

JE
C

T 
EN

G
IN

EE
R

/A
R

C
H

IT
EC

T

PR
O

JE
C

T 
M

AN
AG

ER

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y

7

DRAWING NAME:

C

FI
R

ST
 IS

SU
E 

D
AT

E

C
O

PY
R

IG
H

T 
   

   
 2

02
2

SU
M

M
IT

 D
ES

IG
N

 A
N

D
EN

G
IN

EE
R

IN
G

 S
ER

V
IC

ES
AM

 (A
LE

X.
MA

NG
OT

@
SU

MM
ITD

E.
CO

M)

DS
 (D

ON
.S

EV
ER

@
SU

MM
ITD

E.
CO

M)

21-0047

PE
A

R
TR

EE
 T

O
W

N
H

O
M

ES
M

EB
AN

E,
 N

C
BA

KE
R

 L
N

SI
TE

 P
LA

N

JA
 (J

IM
MY

.A
SH

LE
Y@

SU
MM

ITD
E.

CO
M)

04
-14

-20
21

NOT            FOR

CONSTRUCTION

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY "NC811" (811) OR (1-800-632-4949) AT
LEAST 3 FULL BUSINESS DAYS PRIOR TO BEGINNING CONSTRUCTION
OR EXCAVATION TO HAVE EXISTING UTILITIES LOCATED.
CONTRACTOR SHALL CONTACT ANY LOCAL UTILITIES THAT PROVIDE
THEIR OWN LOCATOR SERVICES INDEPENDENT OF "NC811".  REPORT
ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE ENGINEER IMMEDIATELY.

N

DEVELOPER/FUTURE OWNER
KB HOME CAROLINA DIVISION
ATTN. THURM BOWEN
4506 S. MIAMI BLVD. STE. 100
DURHAM, NC 27703
(919) 768-7972 (PHONE)
RTBOWEN@KBHOME.COM

CURRENT OWNER
LARRY JR & SUSAN W. WOOD
106 SAM SNEAD DR.
MEBANE, NC 27302

G&L CONSTRUCTION, LLC
518 S. ASHEBORO ST.
LIBERTY, NC 27298

SITE LOCATION MAP
NOT TO SCALE

ENGINEER CONTACT
SUMMIT DESIGN & ENGINEERING SERVICES
DON SEVER, PE
1110 NAVAHO, DR. STE. 600
RALEIGH, NC 27609
(919) 322-0115 (PHONE)
(919) 732-6676 (FAX)
DON.SEVER@SUMMITDE.COM

SURVEY CONTACT
SUMMIT DESIGN & ENGINEERING SERVICES
THOMAS TELLUP
320 EXECUTIVE COURT
HILLSBOROUGH, NC 27278
(919) 732-3883 (PHONE)
(919) 732-6676 (FAX)
THOMAS.TELLUP@SUMMITDE.COM

SITE PLAN SUBMITTAL 
FOR

BAKER LANE
MEBANE, NC

PEARTREE TOWNHOMES

PARCELS
PIN: 9824-07-1555 & 9824-07-3438
DB 2648 PG 432 & DB 2521 PG 876

ZONING : R-8 (CD) & R-20
10.67 ACRES

SHEET INDEX
Sheet

Number Sheet Title

C-1 COVER SHEET
EXISTING SURVEY

C-3 SITE & UTILITY PLAN
C-4 GRADING & STORM DRAINAGE PLAN

21-0047_CS.dwg

C-1

CO
VE

R 
SH

EE
T

E  I-40

VICINITY MAP
1:2000 SCALE

C-2

NOTE:
1.  STREETSCAPE, BUFFERS AND COMMON ELEMENTS INCLUDING PARKING SPACES
     AND AMENITIES ARE THE RESPONSIBILITY  FOR THE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION TO
     OWN AND MAINTAIN.
2.  STORMWATER PONDS SHALL BE SCREENED WITH EVERGREEN PLANTS TO REDUCE
     VISIBILITY.
3.  TREE PROTECTION FENCING SHALL BE PLACED OUTSIDE THE DRIPLINE OF ANY
     VEGETATION TO BE PRESERVED PRIOR TO GRADING AND SHALL REMAIN IN PLACE
     UNTIL CONSTRUCTION IS COMPLETED.
4.  A LANDSCAPE PLAN WILL BE PROVIDED AT CONSTRUCTION DRAWING
     SUBMITTAL.  LANDSCAPE SCREENING BETWEEN DOG PARK, RECREATION AREA,

MAIL KIOSK PARKING AND ADJACENT TOWNHOMES.
5.  TYPES AND SIZES OF ALL PLANT MATERIAL SHALL BE IDENTIFIED AND APPROVED
     PRIOR TO PLANTING.
6.  ANNEXATION IS REQUIRED PRIOR TO CONNECTION TO CITY UTILITIES.
7.  THE SITE WILL BE DEVELOPED AS A HIGH DENSITY STORMWATER PROJECT.  SITE

WILL BE TREATED FOR STORMWATER INCLUDING ALL NEW BUILT UPON AREA AND
DOG PARK.

8. THE SITE WILL COMPLY WITH THE CITY'S RIPARIAN BUFFER ORDINANCE AND
STREAM AND WETLAND DELINEATION WILL BE PROVIDED WITH CONSTRUCTION
DRAWING SUBMITTALS.

O
R

AN
G

E 
C

O
U

N
TY

AL
AM

AN
C

E 
C

O
U

N
TY

SITE

AREAS IN YELLOW ARE OUTSIDE CITY LIMITS INCLUDING THIS SITEAPPROVED SITE PLAN
07/12/2022

N:\2021\21-0047.002 BakerLaneTH\Civil\Current Drawings\21-0047_CS.dwg, 7/12/2022 9:58:21 AM, DWG To PDF.pc3

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED SITE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
07/12/22

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
24627

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY



B
A

K
ER

 L
N

.
60

' P
U

B
LI

C
 R

/W

ST
R

A
TF

O
R

D
 S

T.
60

' P
U

B
LI

C
 R

/W

SCM #1

R-20,
R-8CD,

TO BE DEMOLISHED

MEBANE ETJ (OUT)

MEBANE ETJ (OUT)

M
EB

AN
E 

ET
J 

(O
U

T)

M
EB

AN
E 

C
IT

Y 
LI

M
IT

S 
(IN

)

MEBANE ETJ (OUT)MEBANE ETJ (OUT)

MEBANE ETJ (OUT)

NOTE:  EXISTING PARCEL HAS MIX OF
HARDWOODS AND PINES, NO WETLANDS
FOUND ONSITE, NO SLOPES GREATER
THAN 15%

473 - 474,

N:\2021\21-0047.002 BakerLaneTH\Civil\Current Drawings\21-0047_XC.dwg, 7/12/2022 10:14:37 AM, DWG To PDF.pc3



O
S

OS

OS

OS

O
S

O
S

O
S

O
S

OSOS

OS

OS

O
S

O
S

O
S

OS

O
S

O
S

O
S

OS

OS

O
S

O
S

O
S

OS

OS

OS OS

OS

OS

O
S

O
S

O
S

OS

OS

O
S

O
S

O
SO

S
O

S

OS

OS

OSOSOS

OS

OS

O
S

O
S O

S
O

SO
S

OS

O
SO

S

OS

O
S

O
S

O
S

O
S

OS OS OS

O
SOS

OS

O
S

O
S

O
S

OS

OS

OS OS OS O
S

OS

O
S

O
S

OS

O
S

OS

S9° 28' 44"W
73.52'

S20° 07' 14"W
80.44'

S13° 48' 57"W
176.21'

S13° 48' 57"W
31.83'

N
70

° 5
7'

 3
4"

W
14

2.
33

'

S18° 44' 10"W
196.02'S19° 40' 54"W

126.09'S19° 40' 54"W

126.00'

N
72

° 5
8'

 1
1"

W
19

5.
21

'

N16° 16' 24"E
122.55'

N16° 16' 24"E
77.88'

S7
3°

 1
9'

 0
7"

E
24

6.
43

'

N16° 19' 56"E
574.42'

N16° 22' 22"E
833.35'

N
73

° 4
2'

 1
2"

W
36

.2
2'

N
73

° 4
2'

 1
2"

W
15

1.
89

'
N

73
° 4

2'
 1

2"
W

68
.2

9'

S18° 44' 10"W
125.73'

S19° 40' 54"W
45.05'

W W W W W W W W W W W

W

SS

SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS

N 848109
E 1920360

SD

SD

 CARRENO DEVELOPERS LLC
PIN:  9824073076

PID#: 167521
DB 3579 PG 629

ZONED: O&I (CD) & R-6 (CD)
USE: SINGLE FAMILY

AREA: 1.94 AC

B
A

K
ER

 L
N

.
60

' P
U

B
LI

C
 R

/W

 CARDEN PLACE (NC) OWNER LLC
PIN: 9824078304

PID#: 170552
DB 4263 PG 0762

PB 74 PG 474
ZONED: R-8 (CD)

USE: APARTMENTS
AREA: 14.76 AC

 23
STEPHEN OATES &

JANNETH TOREZ OATES
PIN: 9824087129

PID#: 167544
DB 3503 PG 0135

PB 73 PG 20
ZONED: R-12 (CD)

 USE: SINGLE FAMILY
AREA: 0.215 AC

 25
WENDY W KUAN

REVOCABLE TRUST
PIN: 9824085276

PID#: 171591
DB 4248 PG 0140

PB 75 PG 21
ZONED: R-12 (CD)

USE: SINGLE FAMILY
AREA: 0.357 AC

 26
HOLLY MICHELS & TYLER

WILLIAMS MICHELS
PIN: 9824084390

PID#: 171592
DB 4254 PG 0504

PB 75 PG 210
ZONED: R-12 (CD)

USE: SINGLE FAMILY
AREA: 0.42 AC

ST
R

A
TF

O
R

D
 S

T.
60

' P
U

B
LI

C
 R

/W

 HENRY J. EIDEN
BARBARA A EIDEN

PIN: 9824083254
PID#: 167535

DB 507 PG 308
ZONED: R-20

USE: SINGLE FAMILY
AREA: 0.41 AC

 JOSEPH L. WIGGS
ISOBLE W. WIGGS

PIN: 9824072987
PID#: 167520

DB 2003 PG 356
PG 31 PG 24

ZONED: R-20
USE: SINGLE FAMILY

AREA: 0.65

 JENNIFER SUE M. NEWLIN
PIN: 9824070738

PID#: 167518
DB 3588 PG 430

PB 77 PG 201
ZONED: R-20

USE: SINGLE FAMILY
AREA: 0.82

 MAHMOUD GHONEIM
PIN: 9814979790

PID#: 172867
DB 3492 PG 747

PB 77 PG 201
ZONED: R-20

USE: VACANT
AREA: 0.53

KRISTIN MARIE CLEVELAND
PIN: 9814979568

PID#: 164738
DB 4236 PG 803

PB 34 PG 6
ZONED: R-20

USE: SINGLE FAMILY
AREA: 0.63 AC

 LARRY P. WOOD JR.
SUSAN W. WOOD
PIN: 9814979427

PID#: 164737
DB 797 PG 809

PB 47 PG 20
ZONED: R-20

USE: SINGLE FAMILY
AREA: 0.65 AC

 LINDA S. ALBRIGHT
PIN: 9814978385

PID#: 164734
DB 2521 PG 872

PB 47 PG 20
ZONED: R-20

USE: SINGLE FAMILY
AREA: 0.64 AC

 WOOD ELECTRICAL
CONTRACTORS
PIN: 9814978233

PID#: 164733
DB 2920 PG 509

PB 47 PG 20
ZONED: R-20

USE: VACANT
AREA: 0.68 AC

QUALITY PROPERTIES
TODAY LLC

PIN: 9814979096
PID#: 164736

DB 4033 PG 871
ZONED: B-2

USE: VACANT
AREA: 0.35 AC

QUALITY PROPERTIES
TODAY LLC

PIN: 9814969956
PID#: 164708

DB 4033 PG 871
ZONED: B-2

USE: VACANT
AREA: 0.35 AC

LORI W. LOWE
PIN: 9824070127

PID#: 170824
DB 3271 PG 354

PB 67 PG 57
ZONED: R-20

USE: SINGLE FAMILY

LD LD

LD

LD LD
LD

LD

LD

LD
LD

TP TP TP TP TP TP
TP TP TP

TP
TP

TP
TP

TP

TP TP TP TP

TP
TP TP TP

TP

LDLDLDLDLDLDLDLDLDLDLDLDLDLDLDLDLDLDLDLDLDLDLDLD
LD

LDLDLDLDLDLDLD

LD

LDLDLDLDLDLDLD

LD
LD

LD
LD

LD

LD

LD
LD

LD

LD

LD

LD LD

LD LD LD LD LD LD LD LD LD LD LD LD LD LD

LD
LD

LD
LD

LD
LD LD LD LD

LD LD LD LD
LD

LD LD

TP

TP

TP TP TP

TP
TP

TP
TP

TP
TP

TP
TP

TP

TP
TPTPTPTPTPTPTP

TP
TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP

TP
TP

TP
TP

TP
TP TP TP TP TP TP

TP TP TP TP TP
TP

TP
TP TP

SCM B

SCM A
 24

EILEEN B PEREZ
PIN: 9824086252

PID#: 167542
DB 3140 PG 305

PB 73 PG 20
ZONED: R-12 (CD)

 USE: SINGLE FAMILY
AREA: 0.298 AC

ARROWHEAD
HOA

 WILTON ASHLEY &
TINA H

PIN: 9824082256
PID#: 167533

DB 737 PG 877
ZONED: R-20

USE: SINGLE FAMILY
AREA: 0.49 AC

 FRANCES LEDFORD
PIN: 9824081013

PID#: 167530
DB 1532 PG 237

PG 31 PG 24
ZONED: R-20

USE: SINGLE FAMILY
AREA: 0.96

 WILTON ASHLEY &
TINA H

PIN: 9824081360
PID#: 167531

DB 737 PG 877
ZONED: R-20

USE: SINGLE FAMILY
AREA: 0.46 AC

LD
LD

LD

LDLDLD
LD

LDLD
LD

LD

LD
LD

LD
LD

LD
LD

LD

LD

LD
LD

LD
LD

LD
LD

LD
LD

LD
LD

TP TP
TP

TPTP

TP TP

TP

TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP

TP

TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP
TP

TP
TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP

1312111098

7

6
54321

302928272625242322212019

18

17161514

484342373631

61
62636465

66
67

6869
70

4950515253
5455

56575859
60

O
S 33

4746454441403938353432

SITE INFORMATION :
CURRENT OWNER: LARRY JR & SUSAN W WOOD

G & L CONSTRUCTION, LLC
APPLICANT: KB HOME CAROLINAS DIVISION
PIN: 9824071555 & 9824073438
PARCEL ID: 167519 & 167522
SITE ADDRESS: PEARTREE DR & PARKER LANE

JURISDICTION: MELVILLE
RIVER BASIN: CAPE FEAR
WATERSHED: NONE
WATERSHED PROTECTION: NONE

EXISTING USE: VACANT
EXISTING ZONING: R-8 (CD) & R-20
PROPOSED ZONING: R-8 (CD)
PROPOSED USE: TOWNHOME DEVELOPMENT
TOTAL GROSS AREA: 10.67 ACRES

ON-SITE LAND DISTURBANCE AREA: 8.43 ACRES - 79%

DENSITY ALLOWED: 10 LOTS / 1 AC = 107
DENSITY PROPOSED: 6.5 LOTS / 1 AC = 70
PROPOSED NUMBER OF LOTS 70

CURRENT / PROPOSED IMPERVIOUS:  0% /  44% (4.68 AC)

OPEN SPACE REQUIRED/ PROVIDED:500 SF x UNITS (70)
7.53% (0.80 AC)/ 10.5%(1.12 AC)

ACTIVE RECREATIONAL AREA REQUIRED/ PROVIDED:
     PUBLIC RECREATION IS REQUIRED AND FEE IN LIEU
     REQUESTED ($70,486) FOR 0.0285714 AC/UNIT (70)=2.0 AC

PRIVATE AMENITIES TO BE HOA MAINTAINED

FRONT SETBACK: 20 FEET WITH DRIVEWAYS
REAR SETBACK: 20 FEET
SIDE SETBACK: 10 FEET FOR END UNIT ONLY
SEPARATION OF BUILDING: 20 FEET BETWEEN BUILDINGS MIN.

PARKING:
REQUIRED = 2/DWELLING PLUS 0.5 PER BEDROOM OVER 2 BEDROOMS
SPACES REQUIRED: 175 (INCLUDED: 1/DRIVEWAY &

1/GARAGE)
PROVIDED: 177

LENGTH OF ROAD: ± 1,284 LF
AREA WITHIN R.O.W: ± 57,787 SF

BY
D

AT
E

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

13 2456

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

D
R

AW
IN

G
 A

LT
ER

AT
IO

N

IT
 IS

 A
 V

IO
LA

TI
O

N
 O

F 
LA

W
 F

O
R

 A
N

Y 
PE

R
SO

N
,

U
N

LE
SS

 A
C

TI
N

G
 U

N
D

ER
 T

H
E 

D
IR

EC
TI

O
N

 O
F

LI
C

EN
SE

D
 A

R
C

H
IT

EC
T,

 P
R

O
FE

SS
IO

N
AL

EN
G

IN
EE

R
,  

LA
N

D
SC

AP
E 

AR
C

H
IT

EC
T,

   
O

R
LA

N
D

 S
U

R
VE

YO
R

 T
O

 A
LT

ER
 A

N
Y 

IT
EM

 O
N

TH
IS

 D
O

C
U

M
EN

T 
IN

 A
N

Y 
W

AY
. A

N
Y 

LI
C

EN
SE

E
W

H
O

 A
LT

ER
S 

TH
IS

 D
O

C
U

M
EN

T 
IS

 R
EQ

U
IR

ED
BY

 L
AW

 T
O

 A
FF

IX
 H

IS
 O

R
 H

ER
 S

EA
L 

AN
D

 T
H

E
N

O
TA

TI
O

N
 "A

LT
ER

ED
 B

Y"
 F

O
LL

O
W

ED
 B

Y 
H

IS
O

R
 H

ER
 S

IG
N

AT
U

R
E 

AN
D

 S
PE

C
IF

IC
D

ES
C

R
IP

TI
O

N
 O

F 
TH

E 
AL

TE
R

AT
IO

N
S.

PR
O

JE
C

T 
EN

G
IN

EE
R

/A
R

C
H

IT
EC

T

PR
O

JE
C

T 
M

AN
AG

ER

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y

7

DRAWING NAME:

C

FI
R

ST
 IS

SU
E 

D
AT

E

C
O

PY
R

IG
H

T 
   

   
 2

02
2

SU
M

M
IT

 D
ES

IG
N

 A
N

D
EN

G
IN

EE
R

IN
G

 S
ER

V
IC

ES
AM

 (A
LE

X.
MA

NG
OT

@
SU

MM
ITD

E.
CO

M)

DS
 (D

ON
.S

EV
ER

@
SU

MM
ITD

E.
CO

M)

21-0047

PE
A

R
TR

EE
 T

O
W

N
H

O
M

ES
M

EB
AN

E,
 N

C
BA

KE
R

 L
N

SI
TE

 P
LA

N

JA
 (J

IM
MY

.A
SH

LE
Y@

SU
MM

ITD
E.

CO
M)

04
-14

-20
21

NOT            FOR

CONSTRUCTION

1 inch =           ft.

GRAPHIC SCALE

( IN FEET )
50

NOTE: BOUNDARY AND TOPOGRAPHY INFORMATION SHOWN HEREON WAS TAKEN FROM A CAD
FILE PROVIDED BY CAROLINA CORNERSTONE SURVEYING & LAND DESIGN, DATED: 2/20/2019

21-0047_S.dwg

C-3

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

SI
TE

 A
ND

 U
TI

LI
TY

 P
LA

N

12' CONCRETE DRIVEWAY TO PROP.
LINE WITH 20' ACCESS EASEMENT
FROM PUBLIC R/W TO PROP. LINE

SHELTER

BOCCE BALL
& CORNHOLE

LIMITS OF DISTURBANCE
(TYPICAL)

LIMITS OF DISTURBANCE
(TYPICAL)

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY "NC811" (811) OR (1-800-632-4949) AT
LEAST 3 FULL BUSINESS DAYS PRIOR TO BEGINNING CONSTRUCTION
OR EXCAVATION TO HAVE EXISTING UTILITIES LOCATED.
CONTRACTOR SHALL CONTACT ANY LOCAL UTILITIES THAT PROVIDE
THEIR OWN LOCATOR SERVICES INDEPENDENT OF "NC811".  REPORT
ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE ENGINEER IMMEDIATELY.

SPORTS FIELD

40
'

40'

20
'

20'

DOG
PARK

40' TYPE "B" BUFFER

20' TYPE "B" BUFFER

40
' T

YP
E 

"B
" B

U
FF

ER

40' TYPE "B" BUFFER

O
R

AN
G

E 
C

O
U

N
TY

AL
AM

AN
C

E 
C

O
U

N
TY

E  I-40

US 70 HWY

SITE

S 
5T

H 
ST

VICINITY MAP
NTS

10
1.

37
'

81
.4

7'

91
.7

9'

91
.7

4'

91
.6

4'

RECREATIONAL OPEN
SPACE = ±2.07 AC (TYP.)

MAINTAINED BY HOA

MAIL
KIOSK

12' HIGH
RETAINING

WALL

8" DIP
WATERLINE

8" DIP
WATERLINE

8" PVC SANITARY
SEWER LINE

FIRE HYDRANT
ASSEMBLY (TYP.)

RETAINING  WALL (1' TO 8' HIGH)
W/ 4' HIGH FENCE

91
.6

7'

87
.4

5'

± 1,066 LF GRAVEL TRAIL - NO
MACHINERY ONLY MINIMAL
CLEARING WITH NO GRADING
ACTIVITY

± 1,504 LF GRAVEL
TRAIL, (TYP.)

20
' T

YP
E 

"B
" S

TR
EE

TS
C

AP
E 

BU
FF

ER

50'STREAMBUFFER C
/L

 1
' S

TR
EA

M

MONUMENT SIGN MAX. HT. 8' WITH
MAX. AREA OF 32 SF. INCLUDING
DECORATIVE LIGHTING TO BE
SHOWN ON CONSTRUCTION SET.

10' X 70' SIGHT
TRIANGLE, TYP.
BOTH SIDES

MONUMENT SIGN W/
DECORATIVE LIGHTING

MAX. HT. 8' WITH MAX.
AREA OF 32 SF.

AREA OF BUFFER

AREA OF OPEN SPCE

AREA OF RECREATIONAL
OPEN SPACE

LEGEND

10'

20'

30'

20'

20'

10'

40'
40'

10'

30'

20'

10'

20'
30' 20' 20'

10'

REMOVE BLOWOFF AND
CONNECT 8"

WATERLINE TO EXIST. 6"
LINE W/ 6"X8" REDUCER.

EXTEND
SIDEWALK
TO 8TH ST.

EXTEND
PAVEMENT TO
MEET EXISTING

STORM DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

SCM & STORM
DRAINAGE

EASEMENT

SCM & STORM
DRAINAGE

EASEMENT

TRAIL EASEMENT

PARKING
EASEMENT (TYP.)

TRAIL EASEMENT

ROLL CURB TO BE ADDED
FOR PARKING SPACES IN

THIS LOCATION

MEBANE CITY LIMITS (OUT)

MEBANE CITY LIMITS (IN)

9'

20
'

20'

9'

9'

20
'

20
'

9'

WET TAP EXISTING WATERLINE WITH
TAPPING SLEEVE AND (1) 8" GATE VALVE

20'

90'

9'

20
'

9'

20
'

9'

20
'

9'

20
'

9'

20
'

9'
9'

5' 5'

3@8'

4@9'

20'

20
'

9'

20
'

9'

EX. SANITARY SEWER

MEBANE CITY LIMITS (OUT)

MEBANE CITY LIMITS (IN)

MEBANE CITY LIMITS (OUT)

MEBANE CITY LIMITS (IN)
MEBANE CITY LIMITS (OUT)

MEBANE CITY LIMITS (OUT)

MEBANE CITY LIMITS (IN)

MEBANE CITY LIMITS (IN)

MEBANE CITY LIMITS (IN)

MEBANE CITY LIMITS (OUT)

MEBANE CITY LIMITS (OUT)

MEBANE CITY LIMITS (OUT)MEBANE CITY LIMITS (OUT)M
EB

AN
E 

C
IT

Y
 L

IM
IT

S 
(IN

)

M
EB

AN
E 

C
IT

Y
 L

IM
IT

S 
(O

U
T)

M
EB

AN
E 

C
IT

Y
 L

IM
IT

S 
(O

U
T)

M
EB

AN
E 

C
IT

Y(
IN

)
M

EB
AN

E 
C

IT
Y(

IN
)

MEBANE CITY LIMITS (OUT)

MEBANE CITY LIMITS (IN)

MEBANE CITY LIMITS (OUT)

MEBANE CITY LIMITS (OUT)

MEBANE CITY LIMITS (OUT)

MEBANE CITY LIMITS (IN)

TYPICAL LOT LAYOUT
NTS

10'

20
' M

IN
.

R
EA

R
 S

ET
BA

C
K

20'

20
' M

IN
 F

R
O

N
T

SE
TB

AC
K

C
O

N
C

. D
R

IV
E

PATIO

LO
T 

LI
N

E

LO
T 

LI
N

E

10
0'

LO
T 

LI
N

E

LO
T 

LI
N

E

LO
T 

LI
N

E

LO
T 

LI
N

E

MINIMUM LOT SIZE FOR 4 UNITS = 10,000 SF
                                           6 UNITS = 14,000 SF

UNIT 1 UNIT 2 UNIT 3 UNIT 4 UNIT 5 UNIT 6

20'10' 20'20'20'20'

LO
T 

LI
N

E

LOT LINE

ROW LINE

FIRE HYDRANT
ASSEMBLY (TYP.)

EX. FIRE HYDRANT

NOTE:  A LANDSCAPE PLAN WILL BE PROVIDED AT CONSTRUCTION DRAWING SUBMITTAL.
LANDSCAPE SCREENING BETWEEN DOG PARK, RECREATION AREA, MAIL KIOSK PARKING AND
ADJACENT TOWNHOMES.

HANDICAP RAMP - CROSSING
FOR PEDESTRIANS
W/ CROSS WALK STRIPING

HANDICAP RAMP - CROSSING
FOR PEDESTRIANS W/
CROSSWALK STRIPING

STOP SIGN,
STOP BAR

AND CROSS
WALK

STRIPING

OPEN CUT
AND PATCH
PER C.O.M

DETAILS.
CORE MH -

FLEXIBLE
BOOT

CONNECTION

STORM DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED SITE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
07/12/22

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
24627

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
100



665

670

664

666

667

668

669

671

672

660

665

670

65
8

659

661662
663

664

666

667
668

669

671

672

W W W W W W W W W W W

W

SS

SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS

N 848109
E 1920360

SD

SD

LD LD

LD

LD LD
LD

LD

LD

LD
LD

TP TP TP TP TP TP
TP TP TP

TP
TP

TP
TP

TP

TP TP TP TP

TP
TP TP TP

TP

LDLDLDLDLDLDLDLDLDLDLDLDLDLDLDLDLDLDLDLDLDLDLDLD
LD

LDLDLDLDLDLDLD

LD

LDLDLDLDLDLDLD

LD
LD

LD
LD

LD

LD

LD
LD

LD

LD

LD

LD LD

LD LD LD LD LD LD LD LD LD LD LD LD LD LD

LD
LD

LD
LD

LD
LD LD LD LD

LD LD LD LD
LD

LD LD

TP

TP

TP TP TP

TP
TP

TP
TP

TP
TP

TP
TP

TP

TP
TPTPTPTPTPTPTP

TP
TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP

TP
TP

TP
TP

TP
TP TP TP TP TP TP

TP TP TP TP TP
TP

TP
TP TP

LD
LD

LD

LDLDLD
LD

LDLD
LD

LD

LD
LD

LD
LD

LD
LD

LD

LD

LD
LD

LD
LD

LD
LD

LD
LD

LD
LD

TP TP
TP

TPTP

TP TP

TP

TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP

TP

TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP
TP

TP
TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP TP

9+80 10+00

11+00 12+00 13+00 14+00 15+00 16+00 17+00 18+00 19+00 20+00 21+00 22+00

23
+0

0

24
+0

0
25

+0
02

5+
18

650

65565
5655 660

660 66
0

665

648

649

651

652

653

654

65665
6656

657

65765
7 65865
8658

659 65
9

65966
1661

661

66
2662

662

663

664

666

667

650

655

660

650

655

655

650

655

660 660

66
0

BY
D

AT
E

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

13 2456

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

D
R

AW
IN

G
 A

LT
ER

AT
IO

N

IT
 IS

 A
 V

IO
LA

TI
O

N
 O

F 
LA

W
 F

O
R

 A
N

Y 
PE

R
SO

N
,

U
N

LE
SS

 A
C

TI
N

G
 U

N
D

ER
 T

H
E 

D
IR

EC
TI

O
N

 O
F

LI
C

EN
SE

D
 A

R
C

H
IT

EC
T,

 P
R

O
FE

SS
IO

N
AL

EN
G

IN
EE

R
,  

LA
N

D
SC

AP
E 

AR
C

H
IT

EC
T,

   
O

R
LA

N
D

 S
U

R
VE

YO
R

 T
O

 A
LT

ER
 A

N
Y 

IT
EM

 O
N

TH
IS

 D
O

C
U

M
EN

T 
IN

 A
N

Y 
W

AY
. A

N
Y 

LI
C

EN
SE

E
W

H
O

 A
LT

ER
S 

TH
IS

 D
O

C
U

M
EN

T 
IS

 R
EQ

U
IR

ED
BY

 L
AW

 T
O

 A
FF

IX
 H

IS
 O

R
 H

ER
 S

EA
L 

AN
D

 T
H

E
N

O
TA

TI
O

N
 "A

LT
ER

ED
 B

Y"
 F

O
LL

O
W

ED
 B

Y 
H

IS
O

R
 H

ER
 S

IG
N

AT
U

R
E 

AN
D

 S
PE

C
IF

IC
D

ES
C

R
IP

TI
O

N
 O

F 
TH

E 
AL

TE
R

AT
IO

N
S.

PR
O

JE
C

T 
EN

G
IN

EE
R

/A
R

C
H

IT
EC

T

PR
O

JE
C

T 
M

AN
AG

ER

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y

7

DRAWING NAME:

C

FI
R

ST
 IS

SU
E 

D
AT

E

C
O

PY
R

IG
H

T 
   

   
 2

02
2

SU
M

M
IT

 D
ES

IG
N

 A
N

D
EN

G
IN

EE
R

IN
G

 S
ER

V
IC

ES
AM

 (A
LE

X.
MA

NG
OT

@
SU

MM
ITD

E.
CO

M)

DS
 (D

ON
.S

EV
ER

@
SU

MM
ITD

E.
CO

M)

21-0047

PE
A

R
TR

EE
 T

O
W

N
H

O
M

ES
M

EB
AN

E,
 N

C
BA

KE
R

 L
N

SI
TE

 P
LA

N

JA
 (J

IM
MY

.A
SH

LE
Y@

SU
MM

ITD
E.

CO
M)

04
-14

-20
21

NOT            FOR

CONSTRUCTION

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

EX. STORM MANHOLE
RIM: 644.58

INV IN: 640.38
INV OUT: 640.08

EX. STORM INLET
RIM: 642.87
THROAT: 641.97
INV IN: 637.49

EX. STORM MANHOLE
RIM: 641.55
INV IN: 634.35

RIM: 645.03
INV IN: 635.83
INV OUT: 635.63

EX. 15" FES
INV: 640.92

EX. 15" HDPE

RIM: 642.05
INV OUT: 611.20 CARRENO DEVELOPERS LLC

DB 3579 PG 629B
A

K
ER

 L
N

.
60

' P
U

B
LI

C
 R

/W

 MEBANE OPERATING COMPANY LLC
DB 3288 PG 991

PB 74 PG 474
LOT ONE

 24
ARROWHEAD SUBDIVISION

PB 73 PG 21
 PHASE ONE

 25
ARROWHEAD SUBDIVISION

PB 73 PG 21
PHASE ONE

 26
ARROWHEAD SUBDIVISION

PB 75 PG 210
PHASE 1B

ST
R

A
TF

O
R

D
 S

T.
60

' P
U

B
LI

C
 R

/W

 HENRY J. EIDEN
BARBARA A EIDEN

DB 507 PG 308
 JOSEPH L. WIGGS
ISOBLE W. WIGGS

DB 2003 PG 356
PG 31 PG 24

LOT 2

 JENNIFER SUE M. NEWLIN
DB 3588 PG 430

PB 77 PG 201
LOT 1

 EDWARD J. WOJTON JR
REVOCABLE TRUST

DB 3492 PG 797
PB 77 PG 201

LOT 2

 WINFRED B. BIERLY JR.
PATRICIA S. STOCKTON

DB 3163 PG 467
PB 34 PG 6

LOT 1

 LARRY P. WOOD JR.
SUSAN W. WOOD

DB 797 PG 809
PB 47 PG 20

LOT 2
 LINDA S. ALBRIGHT

DB 2521 PG 872
PB 47 PG 20

LOT 3

 WOOD ELECTRICAL
CONTRACTORS
DB 2920 PG 509

PB 47 PG 20
LOT 4

 WOOD ELECTRICAL
CONTRACTORS

DB 804 PG 19
TRACT 2

 WOOD ELECTRICAL
CONTRACTORS

DB 804 PG 19
TRACT 1

LORI W. LOWE
DB 3271 PG 354

PB 67 PG 57
LOT 4

SCM A
(WET POND)

1 inch =           ft.

GRAPHIC SCALE

( IN FEET )
50

21-0047_G.dwg

C-4

G
RA

DI
NG

 &
 S

TO
RM

 D
RA

IN
AG

E 
PL

AN

12' HIGH
RETAINING
WALL W/ 4'
HIGH FENCE

PROPERTY
BOUNDARY

SCM B
(WET POND)

PROPERTY
BOUNDARY

PROPERTY
BOUNDARY

PROPERTY
BOUNDARY

PROPERTY
BOUNDARY

ROAD 1
45' PUBLIC R/W - 30' BC/BC

3:1 SLOPE (TYP.)

LIMITS OF
DISTURBANCE
(TYP.)

LOTLINE (TYP.)

20' STORM DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

20' STORM DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

STORMWATER
CONTROL MEASURE
ACCESS AND
MAINTENANCE
EASEMENT

STORMWATER
CONTROL MEASURE

ACCESS AND
MAINTENANCE

EASEMENT

TRAIL RAMP
ACCESS
5% SLOPE MAX.

SCM OUTLET
STRUCTURE

RETAINING WALL ( 1' TO 8' HIGH)
W/ 4' HIGH FENCE

DOG PARK

20' STORM DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

SCM DISCHARGES TO A
NATURAL DRAINAGE WAY  AT

ADJACENT APARTMENTS

DI
DI

CB

CB

CB
CB

CB

CB

CB

CBCB

CB

JB JB

YI YI YI YI YI

YI

YI

YI

DITCH (TYP.) DITCH (TYP.)20' STORM DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

YI

FES

FES

FES

618

DITCH (TYP.)

SCM OUTLET
STRUCTURE

NOTES:

CB = CATCH BASIN (CURB INLET)
YI = YARD INLET
DI = DROP INLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED SITE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
07/12/22

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
24627

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
100



 

PAGE 1 

PLANNING PROJECT REPORT 
DATE 07/07/2022 
PROJECT NUMBER RZ 22-09 
PROJECT NAME Peartree Townhomes  

APPLICANT 
KB Home Carolinas Division 
4506 S. Miami Blvd Ste. 100 
Durham, NC 27703 

 

CONTENTS 
PROJECT NAME & APPLICANT ........................................................................................... PAGE 1 
ZONING REPORT ............................................................................................................... PAGE 2 
LAND USE REPORT ............................................................................................................ PAGE 4 
UTILITIES REPORT .............................................................................................................. PAGE 7 
STAFF ZONING REQUEST RECOMMENDATION .................................................................. PAGE 8



 

PAGE 2 

ZONING REPORT 
EXISTING ZONE R-8(CD) (Residential, Conditional Zoning District) and R-20 (Residential) 
REQUESTED ACTION R-8(CD) (Residential, Conditional Zoning District) 
CONDITIONAL ZONE? YES   NO 
CURRENT LAND USE Vacant, Forested 
PARCEL SIZE  +/- 10.67 acres 

PROPERTY OWNERS 

Larry, Jr & Susan W. Wood 
106 Sam Snead Dr. 
Mebane, NC 27302 
GPIN: 9824071555 
  
G&L Construction, LLC 
518 S. Asheboro St. 
Liberty, NC 27298 
GPIN: 9824073438 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
Request to rezone two properties totaling +/- 10.67 acres located at Peartree Drive & 
Parker Lane (PINs 9824071555 & 9824073438) from R-8 (CD) and R-20 to R-8 (CD) to 
allow for a residential development of 70 townhomes by KB Home Carolina Division.  

AREA ZONING & DISTRICTS 

Properties to the west are zoned R-20 (Residential), and properties to the north are 
zoned R-12(CD) (Residential Conditional). Properties to the east are zoned R-6(CD) 
(Residential) and O&I(CD) (Office & Institutional Conditional). B-2 Zoning (General 
Business) is to the south and southwest.  

SITE HISTORY 

The larger of the two properties was conditionally rezoned by the Mebane City 
Council on May 7, 2019 to allow for a 60-unit affordable, apartment development for 
older adults. Construction plans for this development were never submitted to the 
City. 
 
The site is currently wooded with a gravel road connecting to Baker Lane to provide 
access to an adjacent single-family home. 

STAFF ANALYSIS 
CITY LIMITS? YES   NO  
PROPOSED USE BY-RIGHT? YES   NO  
SPECIAL USE? YES   NO 
EXISTING UTILITIES? YES   NO  

POTENTIAL IMPACT OF 
PROPOSED ZONE 

The proposed rezoning is consistent with the predominantly residential zoning in the 
area including the adjacent R-12(CD) zoning to the north of the site, and the higher 
density R-6(CD) zoning of Carden Place Apartments. The overall density of the project 
is 6.5 lots per acre, which is lower than the maximum density permitted for 
townhomes in the R-8 district (10 lots per acre).  



 

PAGE 3 
 



 

PAGE 4 

 
LAND USE REPORT 

EXISTING LAND USE Vacant & Forested 

PROPOSED LAND USE & 
REQUESTED ACTION 

The applicant is requesting a conditional rezoning to develop two 
properties totaling +/- 10.67 acres located on Baker Lane (PINs 9824071555 
& 9824073438) for a residential development of 70 townhomes. 

PROPOSED ZONING R-8 (CD) (Residential, Conditional Zoning District) 
PARCEL SIZE +/- 10.67 

AREA LAND USE 

The residentially-zoned properties to the site’s west are occupied by single-
family homes on larger, half- and one-acre lots. The adjoining lots in the 
Arrowhead Subdivision to the north are occupied by single-family homes on 
smaller lots. Carden Place Apartments are directly to the east. Nearby non-
residential uses include a plumbing business, the Alamance Regional 
Medical Center, and commercial uses along Arrowhead Blvd such as the 
Tanger Outlets. 

ONSITE AMENITIES & DEDICATIONS 

The applicant proposes the following private recreational amenities to be 
maintained by the HOA: +/- 2,570 linear feet of a gravel trail, a sports field, 
bocce ball and cornhole courts, a shelter, and a dog park. 
 
The applicant proposes to extend the internal sidewalk network to connect 
to existing sidewalk on Baker Lane and to S Eighth Street via Stratford Drive. 
The sidewalk extensions are proposed in existing right-of-way. Additionally, 
the applicant will pave in the Stratford Drive right-of-way, beyond the site’s 
property boundary, to connect to the existing street network. 
 
The applicant proposes to save existing trees, as shown on the site plan, to 
assist in buffering the site from adjoining properties.  

WAIVER REQUESTED YES   NO 

DESCRIPTION OF REQUESTED 
WAIVER(S) 

A waiver is requested from dimensional requirements to allow for a 
minimum front setback of 20’ and a minimum end-unit, side setback of 10’. 
 
The applicant proposes a payment in lieu of providing the required two 
acres of public recreational space. 

  



 

PAGE 5 

CONSISTENCY WITH MEBANE BY DESIGN STRATEGY 
LAND USE GROWTH STRATEGY 
DESIGNATION(S) 

G-1 Mixed-Use (Cameron Lane) 
 

OTHER LAND USE CONSIDERATIONS  

MEBANE BY DESIGN GOALS & 
OBJECTIVES SUPPORTED 

GROWTH MANAGEMENT 1.1 
Encourage a variety of uses in growth strategy areas and in the downtown, 
promote/encourage a village concept that supports compact and walkable 
environments. 

  

MEBANE BY DESIGN GOALS & 
OBJECTIVES NOT SUPPORTED 

 



 

PAGE 6 

 



 

PAGE 7 

UTILITIES REPORT 

AVAILABLE UTILITIES 
YES   NO 
A petition for annexation is required prior to connection. 

PROPOSED UTILITY NEEDS 

Per the memorandum from Franz Holt of AWCK, the estimated daily 
water and sewer demand for this project is 10,500 gallons per 
day (70 homes at 150 gallons per day each). he project proposes 
an 8-inch connection to the City’s existing 8-inch water line 
along Baker Lane and extending the line through the project and 
connecting to the existing dead-end 6-inch water line in 
Stratford Street creating a loop system. The project proposes an 
8-inch sanitary sewer connection with the City’s existing 8-inch 
gravity sewer line in Baker Lane. 
 
 

UTILITIES PROVIDED BY APPLICANT Applicant has pledged to provide all on-site utilities, as 
described in AWCK’s Technical Memo.  

MUNICIPAL CAPACITY TO ABSORB 
PROJECT  

The City has adequate water & sewer supply to meet the 
domestic and fire flow demands of the project. 

CONSISTENCY WITH MEBANE LONG 
RANGE UTILITY PLAN? 

YES   NO 

ADEQUATE STORMWATER 
CONTROL? 

YES   NO 

INNOVATIVE STORMWATER 
MANAGEMENT? 

YES   NO 

TRANSPORTATION NETWORK STATUS 

CURRENT CONDITIONS 

The subject properties are situated north of Baker Lane just to 
the northeast of the intersection with Peartree Road. The site 
plan features one proposed driveway entrance on Baker Lane 
and one Stratford Drive.  
 
NCDOT provides data for nearby S Eighth Street, a two-lane 
undivided road. In 2019, the average daily traffic volume for S 
Eighth was 1,900 trips. Between Mebane Oaks Road and Avalon 
Dr, S Eighth Street registers a moderate Safety Score of 45. 

TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 
REQUIRED? 

YES   NO 

DESCRIPTION OF RECOMMENDED 
IMPROVEMENTS 

A TIA was not warranted. The applicant is proposing to improve 
sidewalk connections and Stratford Drive as shown on the site 
plan. 



 

PAGE 8 

CONSISTENCY WITH THE MEBANE 
BICYCLE AND PEDESTRIAN 
TRANSPORTATION PLAN? 

 
YES   NO 
 

MULTIMODAL IMPROVEMENTS 
PROVIDED BY APPLICANT? 

YES   NO 

DESCRIPTION OF MULTIMODAL 
IMPROVEMENTS 

The applicant proposes to extend a sidewalk along Stratford 
Drive between the development and S Eighth Street. 
Additionally, the applicant will ensure connections to existing 
sidewalk on Baker Lane.  

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
STAFF ZONING 
RECOMMENDATION  

 APPROVE    DISAPPROVE 

STAFF SPECIAL USE FINDING 
 CONSISTENT    NOT CONSISTENT………………..WITH MEBANE 
BY DESIGN 

RATIONALE 

The proposed development “Peartree Townhomes” is consistent 
with the guidance provided within Mebane By Design, the 
Mebane Comprehensive Land Development Plan. Specifically, it 
serves Goal 1.1.  The proposed project is in harmony with 
surrounding residential uses. 

 



 

CITY OF MEBANE 106 East Washington Street  |  Mebane, NC 27302  919 563 5901  fholt@cityofmebane.com 

W W W . C I T Y O F M E B A N E . C O M  

 

July 13, 2022 
 
Mr. Donald A. Sever, PE 
Summit Design and Engineering Services 
1110 Navaho, Dr. STE. 600 
Raleigh, NC 27609 
 
Subject: Peartree Townhomes – Water and Sewer System Layout 
 
Dear Mr. Sever: 

  
Regarding the Preliminary Site Plans for Peartree Townhomes and in accordance with the UDO, this letter indicates 
that I have reviewed the preliminary water and sewer system layout and find it acceptable and meeting City of 
Mebane requirements as follows:  
 

A. Water system – The project proposes an 8-inch connection to the City’s existing 8-inch water line along 
Baker Lane and extending the line through the project and connecting to the existing dead-end 6-inch water 
line in Stratford Street creating a loop system.  Appropriate valves and fire hydrant spacing are shown with 
the water main improvements.  When designed and installed to City and State standards, this public line 
will become part of the City’s water system. The estimated daily water use for this project is 10,500 gallons 
per day (70 homes at 150 gallons per day each). The City has adequate water capacity available to meet 
the domestic demand and fire flow requirements of this project.  

 
B. Sanitary Sewer system – The project proposes an 8-inch sanitary sewer connection with the City’s existing 

8-inch gravity sewer line in Baker Lane.  Internal to the project site is a proposed 8-inch gravity sewer line 
with appropriately spaced manholes. When designed and installed to City and State standards, this public 
sewer extension will become part of the City’s sanitary sewer collection system. The state permitted daily 
sewer use for this project is 16,800 gallons per day (70 homes with 3-bedrooms at 240 gallons per day 
each). Actual tributary flow will be closer to 10,500 gallons per day. The City has adequate sewer capacity 
available at the downstream Southeast Regional Sewer Pump Station and at the WRRF to meet the 
permitted and expected tributary demand. 

 
If there are any questions, please let me know. 
Sincerely, 

 
Franz K. Holt, P.E. City Engineer 
CC: Ashley Ownbey, Interim Development Director 

        Kyle Smith, Utilities Director 



 

CITY OF MEBANE 106 East Washington Street | Mebane, NC 27302 (919) 563 5901 fholt@cityofmebane.com 

W W W . C I T Y O F M E B A N E . C O M  

Technical Memorandum         

Date: July 13, 2022 

To: Ashley Ownbey, Interim Development Director 

From: Franz K. Holt, P.E.  

Subject:  Peartree Townhomes – City Engineer review 

 
City Engineering has reviewed the Preliminary Site Plans for Peartree Townhomes dated July 12th, 2022, 
by Don A. Sever, P.E. with Summit Design and Engineering Services Raleigh, NC and provides the following 
technical comments. 
 

A. General 
Peartree Townhomes is a residential development which proposes seventy townhomes (one 4-
unit building and eleven 6-unit buildings) located on approximately 10.67 acres off Baker Lane.  
 
Phase 2 post construction runoff rules also apply to the project. The plans show approximately 
44% built upon area which require storm water control measures (SCMs) (two shown). 
 
Water and sewer service are from Mebane 8-inch water and sewer lines in Baker Lane. 
 
One local public road is proposed to serve the development and installed to City of Mebane 
Standards of thirty-one’ b-b curb and gutter. The developer proposes sidewalks on both sides of 
the internal street improvements and with one sidewalk to S. Eighth Street along Stratford Street. 
 
Amenities include a private gravel trail proposed to be constructed in the surrounding private 
shared area, bocce ball and cornhole, sports field and dog park. All amenities are HOA maintained. 
 

B. Availability of City Water and Sewer 
 

In compliance with the UDO, this memo indicates that I have reviewed the preliminary water and 
sewer system layout and find it acceptable and meeting City of Mebane requirements as follows:  
 
1. Water system – The project proposes an 8-inch connection to the City’s existing 8-inch water 

line along Baker Lane and extending the line through the project and connecting to the existing 
dead-end 6-inch water line in Stratford Street creating a loop system. Appropriate valves and 
fire hydrant spacing are shown with the water main improvements. When designed and 
installed to City and State standards, this public line will become part of the City’s water 
system. The estimated daily water use for this project is 10,500 gallons per day (70 homes at 



 

CITY OF MEBANE 106 East Washington Street | Mebane, NC 27302 (919) 563 5901 fholt@cityofmebane.com 

W W W . C I T Y O F M E B A N E . C O M  

150 gallons per day each). The City has adequate water capacity available to meet the domestic 
demand and fire flow requirements of this project.  

 
2. Sanitary Sewer system – The project proposes an 8-inch sanitary sewer connection with the 

City’s existing 8-inch gravity sewer line in Baker Lane. Internal to the project site is a proposed 
8-inch gravity sewer line with appropriately spaced manholes. When designed and installed to 
City and State standards, this public sewer extension will become part of the City’s sanitary 
sewer collection system. The state permitted daily sewer use for this project is 16,800 gallons 
per day (70 homes with 3-bedrooms at 240 gallons per day each). Actual tributary flow will be 
closer to 10,500 gallons per day. The City has adequate sewer capacity available at the 
downstream Southeast Regional Sewer Pump Station and at the WRRF to meet the permitted 
and expected tributary demand. 

 
 

C. Watershed Overlay District and Phase II Stormwater Requirements 
 
1. Watershed Overlay District requirements provided in the UDO. 

These requirements in the UDO are for the Back-Creek Watershed, which includes the 
Graham-Mebane Lake. The proposed project is not in the watershed overlay district and 
related requirements do not apply. 
 

2. Phase II Stormwater Post Construction Ordinance 
The UDO provides standards for Storm Water Management and requires compliance with the 
Mebane Post Construction Runoff Ordinance (which is a stand-alone ordinance titled the 
Phase II Stormwater Post Construction Ordinance (SPCO)). The standards in the UDO are 
general standards as the Ordinance itself provides detailed standards. The SPCO does apply to 
this project as it will disturb more than one acre of land requiring a stormwater permit 
application. The estimated new built upon area is more than 24% and therefore considered 
high density under this ordinance requiring stormwater control measures. Additionally, the 
city requires 10-year stormwater detention at a min. for all storm water control measures 
(SCMs).  

 
D. Storm Drainage System 

The UDO provides requirements for storm drainage systems. The preliminary site plans include a 
preliminary piping layout that indicates certain pipe locations, inlets, and discharge points. 
Stormwater flows from these pipes to stormwater control measures (SCM). Design of the storm 
drainage system will be in accordance with the City’s Storm Drainage Design Manual. 

 



 

CITY OF MEBANE 106 East Washington Street | Mebane, NC 27302 (919) 563 5901 fholt@cityofmebane.com 

W W W . C I T Y O F M E B A N E . C O M  

E. Street Access  

The proposed street is considered local and to be constructed to City of Mebane standards with 
thirty-one’ b-b curb and gutter and sidewalk on at least one side of the road (sidewalk is shown on 
both sides). Two connections (no turn lanes) to existing roadways (Baker Lane and Stratford Street 
- city streets). 
 

F. Construction Plan Submittal 
 

The preliminary plans show the proposed water lines, sewer lines, and storm drainage and 
stormwater management devices to indicate that the project is feasible for utility service and 
providing stormwater management. Based on city engineering review, it is my opinion that said 
plans are in substantial compliance with the UDO. Construction plans will follow preliminary plan 
approval and require TRC review and approval prior to beginning construction. 



 
  

 

 
 

919.732.3883 Summitde.net 

320 Executive Court, Hillsborough, NC 27278 

TRAFFIC IMPACT STATEMENT 
 
Peartree Townhomes, Baker Lane –  Mebane, NC Site Information Requirements 
 
The proposed development is planning to construct seventy (70) townhome units on Baker Lane in Mebane, 
North Carolina, northwest of Arrowhead Boulevard, and south of Avalon Drive.  The site will access Baker Lane 
with one new driveway access, and extend north through the site to a second access point, connecting to 
Stratford Drive.  The new section of street constructed on the site will be a public street. 
 
From the City of Mebane Unified Development Ordinance: 
 

Section 7-6.10 Traffic Impact Analysis 
A. Applicability 

A traffic impact study shall be required for applications for preliminary plat or rezoning requests that are  
anticipated to generate 100 or more undisturbed peak hour vehicle trips or 1,000 or more undisturbed  
average daily trips (ADT), based on trip generation rates from the latest edition of the Institute of  
Transportation Engineers (ITE) Trip Generation Manual. A traffic impact study may be required for  
applications for preliminary plat, rezoning requests, or special use requests that rely upon roads  
experiencing congestion or safety concerns, as determined by the Technical Review Committee. The  
Technical Review Committee may use its discretion to waive the requirement to conduct a traffic impact  
study. 

 
Trip Generation review 
 
A review was made of the ITE Trip Generation Manual, 10th Edition, Land Use Code 220 for Low Rise Multi-family 
units was selected to provide the trip generation.  The variable selected for the trip generation is based on trips 
per dwelling unit, and the TripGen was calculated by the equation method, and for the peak hour of the 
adjacent street (as opposed to the generator itself), per NCDOT TIA Guidelines, Rate vs. Equation Spreadsheet.  
The attached table summarizes the trip generation for the facility based on the existing use and proposed 
expansion.  The highest hour of traffic occurs in the PM peak hour with 43 trips, and the average daily trips pn a 
weekday generate 488 trips. 

Conclusion 
 
Based on input from the owners, and the trip generation rates calculated, the proposed development will not 
generate enough additional traffic (100 peak hour trips or 1,000 weekday trips) such that the UDO would 
require a Traffic Impact Analysis for this site. 
 
Respectfully, 
 
 
Edward W. Sirgany, P.E. 
Traffic & Technology Engineer 
 

  
 7/11/2022 



Tr
ip

 G
en

er
at

io
n 

Su
m

m
ar

y

O
pe

n 
D

at
e:

An
al

ys
is

 D
at

e:
7/

11
/2

02
2

7/
11

/2
02

2
Pr

oj
ec

t:
Pe

ar
tre

e 
To

w
nh

om
es

 - 
M

eb
an

e

Al
te

rn
at

iv
e:

 Al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

1
Ph

as
e:

IT
E

La
nd

 U
se

En
te

r
Ex

it
En

te
r

Ex
it

En
te

r
Ex

it
To

ta
l

To
ta

l
To

ta
l

*
*

*W
ee

kd
ay

 A
ve

ra
ge

 D
ai

ly
 T

rip
s

W
ee

kd
ay

 A
M

 P
ea

k 
H

ou
r o

f
Ad

ja
ce

nt
 S

tre
et

 T
ra

ffi
c

W
ee

kd
ay

 P
M

 P
ea

k 
H

ou
r o

f
Ad

ja
ce

nt
 S

tre
et

 T
ra

ffi
c

22
0

LO
W

-R
IS

E 
1

70
D

w
el

lin
g 

U
ni

ts
24

4
24

4
48

8
8

26
34

27
16

43

U
na

dj
us

te
d 

Vo
lu

m
e

24
4

24
4

48
8

8
26

34
27

16
43

In
te

rn
al

 C
ap

tu
re

 T
rip

s
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
24

4
24

4
48

8
8

26
34

27
16

43
Pa

ss
-B

y 
Tr

ip
s

Vo
lu

m
e 

Ad
de

d 
to

 A
dj

ac
en

t S
tre

et
s

To
ta

l W
ee

kd
ay

 A
ve

ra
ge

 D
ai

ly
 T

rip
s 

In
te

rn
al

 C
ap

tu
re

 =
 0

 P
er

ce
nt

To
ta

l W
ee

kd
ay

 A
M

 P
ea

k 
H

ou
r o

f A
dj

ac
en

t S
tre

et
 T

ra
ffi

c 
In

te
rn

al
 C

ap
tu

re
 =

 0
 P

er
ce

nt
To

ta
l W

ee
kd

ay
 P

M
 P

ea
k 

H
ou

r o
f A

dj
ac

en
t S

tre
et

 T
ra

ffi
c 

In
te

rn
al

 C
ap

tu
re

 =
 0

 P
er

ce
nt

P.
 1

TR
IP

 G
EN

ER
A

TI
O

N
 1

0,
  T

R
A

FF
IC

W
A

R
E,

 L
LC

So
ur

ce
: I

ns
tit

ut
e 

of
 T

ra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

En
gi

ne
er

s,
  T

rip
 G

en
er

at
io

n 
M

an
ua

l 1
0t

h 
Ed

iti
on

- C
us

to
m

 ra
te

 u
se

d 
fo

r s
el

ec
te

d 
tim

e 
pe

rio
d.

*



AGENDA ITEM #5D 
Ordinance to Extend the Corporate Limits-  
BC Stagecoach, LLC- Stagecoach Corner 

Meeting Date 
August 1, 2022 

Presenter  
Lawson Brown, City Attorney 

Public Hearing 
Yes   No  

Summary 
The Council will consider the approval of an Ordinance to Extend the Corporate Limits as the next step in 
the annexation process. This is a contiguous annexation containing approximately 14.48 acres located at 
Stagecoach Road in Orange County. 

Background 
At the July 11, 2022, Council Meeting, Council accepted the petition for annexation and the Clerk’s 
certificate of sufficiency and adopted a Resolution setting a date of Public Hearing for August 1, 2022, to 
consider approval of extending Mebane’s corporate limits. The Public Hearing Notice was properly 
advertised.  

Financial Impact 
The property and improvements will be added to the ad valorem tax base for the City once the property is 
annexed as determined by the state statute. 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends the adoption of an Ordinance to Extend the Corporate Limits of the City of Mebane, 
North Carolina. 

Suggested Motion 
I make a motion to adopt an Ordinance to Extend the Corporate Limits of the City of Mebane, North 
Carolina to include the 14.48 acres. 

Attachments 
1. Ordinance 
2. Map 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO EXTEND THE CORPORATE LIMITS 
 OF THE CITY OF MEBANE, NORTH CAROLINA 

 
Mail after recording to: City of Mebane, Attn: City Clerk, 106 E. Washington Street, Mebane, NC 27302 

 
Ordinance No. 153 

 
     WHEREAS, the City Council has been petitioned under G.S. 160A-31 to annex the area 
described below; and 
 
     WHEREAS, the City Council has by resolution directed the City Clerk to investigate the 
sufficiency of the petition; and 
 
     WHEREAS, the City Clerk has certified the sufficiency of the petition and a public hearing 
on the question of this annexation was held at the Glendel Stephenson Municipal Building 
at 6:00 p.m. on August 1, 2022, after due notice by the Mebane Enterprise on March 23, 
2022; and 
 
     WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the petition meets the requirements of G.S. 160A-
31; 
 
     NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Mebane, North 
Carolina that: 
 
     Section 1.     By virtue of the authority granted by G.S. 160A-31, the following described 
territory is hereby annexed and made part of the City of Mebane as of August 1, 2022: 
 
BEGINNING AT A COMPUTED POINT IN THE SOUTHERN R/W LINE OF S.R. 1996, A CORNER 
WITH TERESA DALLAS, THENCE WITH TERESA DALLAS N04°33'12"W A DISTANCE OF 
30.15'TO A COMPUTED POINT IN THE CENTERLINE OF S.R. 1996; THENCE WITH 
CENTERLINE OF S.R. 1996 S89°06'42"E A DISTANCE OF 343.74' TO A COMPUTED POINT; 
THENCE S33°45'17"E A DISTANCE OF 36.65' TO A COMPUTED POINT IN THE SOUTHERN 
R/W OF SAID S.R 1996; THENCE WITH SAID R/W S89°12'04"E A DISTANCE OF 79.70'TO A 
COMPUTED POINT; THENCE WITH A CURVE TURNING TO THE RIGHT WITH AN ARC LENGTH 
OF 27.07', WITH A RADIUS OF 137.61', WITH A CHORD BEARING OF S83°29'06"E, WITH A 
CHORD LENGTH OF 27.03', TO A COMPUTED POINT THE INTERSECTION OF THE SOUTHERN 
R/W OF S.R.1996 AND THE WESTERN R/W OF S.R.1306; THENCE WITH THE WESTERN R/W 
OF S.R. 1306 N55°34'25" E A DISTANCE OF 73.60' TO A COMPUTED POINT THE 
INTERSECTION WITH NORTHERN R/W OF S.R.1996; THENCE WITHSAID NORTHERN R/W OF 
S.R.1996 A CURVE TURNING TO THE LEFT WITH AN ARC LENGTH OF 90.03', WITH A RADIUS 
OF 197.86', WITH A CHORD BEARING OF N 76°04'33" W, WITH A CHORD LENGTH OF 89.26' 
TO A COMPUTED POINT; THENCE N89°12'04"W A DISTANCE OF 310.38' TO A COMPUTED 
POINT; THENCE N10°54'14"W 635.9O' TO A 1/2"EIP IN THE WESTERN LINE OF LEBANON 
ROAD 3, LLC, THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF MILL CREEK DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY (1/2"EIP 
ON THIS LINE 1.02' FROM POINT IN THE NORTHERN R/W LINE OF SAID S.R.1996);THENCE 
WITH SAID MILL CREEK DEVELOPMENT N89°32'30"W A DISTANCE OF 1149.33'TO A 1/2"EIP 
IN THE EASTERN R/W OF S.R.2016 (N. NINTH STREET); THENCE ALONG SAID R/W 
S09°53'21"W A DISTANCE OF 109.79'TO A 1/2"EIP;THENCE CONTINUING WITH SAID R/W 
A CURVE TURNING TO THE LEFT WITH AN ARC LENGTH OF 148.23', WITH A RADIUS OF 



1648.39', WITH A CHORD BEARING OF S 07°18'47" W, WITH A CHORD LENGTH OF 
148.18',TO A 1/2"EIP THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 1 PB.72 P.74; THENCE WITH SAID 
LOT 1 S85°14'09"E A DISTANCE OF 437.18'TO A 1/2"EIP; THENCE CONTINUING WITH SAID 
LOT 1 AND CROSSING R/W OF S.R. 1996 S00°38'41"W A TOTAL DISTANCE OF 332.20' TO A 
COMPUTED POINT IN THE SOUTHERN R/W OF S.R.1996 (A 1/2"EIP 60.00' FROM THIS 
CORNER IN THE NORTHERN R/W LINE OF SAID S.R.1996; THENCE WITH SOUTHERN R/W 
OF S.R.1996 S89°20'47"E A DISTANCE OF 875.43' TO A COMPUTED POINT; WHICH IS THE 
PLACE POINT OF BEGINNING, HAVING AN AREA OF 14.48 ACRES 0.023 SQ. MILES AND 
BEING ALL OF TOTAL ANNEXATION AREA AS SHOWN ON PLAT OF SURVEY ENTITLED "FINAL 
PLAT: CITY OF MEBANE CORPORATE LIMITS EXTENSION CONTIGUOUS VOLUNTARY 
ANNEXATION" PREPARED BY R.S. JONES & ASSOCIATES, INC. DATED APRIL 14TH 2022 
 
     Section 2.     Upon and after November August 1, 2022 the above-described territory 
and its citizens and property shall be subject to all debts, laws, ordinances and regulations 
in force in the City of Mebane and shall be entitled to the same privileges and benefits as 
other parts of the City of Mebane.  Said territory shall be subject to municipal taxes 
according to G.S. 160A-58.10. 
 
     Section 3.     The Mayor of the City of Mebane shall cause to be recorded in the office 
of the Register of Deeds of Orange County, and in the office of the Secretary of State at 
Raleigh, North Carolina, an accurate map of the annexed territory, described in Section 1 
above, together with duly certified copy of this ordinance.  Such a map shall also be 
delivered to the Orange County Board of Elections, as required by G.S. 163-288.1. 
 
Adopted this 1st day of August, 2022. 
 
       City of Mebane 
 
 
 
                                                                                      _____________________________ 

                                                                                      Ed Hooks, Mayor 
ATTEST:                                
                                        
_______________________________                        
Stephanie W. Shaw, City Clerk                                         
 
        Approved as to form: 
 
 

 ________________________________ 
Lawson Brown, City Attorney 





 

AGENDA ITEM #6 
Elevated Storage Tank Engineering 
Services 

Presenter 
Kyle Smith, Utilities Director 
 

Public Hearing 
Yes  No  

Summary 
The Utilities Department requested qualifications from qualified professional firms due on June 10, 2022 
at 2:00 PM. Qualification request were sent out to known engineers and posted on the City’s website. Two 
statements of qualifications were received and reviewed by the City Engineer, Public Works Director and 
Public Utilities Director. Both firms provided excellent statements of qualifications but Hazen and Sawyer 
was unanimously selected by all three reviewers due to their past experience designing elevated storage 
tanks and familiarity with Mebane and the distribution system. Council approval of the award is required. 

Background 
 The City of Mebane currently has a 300,000-gallon elevated storage tank located on Eleventh Street. While 
the current tank currently meets regulatory requirements, it is too small to equalize projected water 
demands and sustain fire flows. The water plant currently compensates for the lack of elevated storage 
capacity by taking advantage of surplus pumping capacity. The City of Mebane purchased property at 1500 
S Third Street after preliminary siting. The ground elevation of the site is approximately 660-664 feet. 
Preliminary estimates suggest the new tank will be approximately 185 feet high to match the overflow 
elevation of the existing tank. The new tank will be fed from an existing 12-inch water main in the right of 
way of S Third Street.  

Financial Impact 
Hazen proposes to complete engineering, permitting, bidding and construction administration services for 
this project for a not to exceed fee of $524,000.00. 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends awarding Hazen & Sawyer the engineering services for the elevated storage tank.  

Attachments 
1. Scope and Fee Proposal 



 
 

 
 hazenandsawyer.com 

Jo
b 

no
 

Hazen and Sawyer  
620 Green Valley Road, Suite 101 
Greensboro, NC 27408 

 

July 7, 2022 

Kyle Smith, PE 

Utilities Director 

City of Mebane 

636 Corregidor St. 

Mebane, NC 27302 

Re: Scope and Fee Proposal for the Design and CA of the Elevated Water Storage Tank  

Dear Mr. Smith 

Hazen and Sawyer will provide engineering design and construction related services for the new 1MG 

elevated storage tank. The project will include construction drawings and technical specifications, 

permitting, coordination with manufacturers, bidding services and construction related services.   

Hazen’s detailed scope of services is included in the Scope and Fee Proposal enclosed.  Hazen will utilize 

the progress previously made on this project through prior preliminary tasks to build our scope as an 

efficient and lien approach.  The enclosed items identify our approach to this project. 

Thank you again for this opportunity and please feel free to contact us at any time if you have any 

questions or would like to meet to discuss the items enclosed.  We look forward to continuing to work 

with the City of Mebane. 

Very truly yours, 

 

 

 

Aaron D. Babson, PE      

Associate Vice President   

 
 
cc: Thomas Tant, PE 
  



 

 
 

  

  

 hazenandsawyer.com 

City of Mebane, NC 

Proposal for the Elevated Water Storage Tank Design and Construction and 

Administration 

Scope 
Hazen shall provide all preliminary engineering evaluations, engineering design, permitting, bidding 

services, and construction administration necessary to build the 1 MG elevated water storage tank.  The 

following items shall be included: 

Project Background: Hazen and Sawyer (Hazen) completed a water system storage evaluation study on 

March 17, 2021 for the City of Mebane. The storage evaluation concluded that even though Mebane’s 

total water storage currently meets regulatory requirements, the existing elevated tank is too small to 

equalize projected water demands and sustain fire flows. The water plant currently compensates for a lack 

of elevated storage capacity by taking advantage of surplus pumping capacity, thus using ground storage 

in the clearwell. However, this strategy will be problematic in a dry year when usage spikes, especially 

with expected growth. In 2030, the 5.2 mgd maximum day demand projection equals the nominal firm 

capacity of the pumps at the water plant. 

Hazen recommended an incremental improvement approach that includes building a new l MG elevated 

tank by 2025 and adding pump capacity at the water plant shortly after 2030 and again in 2050, thus 

postponing the need for more storage until after 2060 and allowing time to update demand projections. 

Tank Siting: The City of Mebane purchased the properties with PIN 163492 and 178273 on S. Third 

Street near Maple Lane in the NC Industrial Center, a site confirmed to work well in the Hazen siting 

study, completed in July 2021. The purchased prperty has an approximate ground elevation of 655-660 ft 

and a proposed tank height of approximately 185 ft to match the overflow elevation of 840 of the existing 

tank. 

The geotechnical investigation was completed by S&ME and confirmed the soil conditions were 

generally appropriate to support an elevated storage tank.  

The City of Mebane completed the special use permitting for the site laying the groundwork for the 

design team to start work immediately.  

Site Design: Hazen will coordinate with the City of Mebane planning department for the site planning and 

design requirements for buffers, built upon area, stormwater requirements, planting, etc. The previous 

work on the special use permitting laid the groundwork for these requirements and the design team will 

follow through with those elements.  

In addition, Hazen will work with local and state stormwater/land quality agencies to convert the existing 

pond on the property to an erosion control pond during construction and a permanent stormwater BMP, 

sized appropriately for the property and BUA at the completion of the project. Hazen personnel will 

complete an environmental assessment and delineate the stream originating at the outlet of the pond.  



 

 
 

  

  

 hazenandsawyer.com 

Surveying and SUE Services: Stewart will provide surveying services for this project.  Per their scope and 

fee enclosed, Stewart will provide surveying services to provide topographical mapping of the subject 

properties, establishing vertical and horizontal control on the site. Ground survey efforts will include 

collection of field data to locate above and below ground utilities, stream locations, poles/guy wires, 

property boundaries, easements and other pertinent items on the property. Stewart will perform both 

Level B subsurface utility engineering (SUE) investigations to help identify the general location of any 

conflict telecom utilities and the location of the water line in S. Third Street. 

Meetings 

The following meetings are anticipated by Hazen during the course of the project: 

• Kickoff Meeting 

• Design Progress Meetings, except months with a design milestone meeting.  Bi-monthly progress 

meetings may be held virtually depending the progress and topics that period, or pandemic 

conditions.  A collective decision to be made by the City of Mebane and Hazen. 

• Technical Memorandum Design Meeting to identify preliminary design decisions and permitting 

requirements. 

• Two Council Meetings to discuss final design documents and Recommendation for Award and 

one undefined council meeting as needed. 

• Design Milestones at 30%, 60%, 90% including a budget update at each milestone. 

• Construction Document Review Meeting 

• Pre-Bid Meeting with Contractors 

• Bid Opening 

• Pre-Construction Meeting 

• Weekly on-site construction meetings with contractor 

• Monthly Construction Progress Meetings 

 

Preliminary Engineering  

Hazen and Sawyer will utilize the following documents from the previous projects on the Mebane Storage 

Tank to complete this project: 

• Storage study,  

• Tank siting study,  

• Support Documents prepared for the special use permit,  

• Geotechnical Investigations Report provided by S&ME.  

 

Deliverables at 30%: 

• Type of Tank: It is understood, the City of Mebane desires an elevated composite tank, the design 

team will move forward with this information as previously decided. 

• Preliminary Costs: A 30% Opinion of Probable Construction Cost (OPCC) will be prepared, 

itemized with typical costs of water tank elements.  Changes to the estimate will be discussed at 

each design milestone. 

• Project Schedule: A detailed project schedule for all project activities, including construction. 

The schedule shall be updated and evaluated at the Progress Meetings. 

• Structural impacts to the foundation requirements as a result of the soil investigation findings.  

• Impressed current and sacrificial anode cathodic protection systems. 



 

 
 

  

  

 hazenandsawyer.com 

• Coating system selection and life cycle evaluation. 

• A tank mixing discussion in the kickoff workshop, if needed to maintain water quality. 

• Provisions for co-location of cellular antennas and any Owner equipment on the tank as well as 

the associated ground equipment within the compound. 

• Connection to OWNER’S existing SCADA system, including on-line monitoring and transmittal 

of basic water quality data from the tank. 

• Comprehensive listing of all permits, zoning & regulatory requirements, FAA requirements, 

encroachment agreements, and other requirements necessary for construction and operation of the 

project. 

• Opportunities for energy conservation may be identified, design not included in this scope. 

 

Detailed Design 

Hazen shall prepare the foundation design, final plans, specifications, and contract documents for all 

items required for the successful construction of the Mebane Tank. The final design shall take into 

account accessibility for both routine and emergency maintenance and repair. 

The design milestones for detailed design will include the 60%, 90%, and 100% construction documents, 

accompanied with technical specifications and opinions of probable construction costs, updated at each 

design phase. 

 

Regulatory Permitting 

Hazen shall provide all necessary permitting and regulatory work required to obtain all necessary 

regulatory approvals. These shall include, but are not limited to: Environmental Assessments, Sediment 

and Erosion Control Permits, USACE Jurisdictional Determinations and Permits (if required), plan 

review by the NCDENR Public Water Supply Section, NCDOT Encroachment Agreements and 

Driveway Permits, NCDWQ wetland and/or buffer permits, Watershed Classifications, FAA 

requirements, local jurisdiction site plan approvals, and all other approvals required to construct the 

project. 

Hazen is responsible for conducting any studies, field work, and creating any document, map, or drawing 

that is required. Hazen shall also fill out any applications, allow the City ample time to sign or otherwise 

approve the submittal of the application, and then submit or deliver the application package on behalf of 

the City. All permitting fees will be borne by the City or can be charged to the City as a reimbursable 

expense. 

 

Bidding 

Hazen shall prepare bid documents utilizing the Owner’s standard ‘front-end’ construction documents, or 

Hazen’s standard documents should the City prefer, specifications, special conditions, construction 

administration forms, and (City-Contractor) agreements. Hazen shall provide any Special Construction 

Specifications required for this project. Prior to advertising the project for bids, Hazen shall submit to the 

Owner a final construction cost estimate. 

Hazen shall be responsible for providing sufficient copies of bid documents to the City of Mebane as well 

as providing electronic documents for online viewing/purchasing. Hazen shall be the primary point of 

contact for contractors to purchase hard copies of bid documents. Hazen shall receive inquiries, issue 



 

 
 

  

  

 hazenandsawyer.com 

clarifications/addenda, receive bids, conduct the public bid opening, provide a certified bid tabulation, 

make a recommendation of award of contract to the City, and coordinate the execution of the contracts.  

Construction Administration 

Hazen shall provide the following Construction Administration services: 

• Review and approve/disapprove all submittals. The City shall also be provided with a copy of 

all submittals for review. 

• Reply to requests for information and provide any design intent clarifications during 

construction. 

• Conduct negotiations, receive City’s approval, and prepare field orders and change orders. 

• Provide certification of completed work as required by the funding and permitting agencies. 

• Provide the services of an AWS Certified Welding Inspector and other specialized inspectors 

(coatings) as needed during tank construction, through a third party special inspector. 

• Provide on-site resident project representation and observation of construction activities 

through the significant work activities. Inspection is currently proposed for 7 months of full 

time inspection and 7 months of 50% inspection.  One chief resident project representative 

shall be provided from Hazen or Hazen’s partner, Taylor Engineering: 

o Serve as the City’s primary representative during construction; 

o Maintain a daily log and compile a daily electronic report during construction that 

indicates at a minimum: weather conditions, site conditions, a general description of 

contractors’ activities, a running list of pay items completed, issues observed, and 

pertinent photos that summarize the activities; 

o Conduct regularly scheduled weekly coordination meetings on site with the contractor and 

City to discuss the project status, issues, and schedule; 

o Supervise and schedule all soils and materials testing conducted by the testing firms; 

o Maintain submittal, request for information and change order logs; 

o Verify all quantities and review and coordinate all payment applications with the 

contractors; 

o Sign-off on payment applications and forward copies to the Engineer and City for 

approval and payment processing in accordance with the construction contract 

requirements; 

o Maintain a complete set of “red-line” drawings on site, in addition to the Contractor’s, 

during construction noting all revisions/changes to the design drawings thereon; 

All design drawings will be produced on a full size 22” x 34” ANSI D paper. The permit copies and the 

final “Issued for Bid” set will be signed and sealed. 

 

Project Design Schedule 

Based on the project schedule provided by EDC, the project design should be completed within 18 

months of the grant award date (June 07, 2022) and the construction completed within 18 months after 

that.  Hazen believes we can meet the design requirements but cautions that supply chain issues could 

delay construction. We will work with the EDA grants program to refine the schedule if needed when the 

project is bid.   

  



 

 
 

  

  

 hazenandsawyer.com 

Subconsultants and Minority/Women Owned Business Enterprises 

Hazen will partner with the firms below to complete this project, our total MWBE participation is 

proposed at 40% .   

• Taylor Engineering (WBE): Constructability Reviews and Construction Inspection (38.8%) 

• Stewart (MBE): Surveying Services (2.1%) 

• S&ME: Geotechnical and Construction Materials Testing Services: $35,000 

 

Taylor Engineering is a Woman Business Enterprise located in Guilford County, NC currently contracted 

to provide construction inspection services on the Liberty Tank project for the City of Greensboro. They 

will utilize this recent experience to provide similar services to the City of Mebane. 

Stewart is a Minority Business Enterprise located in Wake County and will provide surveying and SUE 

services for this project. 

Fee Proposal 

Hazen will provide the services outlined above for a not to exceed fee of $524.000.00, please find the 

breakdown of the tasks summarized below and in detail in the attached table. 

 

Task Breakdown 

Task 100 – Site Design     $17,000 

Task 200 – Project Meetings    $25,000  

Task 300 – Preliminary Engineering   $48,000 

Task 400 – Detailed Design    $97,000 

Task 500 – Permitting     $8,000 

Task 600 – Bid Phase Services    $8,000 

Task 700 – Project Management    $3,000 

Task 800 – Construction Management – Office  $39,000 

Task 810 – Construction Inspection   $270,000 

Task 900 – Grant Reporting Support (EDA)  $9,000 

                                                          Total   $524,000 

Categorical Rates    

Vice President  $260 Principal Designer $125 

Associate Vice 

President/Senior Associate 

$225 Assistant Engineer $115 

Associate $185 Designer $100 

Senior Principal 

Engineer/Scientist 

$155 Administrator $75 

Senior Principal Designer $145 Intern  $50 

Principal Engineer $140 Senior RPR $145 

Engineer $130 RPR  $95 

* Mileage will be billed at the current IRS Rate   



 

AGENDA ITEM #7 
Elevated Storage Tank Grant 
Administration Services 

Presenter 
Kyle Smith, Utilities Director 
 

Public Hearing 
Yes  No  

Summary 
The Utilities Department requested qualifications from qualified professional firms due on July 25, 2022 at 
12:00 PM. Qualification request were sent out to known engineers, posted on the City’s website and posted 
through the NC HUB Office. Two statements of qualifications were received and reviewed by the Assistant 
City Manager, City Engineer, Finance Director and Public Utilities Director. Both firms provided excellent 
statements of qualifications but McGill Associates was the selected firm based on prior EDA Grant 
experience. Council approval of the award is required. 

Background 
The City of Mebane has received an Economic Development Administration (EDA) grant award in the 
amount of $2,502,990 by the U.S. Department of Commerce Economic Development Administration for 
the construction of a 1-million-gallon elevated water storage tank.   

Financial Impact 
McGill proposes to provide the City of Mebane complete EDA grant administration services for the 
construction of the 1 MG elevated storage tank for a lump sum fee of $64,800.00.  

Recommendation 
Staff recommends awarding McGill Associates the EDA grant administration services for the elevated 
storage tank.  

Attachments 
1. Scope and Fee Proposal 



The Cost Proposal necessary for this RFQ is in a separate sealed envelope (for the printed copies) per 
the City’s request. This section is also listed on the following pages for the digital pdf document to 
meet the combined format submittal instructions.  

Cost Proposal

McGill is committed to providing innovative and efficient engineering and 
consulting services to our clients. We strive to ensure each project is completed 
successfully through our diverse technical expertise, effective project 
management, and open communication methods.

Our Commitment To You

Project 
Management

Technical  
Expertise 

Open 
Communication

City of Mebane   |   Grant Administration Services



City of Mebane   |   Grant Administration Services

Scope of Services Staff Total Number of 
hours

Specific Award Conditions 
Doug Chapman, Karen Kiehna,  
Chad Hull

60

Environment Review Compliance and 
Release of Funds and Other Funding 
Conditions

Karen Kiehna, Chad Hull,  
Vanessa Purefoy

40

Equal Employment and Procurement 
Compliance

Doug Chapman, Karen Kiehna,  
Chad Hull

45

Complaints and Grievance Procedures 
for Compliance Plans

Karen Kiehna, Chad Hull,  
Vanessa Purefoy

45

Labor Standards Compliance
Karen Kiehna, Chad Hull,  
Vanessa Purefoy

90

Completion of All Required Reports 
and Documentation

Doug Chapman, Karen Kiehna,  
Chad Hull, Vanessa Purefoy

60

Assistance with Financial 
Reimbursements Forms

Doug Chapman, Karen Kiehna,  
Chad Hull, Vanessa Purefoy

70

Setting Up and Managing Official 
Records

Karen Kiehna, Chad Hull,  
Vanessa Purefoy

60

Itemized Direct Cost and Estimated Hours

Proposed Cost
McGill proposes to assist the City of Mebane with grant administration services for the lump sum fee  
of $64,800. 

The grant administration team will assist the City of Mebane in complying with the terms and conditions 
of the EDA program, as required by the United States Department of Commerce.



City of Mebane   |   Grant Administration Services

Expenses
• Mileage – $0.65 / mile

• Robotics/GPS Equipment – $25 / hr.

• Survey Drone – $100 / hr.

• Telephone, reproduction, postage, lodging, and other incidentals shall be a direct charge per receipt.

Associated Services
Associated services required by the project such as soil analysis, materials testing, etc., shall be at cost plus 
fifteen (15) percent. 

Professional Fees I II III IV
Senior Principal  $ 255
Principal – Regional Manager – Director  $ 210  $ 220  $ 235  $ 245
Practice Area Lead  $ 180  $ 200  $ 215  $ 225
Senior Project Manager  $ 190  $ 210  $ 215  $ 220
Project Manager  $ 165  $ 180  $ 185  $ 190
Project Engineer  $ 130  $ 140  $ 150  $ 160
Engineering Associate  $ 110  $ 115  $ 120  $ 125
Planner – Consultant – Designer  $ 110  $ 125  $ 145  $ 160
Engineering Technician  $ 100  $ 115  $ 125  $ 135
CAD Operator – GIS Analyst  $ 85  $ 90  $ 100  $ 105
Construction Services Manager  $ 140  $ 155  $ 165  $ 180
Construction Administrator  $ 105  $ 120  $ 130  $ 135
Financial Services Manager  $ 135  $ 145  $ 155  $ 165
Grant Administrator  $ 115  $ 130  $ 145  $ 155
Construction Field Representative  $ 90  $ 100  $ 105  $ 110
Environmental Specialist  $ 90  $ 100  $ 105  $ 110
Surveyor  $ 95  $ 110  $ 120  $ 125
Surveying Associate  $ 75  $ 80  $ 85  $ 90
Survey Technician  $ 80  $ 85  $ 90  $ 95
Survey Field Technician  $ 70  $ 75  $ 80  $ 85
Administrative Assistant  $ 75  $ 80  $ 90  $ 100

McGill’s Hourly Rates



McGill Associates, PA
1240 19th Street Lane NW, Hickory, NC 28601

828 .328 .2024  |  mcgillassociates .com



 

AGENDA ITEM #8 
Capital Project Ordinance and 
Reimbursement Resolution for the 
Elevated Water Tank Project 

Meeting Date 
August 1, 2022 

Presenter  
Daphna Schwartz, Finance Director 

Public Hearing 
Yes  No  

Summary 
The Capital Improvement Plan adopted by the Council on June 6, 2022, includes the elevated water tank 
project. This agenda item includes establishing a Capital Project Ordinance as a budget vehicle for the 
project's life and approving reimbursement of City funds used for costs incurred prior to securing debt 
proceeds. 

Background 
The project will be funded with debt and grant proceeds and will last longer than one fiscal year. Therefore, 
staff recommends a capital project ordinance for this project since it will remain in effect for the project's 
life and does not expire at the end of the fiscal year. 

A reimbursement resolution is a municipal resolution required by the IRS declaring a municipality's official 
intent to reimburse a municipal account with proceeds from a tax-exempt bond or installment purchase 
agreement.  

Financial Impact 
The total cost of the project is estimated to be $7,081,200. Staff proposes to fund the project with a 
$150,000 State Capital and Infrastructure Fund (SCIF) Directed Grant, a $2,502,990 Economic Development 
Administration (EDA) Grant, and $4,428,210 of debt proceeds. The City received the SCIF grant funds in 
FY21-22, so a fund balance appropriation from the Utility Fund must be made in FY22-23 to budget the 
proceeds as indicated in the resolution. 

The reimbursement resolution will allow the City to reimburse itself for any expenses paid before obtaining 
the debt proceeds. 

Recommendation 
The Council approves both resolutions. 

Suggested Motion 
Motion to approve the capital project ordinance and reimbursement resolution for the Elevated Water 
Tank as presented. 

Attachments 
1. Capital Project Ordinance for the Elevated Water Tank project. 



A g e n d a  I t e m  c o n t i n u e d   P a g e  | 2 

2. Reimbursement resolution for the Elevated Water Tank project 
 
 



 
Capital Project Ordinance for the City of Mebane 

Elevated Water Tank Project 
 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the City of Mebane, North Carolina that, pursuant to Section 
13.2 of Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, the following capital project ordinance is 
hereby adopted: 

 
Section 1: The project authorized is the design and construction of an elevated water tank to be 

financed by the debt and grant proceeds. 
 

Section 2: The officers of this City are hereby directed to proceed with the capital project within 
the terms of the budget contained herein. 

 
Section 3: The following amounts are hereby appropriated for the project: 

 

 
 

Section 4: The following revenues are anticipated to be available to complete the project: 

 
 

Section 5: The Finance Officer is hereby directed to maintain within the Capital Project Fund 
sufficient specific detailed accounting records to satisfy the requirements of the General Statutes of 
North Carolina. 

 

Section 6: Funds may be advanced from the Utility Fund for the purpose of making payments 
as due. 

 

Section 7: The Finance Officer is hereby directed to report, on a quarterly basis, on the financial 
status of each project element in Section 3. 

 
Section 8: The Budget Officer is directed to include a detailed analysis of past and future costs 

and revenues on this capital project in every budget submission made to this Board. 
 

Section 9: Copies of this capital project ordinance shall be furnished to the Clerk to the 
Governing Board and to the Budget Officer and Finance Officer for direction in carrying out this project. 

Appropriations Project Budget
Administrative and legal expenses 120,000             
Architectural and engineering fees 524,000             
Construction 5,852,000          
Contingencies 585,200             
Total Expenses 7,081,200          

Revenue Project Budget
State Capital and Infrastructure Fund (SCIF) Directed Grant 150,000             
    (appropriated through the Utility Fund)
Economic Development Administration (EDA)Grant 2,502,990          
Debt Proceeds 4,428,210          
Total Revenues 7,081,200          



 
 
 

I certify as follows: that the foregoing capital project ordinance was properly adopted at a meeting 
of the City Council of the City of Mebane, North Carolina; that this meeting was properly called and held 
on August 1, 2022; that a quorum was present and acting throughout this meeting; and that this resolution 
has not been modified or amended and remains in full effect as of today.  
 

Dated this ________ day of _______________, 202_____. 
 

[SEAL]    _____________________________________ 
City Clerk 
City of Mebane, North Carolina 

 
 



 
 

Reimbursement Resolution for the Elevated Water Tank Project -- 
authorizing the City of Mebane to reimburse itself for early Project expenditures from later financing 

proceeds  
 
Introduction -- 
 
 The City intends to undertake a Project (as described below), use its own funds to pay initial 
Project costs, and then reimburse itself from financing proceeds for these early expenditures. The 
Manager and the Finance Director have advised the Council that it should adopt this resolution to 
document the City’s plans for reimbursement, so as to comply with certain federal tax rules relating to 
reimbursement from financing proceeds. 
 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mebane, North Carolina, as follows: 
 

1. The Project is the Elevated Water Tank Project.  
 

2. The City intends to advance funds for initial Project costs, and then reimburse itself from 
financing proceeds. The expected primary type of financing for the Project (which is subject to change) is 
an installment purchase agreement. The expected maximum amount of financing expected for the 
Project (including allowances for reserves and financing costs) is approximately $7,081,200.  
 

3. Funds for the early Project expenditures may come from the City’s Utility Fund, or any 
other appropriate City fund.  
 

4. The City intends for the adoption of this resolution to be a declaration of its official intent 
to reimburse itself from financing proceeds for Project cost expenditures.  
 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 
I certify as follows: that the foregoing resolution was properly adopted at a meeting of the City 

Council of the City of Mebane, North Carolina; that this meeting was properly called and held on August 
1, 2022; that a quorum was present and acting throughout this meeting; and that this resolution has not 
been modified or amended and remains in full effect as of today.  
 

Dated this ________ day of _______________, 202_____. 
 

[SEAL]    _____________________________________ 
City Clerk 
City of Mebane, North Carolina 

 

 



 

AGENDA ITEM #9 
Code of Ordinances Amendment- 
Backyard Hens and Fowl  

Meeting Date 
August 1, 2022 

Presenter  
Lawson Brown, City Attorney 

Public Hearing 
Yes  No  

Summary 
This ordinance addresses backyard hens and fowl in the City limits. 

Background 
The City has no ordinance addressing hens and fowl other than its nuisance abatement. There have been a 
number of recent complaints from residents about chickens. Council took this matter under consideration 
at the June 6th meeting and continued the matter to the July 11th meeting to receive public comments.  The 
ordinance has been amended to reflect discussion from the July 11th meeting. 

Financial Impact 
Code Enforcement will be impacted but estimated to be minimal. 

Recommendation 
 Staff recommends adopting the ordinance as presented. 

Suggested Motion 
I make a motion to adopt the ordinance as presented. 

Attachments 
1. Ordinance 

 

 



Revised Ordinance 7.21.2022 

Section 4-37- Backyard Hens & Fowl 

(a) Legal Parameters- It shall be unlawful for the owner or occupant of any lot or parcel of land 
in the city to keep backyard hens or other fowl in violation of the terms of this ordinance. The 
term hens are interchangeable with fowl in Section 4-37.  “Hens”, as used hereinafter, shall 
include without limitation turkeys, geese, and ducks. 

(b) Allowable Backyard Hens - Backyard hens are allowable, regardless of zoning, on a lot or lots 
in the same ownership that contains at least one single-family dwelling unit, excluding apartment 
complexes, condominiums, townhouses, duplexes, and patio homes.  

1. Number Allowed- No more than ten (10) hens per lot less than or equal to one (1) acre. 
If the residence is located on a lot or lots greater than one (1) acre then 10 more hens are 
allowed for each acre or portion of an acre greater than one (1) acre. By way of example, 
a lot less than or equal to one (1) acre may have a maximum of ten (10) hens, a two-acre 
property may have twenty (20) such hens, a three-acre property, thirty (30); and a three 
and a half acres, forty (40). There is no maximum, and the number of hens will be 
calculated as ten (10) per acre or portion of an acre greater than one (1) acre. 

2.  Roosters-  It shall be unlawful to keep or maintain any rooster. 
3. At Large- At large means, any hen leaving the property of the keeper and found 

wandering about on public or private property not owned by the keeper shall be 
considered “at large” and a public nuisance, it shall be unlawful for the keeper to permit 
the backyard hens to be at large.  All hens must remain on the property of the keeper 
or they will be considered a public nuisance. 
 

(c) Effective Date- This Ordinance shall be effective sixty (60) calendar days after the date of 
adoption and shall apply to all backyard hens in the City, whether now existing or those in the 
future. 
 
 



 

AGENDA ITEM #10 
Property Acquisition- Smith Road, Jackson 
Street and Lee Street- WRRF 

Meeting Date 
August 1, 2022 

Presenter  
Lawson Brown, City Attorney 

Public Hearing 
Yes  No  

Summary 
The City has identified property as potentially needed for the expansion of the Waste Water Recovery 
Facility. 

Background 
The City is expanding the capacity of the waste water recovery facility (WWRF) and anticipates further 
expansion of the WWRF in the future. This property is contiguous to the WWRF and as such, the ownership 
of the property should be beneficial for the City.   

Financial Impact 
The purchase price is $250,000.00. If the property is purchased by the City, the property will be non-taxable 
for property tax purposes prospectively. 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends the purchase of the property after usual buyer due diligence for title, soil, environmental 
and other items, and recommends that the City manager be authorized to sign the agreement on behalf of 
the City.   

Suggested Motion 
I move that the City purchase the property, contingent upon satisfactory due diligence such as title, soil, 
environmental and other items and that the City manager be authorized to sign the offer to purchase and 
contract, on behalf of the City. 

Attachments 
1. Offer to Purchase and Contract 

 

 

 









































 

AGENDA ITEM #11 
Property Acquisition- Jackson Street- 
WRRF 

Meeting Date 
August 1, 2022 

Presenter  
Lawson Brown, City Attorney 

Public Hearing 
Yes  No  

Summary 
The City has identified property as potentially needed for the expansion of the Waste Water Recovery 
Facility. 

Background 
The City is expanding the capacity of the waste water recovery facility (WWRF) and anticipates further 
expansion of the WWRF in the future. This property is contiguous to the WWRF and as such, the ownership 
of the property should be beneficial for the City.   

Financial Impact 
The purchase price is $25,000.  If the property is purchased by the City, the property will be non-taxable 
for property tax purposes prospectively. 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends the purchase of the property after usual buyer due diligence for title, soil, environmental 
and other items, and recommends that the City manager be authorized to sign the agreement on behalf of 
the City.   

Suggested Motion 
I move that the City purchase the property, contingent upon satisfactory due diligence such as title, soil, 
environmental and other items and that the City manager be authorized to sign the offer to purchase and 
contract, on behalf of the City. 

Attachments 
1. Offer to Purchase and Contract 

 

 































Mebane Fire Dept. Monthly Report

June Year to Date % Change from 2021

Structural Response
Totals 38 178 2%

Average Personnel Per Response 9 12
Average Volunteer Response 2 2

Totals 79 400 11%

Total Fire Response 117 578 8%

Location  (Year to Date) North South
Total Number/Precentage 309/53% 269/47%

North South
Average Fire Response Time 5:10 5:33

Precentage of Calls Inside City 65% 56%
Precentage of Calls Outside City 26% 31%
Precentage of Calls for Mutual Aid 9% 13%

EMT Response 171 1060 21%

Location  (Year to Date) North South
Total Number/ Precentage 499/47% 561/53%

CPS Seats Checked 17 95
Smoke Alarms Checked/Installed 8 58
Station Tours/Programs 3 21
# of Participants 142 854
Events Conducted/Attended 1 10
Views on Fire Safety Facebook Posts 0 560

Non Structural Responses



Planning Board 
Minutes to the Meeting 

July 18, 2022, 6:30 p.m. 

The Planning Board meeting was held at the Glendel Stephenson Municipal Building located at 106 E. 
Washington Street, Mebane, NC 27302 and livestreamed via YouTube. The video can be accessed 
through the following link: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=zswoQ4LENR0 
 

Members Present:  
Edward Tulauskas, Chair 
Judy Taylor, Vice Chair 
Jason VanBuren 
Gale Pettiford 

Kurt Pearson 
Keith Hoover 
Larry Teague  

 
City Staff Present:   
Ashley Ownbey, Interim Development Director 
Audrey Vogel, Planner 

Franz Holt, City Engineer 
Kirk Montgomery, IT Director 

 
1. Call to Order 

At 6:30 p.m. Chairman Tulauskas called the meeting to order. 
 
2. Introduction of newly appointed Planning Board member Mr. Jason VanBuren  

City Planner Audrey Vogel provided a brief introduction to Jason VanBuren, the newest Planning 
Board member  

 
3. Planning Board Member Elections 

Judy Taylor and Kurt Pearson made a motion to re-elect the current officers Judy Taylor as vice chair 
and Ed Tulauskas as chair. The motion passed unanimously. 

 
4. Approval of June 13, 2022, Meeting Minutes 

Larry Teague made a motion to approve the meeting minutes. Gale Pettiford seconded the motion 
which passed unanimously. 

 
5. City Council Actions Update 

Ashley Ownbey, Interim Development Director, provided an update on the City Council’s recent 
action at the July City Council meeting 
 

6. Rezoning Requests 
 

A. Request to rezone the +/- 10.01-acre property located at 4677 Mrs White Lane (PIN 
9816955507), from R-20 to R-12 (CD) to allow for a residential development of 18 single family 
detached homes by Tanner Built Homes, LLC. 

Tanner Built Homes, LLC is requesting approval to conditionally rezone the +/-10.01-acre property 
located at 4677 Mrs White Lane (GPIN 9816955507) from R-20 to R-12(CD) to allow “Mill Run” a 
residential subdivision of 18 single family homes. The property is located outside of City Limits in the 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=zswoQ4LENR0


Planning Board 
Minutes to the Meeting 

July 18, 2022, 6:30 p.m. 

Mebane Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ). Proposed onsite amenities are detailed in the meeting 
agenda packet available here. The Planning staff has reviewed the request for harmony with the 
zoning of the surrounding area and consistency with the City’s adopted plans and recommends 
approval. The Technical Review Committee (TRC) has reviewed the site plan and the applicant has 
revised the plan to reflect the comments 

Audrey Vogel provided an overview and PowerPoint presentation of the request. 
 

Phil Koch, P.E. of EarthCentric Engineering presented the rezoning request including a discussion of 
the site plan, stormwater, project history and examples of home elevations.  
 
Kurt Pearson asked if the property would be annexed into the City. Mr. Koch responded that 
annexation is a requirement for utility connection.  
 
Larry Teague asked why the City was not requiring curb and gutter for the proposed street. Audrey 
Vogel responded that in some situations the City will waive this requirement for a low-density 
development to enable lower impervious surface coverage. Larry Teague asked if curb and gutter 
would be better to guide water to the retention areas if drainage was already an issue in this area. 
Phil Koch responded that the site design would channel water to the stormwater retention area and 
the ditch line would better accommodate stormwater runoff in the water supply watershed. 
 
Larry Teague asked why sidewalk was only being provide on one side of the street. Mr. Koch 
explained that sidewalk on one side meet’s the City’s typical street design requirement even for 
curb and gutter streets. He added that they tied the end of the sidewalk into the walking trail to 
loop around the subdivision.  
 
At this time Chairman Tulauskas asked if anyone from the public wanted to speak.  
 
Gene Burns, 1432 Rutledge Trail, commented that the property should stay one 10-acre single-
family home site. He added that the was area originally made up of very spacious lots with nice 
forest coverage and the proposed Mill Run subdivision would be too many lots and Mebane is 
growing too much. 
 
Evon Connally, 1549 Rutledge Trail, explained that she lives across from the proposed subdivision 
and elaborated on the current drainage issues along Rutledge Trail. She asked for more explanation 
about the proposed stormwater management for Mill Run to ensure that it doesn’t exacerbate the 
drainage problem.  
 
Phil Koch responded to Mrs. Connally, highlighting on the site plan how and where the current 
drainage issues occur at the entrance of Rutledge Trail. Mr. Koch explained that the area was not 
graded properly to begin with, and the current drainage ditch is sedimented. In order to address 
these concerns, they will be putting in a pipe to direct water under the entrance and reestablishing 
the ditch line to better accommodate stormwater. 
 

https://cityofmebanenc.gov/meetings/planning-board-meeting-july-18-2022/


Planning Board 
Minutes to the Meeting 

July 18, 2022, 6:30 p.m. 

Evon Connally’s husband Mr. Connally asked about the property line that runs down the middle of 
Rutledge Trail and if the Mill Run HOA would be responsible for the maintenance of the street. 
 
Mr. Koch responded that Rutledge Trail is a private road contained within an easement and the 
surrounding property lines on either side extend to the centerline of the road. Mr. Koch explained 
that there is an existing maintenance agreement among the surrounding property owners for the 
maintenance of the street. The property owner/applicant Mr. Tanner is not written into the current 
agreement but is willing to help with the street maintenance even though he does not have any 
maintenance responsibility. He added that it was a priority for the project to restore the drainage on 
the road. Mr. Connally responded that a new maintenance agreement would be necessary to 
include the Mill Run HOA. Kurt Pearson emphasized that this would be important to set up between 
the HOA.  
 
Kurt Pearson asked if the Rutledge easement conflicted with the landscape buffer for the 
subdivision. Mr. Koch responded that the easement is just outside of the buffer, no conflict.  
 
Mrs. Connally asked about the crosswalk and sewer extension for the project near their property, 
Mr. Koch explained that per DOT requirements they would not have a problem.  
 
Kurt Pearson commented that the applicant’s rezoning request is very reasonable with reasonable 
waiver requests. He added that it was important for the applicant to include the HOA in the 
maintenance agreement of Rutledge. 
 
Kurt Pearson made a motion to approve the request as follows: 

Motion to approve the R-12 (CD) zoning as presented; and 
Motion to find that the application is consistent with the objectives and goals in the City’s 2017 
Comprehensive Land Development Plan Mebane By Design. Specifically, the request: 

• Is for a property within the City’s G-4 Secondary Growth Area and is generally residential in 
nature (Mebane CLP, p.66); 

• Provides a sidewalk along its street frontage, as required by the City’s adopted Bicycle and 
Pedestrian Transportation Plan. 
 

Gale Pettiford seconded the motion which passed unanimously. Mr. Tulauskas confirmed that the 
request would be scheduled for a public hearing before the Mebane City Council on August 1st. 
 

 
B. Request to rezone four properties totaling +/- 5.74 acres located at 120, 122, 126 W Holt 

Street (PINs 9825033678, 9825033700, 9825031924, 9825034785) from M-1, B-1, and R-12 to 
B-1 (CD) to allow for a Planned Unit Development of 268 apartment units and +/- 21,540 
square feet of retail space by NC Mebane Holt, LLC. 
 

NC Mebane Holt, LLC, is requesting approval to conditionally rezone four (4) properties totaling +/- 
5.74 acres located at 120, 122, and 126 W Holt Street. The properties are currently split-zoned HM, 



Planning Board 
Minutes to the Meeting 

July 18, 2022, 6:30 p.m. 

R-12, and B-1. The proposed request is to rezone the properties to B-1(CD) (Central Business 
Conditional District) to allow for a Planned Unit Development of 268 apartment units and +/- 21,540 
square feet of commercial space. The properties are in Alamance County and in the City limits. The 
applicant has a contract to purchase the properties. Proposed onsite amenities, traffic 
considerations and waiver requests are detailed in the meeting agenda packet available here. The 
Planning staff has reviewed the request for harmony with the zoning of the surrounding area and 
consistency with the City’s adopted plans and recommends approval. The Technical Review 
Committee (TRC) has reviewed the site plan and the applicant has revised the plan to reflect the 
comments 

Ashley Ownbey provided an overview and PowerPoint presentation of the request. 

Tom Boney of Alamance News asked how many buildings are proposed and asked if the commercial 
space was proposed in specific buildings. Ms. Ownbey replied the two buildings fronting Washington 
St have commercial in the ground floor of 5 buildings total.  

Robert Wright represented the client Mebane Holt LLC and introduced the additional 
representatives on the applicant team present at the meeting: David Allen and Charles Zevenhuizen 
of RealtyLink, LLC, John Plageman the project architect, Allan Hill the project civil engineer and Josh 
Reinke traffic engineer. 

David Allen introduced the proposed development as “The Downs at Mebane,” discussed 
partnership with Kingsdown, and goals to foster historical character and alignment with the Mebane 
Downtown Vision Plan. Mr. Allen went over the site plan and the various proposed buildings, 
including the community space within the “cotton building”, a rooftop amenity for outdoor social 
gatherings, and areas with retail space. He explained the current conditions of the existing buildings 
and that they are preserving what can be preserved although most of it must be torn down. He 
added that they would buy 50 red oaks to be planted on site, distributed to the City to plant and to 
be gifted to the surrounding property owners to make up for some of the existing trees that cannot 
be saved on the property.  

Robert Wright gave a presentation including discussion of the following: 
• waiver requests for parking, lighting, and landscaping 
• the agreement with the library and with the church for overflow parking that would primarily 

be for the retail and the restaurants in the evening 
• proposed unit mix and amenities for the apartments  
• design inspiration for the project 
• community space, economic development, and community investments 

 
Kurt Pearson commented that parking did not add up, noting that the available parking is 48 spaces 
short per the 422 spaces required by UDO. He questioned how the overflow parking could sufficiently 
accommodate the retail parking when there isn’t enough residential parking.  

https://cityofmebanenc.gov/meetings/planning-board-meeting-july-18-2022/


Planning Board 
Minutes to the Meeting 

July 18, 2022, 6:30 p.m. 

 
Robert Wright responded that the UDO allows for some flexibility for the parking required in the 
downtown area. Kurt Pearson responded that he was correct, but the flexibility given by the UDO 
doesn’t necessarily make up for such a large deficit.  
 
Larry Teague questioned how they would be able to use the library parking when they already 
restrict the nearby apartment development from parking there. Mr. Wright responded that he was 
unaware of other restrictions, but in speaking with the library they were open to a parking 
agreement. Larry commented that the library doesn’t close until 8 p.m. so it didn’t seem like there 
would be a wide window to use it.  
 
Larry Teague asked what the proposed building height was and how it compared to the average 
building height downtown. Mr. Wright explained the proposed building height is 50 ft and although 
he didn’t know the average height downtown, their proposal aligns with the Downtown Vision Plan. 
Larry Teague also expressed concern about the cotton building being located in the sight triangle. 
Mr. Wright responded that the building already exists. Larry Teague asked how the adjacent home 
on Holt St would be impacted, nearest to the proposed dog park. Mr. Wright responded that there 
would be no impact on the home, and screening would be provided.  
 
Tom Boney asked for clarity on the existing buildings and the “cotton building.” Robert Wright 
explained that all of the existing buildings would be demolished except for the “cotton building” on 
the northeast corner by the pool shown on the site plan. 

 
Dave Roth, 410 S 4th St, expressed support and excitement for the project to bring more activity and 
economic development to downtown Mebane. He noted that the site is currently derelict 
abandoned characterless buildings and the whole western block is surrounded by a six-foot-tall 
chain-link fence with barbed wire. He added that he trusted the engineers that designed site and 
performed the traffic study. He commented that the project would add much needed value to the 
property and hoped for the project to be approved. 

Steve Krans, 100 W Crawford, St commented as a downtown business owner, downtown resident, 
and co-president of destination downtown and spoke on behalf of other downtown business 
owners. He expressed support and excitement for project and echoed the comments of Mr. Roth 
before him. He noted the importance of bringing traffic to downtown businesses and the overall 
positive impact the project would have downtown.  

Dan Shannon, 4681 Mebane Rogers Road, commented that this is a phenomenal opportunity for the 
City of Mebane to have interest and intent in developing the property. He noted a slight concern 
about parking but was confident that it could be worked out.  

Becky Beedy, 116 W Holt St, explained that she lives in the property Mr. Teague asked about 
immediately adjacent to the site and dog park. Ms. Beedy expressed excitement for the project and 



Planning Board 
Minutes to the Meeting 

July 18, 2022, 6:30 p.m. 

interest in living in an apartment and asked questions about the provision of handicap accessible 
parking and accessible apartment units.  

Josh Woodard, 500 S Third St, commented that he is excited about the potential to redevelop the 
Kingsdown site with mixed use but expressed significant concern with the development as 
presented. He noted that much of the property is covered by a parking lot and yet that there is not 
enough parking being provided. He noted concern about the use of the library for overflow parking, 
asking where he would be able to park when visiting the library with his kids. Mr. Woodard 
expressed disappointment in the lack of greenspace being provided on site, highlighting a missed 
opportunity to provide vibrant green space tied-in to downtown. Mr. Woodard also commented 
that there should be condos in addition to apartments in order to bring people in that are invested 
in the community long term.  

Roger Halchin, 407 S Third St, noted that he is a long term resident of Mebane (32 years). Mr. 
Halchin echoed that it would be nice to see the property developed but expressed concern about 
stormwater and the increase in impervious surfaces. He added the S Third St area of Mebane gets a 
lot of run off and flooding from downtown when there is heavy is rain. He pointed out an 
abandoned storm sewer pipe under his property that connects all the way to Kingsdown which 
creates additional drainage problems and sinkholes. He also expressed concern about traffic and the 
impact of the mixed use and apartments on the neighborhood character.  

Gene Jester, 209 W Holt St, spoke about his home at the corner of 2nd and Holt St adjacent to the 
proposed development, and his surrounding neighbors. He commented that such high-density 
housing, nearly 500 new residents right across the street, would be disruptive and dramatically 
impact the density and character of the neighborhood. He noted that the people to live in the 
apartments will not be inclusive or diverse, but mostly a young transient generation without 
children. He added that the units would not be affordable. Mr. Jester expressed deep respect and 
appreciation for the downtown community and how hard they have worked to transform it into a 
vibrant place but expressed concern for how traffic and congestion could really disrupt the success 
of the downtown area. Mr. Jester echoed concern about the 4-story building height. He shared 
frustration about the on-street parking that would be right in front of his home. He expressed great 
concern about the legacy trees on site that would be cleared and he reiterated that the project was 
too dense and out of character with the community.  

Mary McFarland, 307 N Wilba Rd, echoed the same concerns expressed by others about parking, 
density, building height, and lack of harmony with its surroundings. Ms. McFarland commented on 
the Downtown Vision Plan process from 2018 and how it depicted a concept for the Kingsdown 
property. She commented that the Vision Plan recommended a setback for a 4th story on the 
building to reduce the visual impact. Ms. McFarland elaborated on some other uses that would be 
suitable for the property such as greenspace/public space and YMCA. Ms. McFarland expressed 
concern about the waiver requests. She reiterated that proposed development is too dense and too 
tall. 



Planning Board 
Minutes to the Meeting 

July 18, 2022, 6:30 p.m. 

Tom Boney asked about the parking agreement with the library – who owns the property and who 
has the authority to make the decision about parking. Ashley Ownbey, Interim Development 
Director, responded that the City owns the library lot and the City Attorney has confirmed that the 
lessee (the leaseholder/tenant) has the option to determine who utilizes the parking. 
 
Tom Boney asked then in that case, did the County Library give permission to use the parking. 
Robert Wright responded that an individual at the library sent him an email confirming that they 
would be fine with overflow parking in the library during the hours they discussed. He confirmed it 
was the director of the Mebane Library but did not know the name of the individual he spoke with. 
Judy Taylor asked if it was clear that this would be an agreement made in perpetuity. Mr. Wright 
responded that they spoke at length about the project. 
 
In response to questions raised by the public, Mr. Wright highlighted the ADA parking spaces on the 
site plan including an accessible garage at building 3. Kurt Pearson asked who would be able to use 
the interior parking lot with the accessible spaces. Mr. Wright responded that the spaces would be 
available to the apartment residents.  
 
Mr. Wright explained that the apartments are driven by demand and there are more people today 
that want to rent and a lot of people are opting not to purchase, so they are meeting that demand.  
 
Allan Hill, the project engineer, elaborated on the stormwater design for the project noting that the 
development would only increase the impervious surface by roughly one acre. He noted that the 
City requires that additional impervious and stormwater be treated for quality and quantity so that 
peak flows do not exceed the existing level. The City of Mebane Engineer Franz Holt added that they 
were required to provide rendition for a 100-year storm event.  
 
Mr. Wright elaborated on how the project aligns with the Downtown Vision Plan by providing a mix 
of uses and housing as a transition area towards the existing central business district across the 
railroad tracks. He responded to questions about low-income housing and explained that low-
income housing would be less beneficial to property values. Mr. Wright also explained that the 
existing buildings are not designated as historic and are structurally unusable.  
 
Gale Pettiford asked where delivery trucks would be able to access the commercial tenants for the 
site and if would be a public safety hazard. David Allen highlighted on the plans areas where there 
would access for trucks, namely on street parking areas in the morning, 

 
Ms. Beedy followed up about her question regarding accessible apartments. The architect for the 
applicant Mr. Plageman responded that in compliance with building code, 9 apartments would be 
fully accessible and all of them would be adaptable because of the elevators.  
 



Planning Board 
Minutes to the Meeting 

July 18, 2022, 6:30 p.m. 

Ms. McFarland asked if there would be a safety hazard due to traffic and the close proximity to the 
Mebane Fire Station. Mr. Wright responded that the Mebane Fire Department and TRC reviewed 
and approved the plans as presented, meeting city requirements. 
 
Kurt Pearson shared a series of concerns about the proposed development: 

• Mr. Pearson expressed concern in general about the number of apartments in Mebane. He 
advised using caution whenever considering apartment developments to avoid saturating 
the housing market. He suggested a study be performed for the City to ensure there is a 
healthy mix of housing in the City and the number of apartments does not approach or 
exceed that healthy threshold. He added that he did see that apartments in this downtown 
area are more desirable but wanted to see condos and townhomes as well. 

• Mr. Pearson shared his opinion that the proposed development was asking too much with 
waiver request he considered be too severe, particularly with respect to parking. He noted 
that the project fails to provide enough parking for the residential component with a deficit 
of 48 spaces let alone the commercial component. He added that it was in his opinion 
inappropriate to use the public property at the library as overflow parking for a private 
development.  

• Mr. Pearson indicated that in his opinion the proposed 4-story building height is too tall, and 
not in character with the surrounding buildings downtown which do not exceed three 
stories. He shared Ms. McFarland’s concern about being “too dense and too tall.” Kurt also 
added that while it is great to have development that will increase activity downtown, he is 
concerns that the proposed development will exacerbate traffic and parking problems 
downtown.  

• He explained the City has discretion to grant waivers when reasonable and appropriate, but 
in this case the waiver requests are irresponsible and do not meet the intent of the UDO. He 
added that he didn’t want to be too critical because he understands it is a prime location 
and it should be developed, but as presented it is not a smart development. Mr. Pearson 
questioned why not be picky and demand more from the developer when in the current 
economy almost every developer would love to come develop in Mebane, in such a prime 
location. 

• Mr. Pearson concluded by stating he has a lot of knowledge and education from his 
professional background in city planning and that even though the Planning Board is an 
advisory body, the City Council watches these meetings and reads the meeting minutes. Mr. 
Pearson noted that considering the density, waiver requests and the irresponsible parking 
deficit, his only option would be to vote in opposition to the rezoning request. 

 
Larry Teague commented that he agreed with Kurt Pearson. 
 
Judy Taylor commented that she was excited about the redevelopment potential for mixed use on 
the Kingsdown properties but shared some concerns that the proposed development did not quite 
align with the intent and character of the Downtown Vision Plan. She noted that a buffer was 



Planning Board 
Minutes to the Meeting 

July 18, 2022, 6:30 p.m. 

necessary to provide a transition between the existing homes on Holt Street and the mixed-use 
development. 
 
Kurt Pearson made it clear that he is not against development on the Kingsdown properties, but that 
any proposed development needed to be responsible and in character with the surrounding area. 
 
Kurt Pearson made a motion to deny the B-1(CD) rezoning as presented due to a lack of harmony 
with the surrounding zoning or land use, noting his concerns about the numerous waiver requests 
that he discussed earlier. Gale Pettiford seconded the motion which passed unanimously.  
 
Chairman Tulauskas indicated that the request would go before the Mebane City Council on 
Monday, August 1st.  

 
 

C. Request to rezone two properties totaling +/- 10.67 acres located at Peartree Dr & Parker Ln 
(PINs 9824071555 & 9824073438) from R-8 (CD) and R-20 to R-8 (CD) to allow for a residential 
development of 70 townhomes by KB Home Carolina Division. 
 

KB Home Carolinas Division is requesting approval to conditionally rezone two properties totaling 
+/- 10.67 acres located at Peartree Dr & Parker Ln (PINs 9824071555 & 9824073438) from R-8 (CD) 
and R-20 to R-8 (CD) to allow for a residential development “Peartree Townhomes” of 70 
townhomes. The property is located outside of City Limits in the Mebane Extraterritorial Jurisdiction 
(ETJ). Proposed onsite amenities are detailed in the meeting agenda packet available here. The 
Planning staff has reviewed the request for harmony with the zoning of the surrounding area and 
consistency with the City’s adopted plans and recommends approval. The Technical Review 
Committee (TRC) has reviewed the site plan and the applicant has revised the plan to reflect the 
comments 

Ashley Ownbey provided an overview and PowerPoint presentation of the request. 

Donald Sever, PE of Summit Design and Engineering presented the rezoning request including 
discussion of the site plan, stormwater, project history and examples of home elevations. Thurm 
Bowen of KB home was also in attendance to represent the applicant.  
 
Tom Boney of the Alamance News asked about the typical number of bedrooms and price point for 
the proposed townhomes. Mr. Bowen answered that the homes would have 3 bedrooms and would 
be in the 290 to low 300 thousand price range.  
 
Joe Wiggs, adjacent property owner at 408 Stratford Dr, expressed several concerns about the 
project, namely that the connection of the road and sidewalk to Stratford would be disruptive to his 
property and the quiet street. He added that in previous conversations, the project engineer told 
him that a cut through was not necessary but the City wanted it for emergency response purposes. 

https://cityofmebanenc.gov/meetings/planning-board-meeting-july-18-2022/


Planning Board 
Minutes to the Meeting 

July 18, 2022, 6:30 p.m. 

Mr. Wiggs added that there are plenty of dead-end roads in Mebane and it shouldn’t have an impact 
on emergency response. Mr. Wiggs also expressed concerns about the lighting for the proposed 
subdivision entrance sign and loss of large existing evergreen trees. He added that the stormwater 
ponds would increase mosquitos.  
 
Aaron Smeltz, property and business owner at 831 S 8th Street, expressed concern about how the 
project may impact his property, particularly traffic. He asked if the development would limit his 
ability to recombine his properties in the future and if he could access his property from the 
proposed road that would run behind him. Don Sever responded that he did not see an issue 
providing an entryway for Mr. Smeltz to tie into provided that the City did not have an issue.  
 
Mr. Wiggs also asked if a fence or buffer would be installed around where the project abuts his 
property. 

In response to Mr. Wiggs, Don Sever highlighted on the site plan where they are proposing to 
preserve the exiting tree canopy. He added that screening along Mr. Wiggs’ property would be 
determined during the construction plan approval process.  

Mr. Wiggs asked how close the proposed parking spaces shown on the plans would be to his 
property. Mr. Sever responded that the spaces would be 8 to 10 feet from the property line. Tom 
Boney asked if there were any buffer requirements with respect to the parking spaces. Ashley 
Ownbey responded that the parking is required to be screen from adjacent properties. Mr. Wiggs 
expressed concern about these spaces so close to his property line without a sufficient buffer and 
asked whether those spaces were necessary. 

Ashley Ownbey responded that the parking spaces in question contribute to meeting the parking 
requirements for the subdivision, although they are exceeding the requirement by 2 spaces. 

Kurt Pearson asked what the required setback is for parking. Ashley Ownbey responded that there 
are not setbacks for parking areas. Kurt Pearson responded that the proposed screening seemed 
sufficient and would not have a large impact on the surrounding properties. He also commented 
that the lighting from the subdivision entrance sign would not have a significant impact on 
surrounding properties because there are lighting requirements for signs. Mr. Pearson also added 
that the connectivity to Stratford in his opinion would be generally favorable. Mr. Wiggs restated his 
concern about the street being used for a cut through.  

Kurt Pearson commented that the requested waivers for this proposed development are not 
significant, and the property is already zoned R-8 so it would not cause any significant changes from 
the current zoning.  

Aaron Smeltz asked if the development would limit his ability to recombine his properties in the 
future. Staff responded that it would not change his ability to recombine his properties. 



Planning Board 
Minutes to the Meeting 

July 18, 2022, 6:30 p.m. 

Mr. Wiggs asked how the site plan addresses stormwater management. Mr. Sever responded by 
highlighting the stormwater control measures as shown on the site plan. 

Tom Boney asked about the proposed private amenities. Mr. Sever highlighted the proposed private 
amenities on the site plan including the dog park, walk path, sports field, bocce ball, and picnic area.  

Kurt Pearson noted that the City Council will have the final decision on the rezoning request and 
that Mr. Wiggs will have an opportunity to share his concerns at the public hearing. 

Kurt Pearson commented that the project does not have any major red flags that would negatively 
impact surrounding property owners. 

Keith Hoover made a motion as follows: 
Motion to approve the R-8 (CD) zoning as presented; and  
Motion to find that the application is consistent with the objectives and goals in the City’s 2017 
Comprehensive Land Development Plan Mebane By Design. Specifically, the request: 

o Is for a property within the City’s G-1 Mixed-Use (Cameron Lane) and is residential in 
nature; and 

o Promotes a village concept that supports compact and walkable environments, 
consistent with Growth Management Goal 1.1 (pp. 17 & 82) 

 
Larry Teague seconded the motion which passed unanimously. Chairman Tulauskas indicated that 
the request would go before the Mebane City Council on Monday, August 1st.  

   
 
7. New Business 

The following new business items were shared with the Board: 
• Staff is arranging a Planning Board basics training, please share availability with staff. 
• There is a vacancy on the Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee  
 

8. Adjournment 
Chairman Tulauskas adjourned the meeting at 9:25 p.m. 
 


	Agenda- August 1, 2022
	Item 4a- Summary Sheet- Recommendation for Appointment to Ala. Co. Library Board
	Library Committee Application- Mandy Al-Bjaly
	Library Committee Application- Lorna Nelson
	Library Committee Application- Sarah Williams

	Item 4b- Summary Sheet - St. Barts Place - Final Plat
	St. Barts- Final Plat

	Item 4c- Summary Sheet - Tupelo Junction, Ph 1 - Final Plat
	Tupelo_Junction_PH1 final plat

	Item 4d- Summary Sheet- Annexation Petition- Summit Church
	Summit Church Petition for Annextion
	Certificate of Sufficiency- Non Contiguous- 8.1.2022
	 Summit Church Annexation Plat- 7-20-22
	Resolution Setting Date of Public Hearing- Summit Church

	Item 4e- Summary Sheet- Annexation Petition- Sandra Clark- W. Ten Road
	Petition- Sandra Clark- West Ten Rd.
	Certificate of Sufficiency- Sandra Clark- W. Ten Rd.
	Annex. Plat- Sandra Clark
	Resolution Setting Date of Public Hearing- Sandra Clark-  W. Ten Rd.

	Item 4f- Summary Sheet- 2023 Odor Control Chemicals
	Letter of Recommendation
	Bid 2023-01 Odor Control Chemicals - Certified Bid Tab

	Item 5a- Summary Sheet - Conditional Rezoning - NC Mebane Holt
	Rezoning Application
	Zoning Map
	NC Mebane Holt TRC Waiver Requests 07-27-22
	Planning Project Report - NC Mebane Holt
	NC Mebane Holt - Letter of approval for preliminary water and sewer 7-13-2022
	Technical Memo - NC Mebane Holt - 7-19-2022
	NC Mebane Holt Private Recreation Letter Signed
	Mebane Holt TIA Review NCDOT FINAL
	VHB - Mebane Holt TIA Review_05.02.2022

	Item 5b- Summary Sheet - Conditional Rezoning - Mill Run
	Zoning Amendment Application - Mill Run
	Zoning Map - Mill Run
	Site Plan - Mill Run
	Project Report - Mill Run
	Preliminary Water and Sewer System Approval Letter - Mill Run
	Technical Memorandum – City Engineering Review - Mill Run

	Item 5c- Summary Sheet - Conditional Rezoning - Peartree
	Zoning Amendment Application - Peartree
	Zoning Map - Peartree
	Site Plan - Peartree Townhomes
	Planning Project Report - Peartree Townhomes
	Preliminary Water and Sewer System - Peartree Townhomes
	Technical Memorandum - City Engineering Review - Peartree Townhomes
	 Traffic Impact Statement - Peartree Townhomes Baker Lane - Mebane

	Item 5d - Summary Sheet- Ord. to Ext. Corp. Limits- Stagecoach Corner
	Ord. to Extend the Corporate Limits- Stagecoach Corner
	Stagecoach Corner Annex. Plat

	Item 6- Summary Sheet- Elevated Storage Engineer Selection
	 Mebane Elevated Storage Tank Proposal_v2

	Item 7- Summary Sheet- Elevated Storage Grant Admin Selection
	McGill_City_of_Mebane_Cost_Proposal

	Item 8- Summary- CPO and Reimbursement Resolution for the Elevated Water Tank Project
	Project Ordinance for Elevated Water Tank Project
	Reimbursement Resolution Elevated Storage Tank

	Item 9- Summary Sheet- Code of Ord. Amendment- Backyard Hens
	Section- 4-37 Backyard Hens and Fowl draft- revised 7.22.2022

	Item 10- Summary Sheet- Property Acquistion- Smith Road- WRRF
	Offer to Purchase

	Item 11- Summary Sheet- Offer to Purchse- WRRF Land
	Offer to Purchase and Contract- Lumpkin Property- 

	MFD Report June 2022
	Planning Board Minutes- July 2022



